
 

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

2730 N HWY 360 
GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, 75050 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2020 
 

12:00 P.M. OPEN SESSION 
 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOARD PARTICIPATING IN THIS MEETING WILL 
PARTICIPATE VIA VIDEO OR TELEPHONE CONFERENCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
GOVERNOR’S AUTHORIZATION CONCERNING SUSPENSION OF CERTAIN OPEN MEETING 
LAW REQUIREMENTS FOR COVID-19 DISASTER. 
 
Members of the public may access the meeting via telephone by dialing 1-346-248-7799 (using meeting ID: 913 
3934 2503) or by using the following videoconference link: https://trinitybasin-net.zoom.us/j/91339342503.  A 
quorum of members of the Board will participate in the meeting and will be audible to the public. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: 
 

II. OPEN SESSION 
 

III. NON-AGENDA RELATED PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This forum allows anyone in attendance to address the Board on any matter except personnel and 
individual student issues.  Any personnel concerns should be brought to the attention of the CEO prior 
to the meeting.  Speakers will be limited to three (3) minutes.  Non-agenda items will be taken for no 
more than 30 minutes. 

IV. ACTION ITEMS:  
 

a. Financial report  
b. Enrollment report 
c. Academic report  
d. Operations and Expansion report  
e. Development report  
f. Campus report 
g. Technology report 
h. Consider and/or adopt 2019-2020 audit 
i. Consider and/or vote on approval of Master Interlocal Purchasing Agreement with Region 

10 
j. Consider and/or vote on General Interlocal Membership Agreement with Region 10 for child 

nutrition coop purchasing program 
k. Consider and/or vote on lease documents for lease and purchase of district vehicle 
l. Consider and/or vote on the special education policies listed below.  All items will be acted 

upon by one vote without separate discussion unless a board member requests that an item 
be discussed and/or voted on separately. 

i. Admission, Review, and Dismissal (ARD) Committee  
ii. Autism Supplement 

iii. Closing the Gap 
iv. Coordination of Funds for Purchases of Instructional Materials 
v. Dyslexia Services 

vi. Eligibility 



 

vii. Evaluation Procedures 
viii. Parent 

ix. Independent Educational Evaluations 
x. Individual Education Program (IEP) 

xi. Procedural Safeguards 
xii. Referral for Possible Special Education Services 

xiii. Shared Services Arrangements 
xiv. Special Education Teacher and Related Service Provider Qualifications 
xv. State Funding: Special Allotments 

xvi. Teacher Requested Review 
xvii. Transition Services 

xviii. General and Fiscal Guidelines 
xix. Special Education Video and Audio Monitoring 

m. Consider and/or vote on minutes from meeting on 9.21.20 
n. ADJOURNMENT 

 
V. CLOSED SESSION PER TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE.  If at any time during the meeting, the 

Board determines that a closed or executive meeting is required, then such closed or executive meeting 
will be held by the Board as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, including, but not limited to 
the following sections: 

 
a. Private Consultation with the Board’s Attorney (Sec. 551.071) 
b. Personnel Matters (Sec. 551.074) 
c. School Children; School District Employees; Disciplinary Matter or Complaint (Sec. 

551.082) 
 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
CERTIFICATE AS TO POSTING OR GIVING OF NOTICE 

 
On this ___ day of October, 2020, at ___ a.m., this notice was posted at a place convenient to the public at the 
administrative offices of Trinity Basin Preparatory, 2730 N Hwy 360, Grand Prairie, Texas 75050 and on Trinity 
Basin’s website (www.trinitybasin.net) and readily accessible to the general public at all times for 72 hours preceding 
the scheduled time of the meeting. 
 

Randy Shaffer 
Chief Executive Officer 
Trinity Basin Preparatory 



A.  
Financial 
Report  

  



Board Report CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER as of September 30, 2021

BANKING -
• LCB mmkt $ 9,001,000 (↑ $1,000,000)
• TexPool 913,000 
• BBVA mmkt 68,000

• LCB cash 1,405,000 (↓ $   333,000)
• Capital One 667,000
• Bank of Amer 175,000

Cash $12,229,000  104 days (↑ 8 days)
(57 days base +47 LCB revolvers)

• $  5.6 million revolvers drawn 
• $ -- million PNC revolver ($20.0 million cap)

Treasury Report

• Purchase Panola Modular Bldgs.  $1,193,000 (not under MTI)

• PYTD Fixed Assets Purchased:     $1,635,000
Chromebooks / iPads 1,140,000
Ledbetter Roof Repl. 154,000 (+$75,000 PY)
Furniture 122,000
Ford Transit – Passenger 42,000
District Van 33,000
Turf – Pafford Playground 38,000
Access Control 36,000
Copiers 26,000
FS Equipment 24,000

Current Financial Activity

Key Ratios / Indicators FY 2020 YTD 2021 ‘21 Budget
YTD Net Income $   6,240,001 $ 4,985,000 $   4,700,000
YTD EBIDA $   9,140,358 $ 7,886,000 $ 11,200,000
Days Cash on Hand
Day’s Cash

149
$94,400

104
$117,000*

150+

FIRST Rating 95 (est.)

Credit Lines
$ 20.0 million - PNC Revolving (expires
$ 5.6 million - LCB Revolving (expires 1/2021)

Bond Funds
$ 12.6 million – Restricted Cash

  $    9.4 million – Remaining Panola Phase III

Other Information

Jun 2020 Sep 2020
• Teachers 233 271
• Aides 79 92
• Other Campus Staff 111 117
• Administration 61 68

484 548

Employee Count



Federal Grants Report
as of 8/31/2020

19‐20  
Expenditures

Year End
Balances

20‐21
New Award

Total 
Available

ESSA Consolidated
Title I 851,019                    664,252                    1,374,027                2,038,279            
Title II 107,891                    145,624                    155,640                    301,264               
Title III 202,414                    ‐                             208,696                    208,696               
Title III Immigrant ‐                             ‐                             9,462                        9,462                   
Title IV 33,151                      123,678                    89,721                      213,399               
IDEA B 436,031                    488,630                    555,049                    1,043,679            

1,630,506$          1,422,184$          2,392,595$          3,814,779$         

COVID Related Fund
Corona Relief Fund 514,074                ‐                        
ESSER 516,543                464,015                464,015               

1,030,617$          464,015$              ‐$                      464,015$             

EMAT Instructional Materials 158,801                69,456                  69,456                 

Total Expenditures 2,819,924$        1,955,655$        2,392,595$        4,348,250$       

Services Provided 
2019‐2020 2020‐2021  Additional Services
Response to Intervention Teachers Virtual Teachers
Literacy Teachers Additional Literacy Teachers
Parent Involvement
District Nurse COVID Funds Services
Student Recruting Technology Equipment for virtual learning
Early Childhood



B.  
Enrollment 

Report  
  



ADA & 

Enrollment  

10/14/20 Enrollment 

ADA*

Eligible Days 

Present 

(Ref. ADA)

Student 

Enrollment

Students 

Present

Students 

Present 

on 

Campus

Students 

Present 

At Home*

Students 

Absent* Att. %

Ewing

P3a 6.5 6.5 13 13 10 3 0 100.00%

P3p 6 5 12 10 6 4 2 83.33%

P4 33 30.5 66 61 29 32 5 92.42%

KG 85 82 85 82 38 44 3 96.47%

1st 87 82 87 82 36 46 5 94.25%

2nd 81 78 81 78 32 46 3 96.30%

3rd 87 84 87 84 35 49 3 96.55%

4th 85 81 85 81 22 59 4 95.29%

Total 470.5 449 516 491 208 283 25 95.16%

10th Street

P3a 5.5 5 11 10 8 2 1 90.91%

P3p 4.5 4 9 8 1 7 1 88.89%

P4 36 34.5 72 69 35 34 3 95.83%

KG 98 88 98 88 46 42 10 89.80%

1st 103 100 103 100 48 52 3 97.09%

2nd 82 80 82 80 30 50 2 97.56%

3rd 89 88 89 88 37 51 1 98.88%

4th 84 81 84 81 35 46 3 96.43%

Total 502 480.5 548 524 240 284 24 95.62%

Jefferson

5th 166 159 166 159 58 101 7 95.78%

6th 215 207 215 207 58 149 8 96.28%

7th 202 198 202 198 71 127 4 98.02%

8th 185 176 185 176 44 132 9 95.14%

Total 768 740 768 740 231 509 28 96.35%

Ledbetter

P3a 9.5 8.5 19 17 15 2 2 89.47%

P3p 4.5 4.5 9 9 0 9 0 100.00%

P4 37.5 33 75 66 40 26 9 88.00%

KG 88 82 88 82 42 40 6 93.18%

1st 43 40 43 40 30 10 3 93.02%

2nd 42 40 42 40 27 13 2 95.24%

3rd 40 38 40 38 20 18 2 95.00%

4th 29 27 29 27 16 11 2 93.10%

5th 33 33 33 33 16 17 0 100.00%

6th 31 30 31 30 12 18 1 96.77%

7th 31 30 31 30 14 16 1 96.77%

8th 32 28 32 28 12 16 4 87.50%

Total 420.5 394 472 440 244 196 32 93.22%

Pafford

P3a 11.5 9 23 18 18 0 5 78.26%

P3p 11 11 22 22 2 20 0 100.00%

P4 45.5 41.5 91 83 52 31 8 91.21%

KG 94 93 94 93 57 36 1 98.94%

1st 89 83 89 83 18 65 6 93.26%

2nd 88 86 88 86 43 43 2 97.73%

3rd 90 84 90 84 42 42 6 93.33%

4th 91 85 91 85 39 46 6 93.41%

5th 96 90 96 90 34 56 6 93.75%

6th 103 91 103 91 30 61 12 88.35%

7th 100 99 100 99 23 76 1 99.00%

8th 87 81 87 81 54 27 6 93.10%

Total 906 853.5 974 915 412 503 59 93.94%

Panola

P3a 12 11.5 24 23 21 2 1 95.83%

P3p 11 10 22 20 8 12 2 90.91%



ADA & 

Enrollment  

10/14/20 Enrollment 

ADA*

Eligible Days 

Present 

(Ref. ADA)

Student 

Enrollment

Students 

Present

Students 

Present 

on 

Campus

Students 

Present 

At Home*

Students 

Absent* Att. %

P4 43.5 40 87 80 50 30 7 91.95%

KG 86 85 86 85 63 22 1 98.84%

1st 69 65 69 65 50 15 4 94.20%

2nd 77 74 77 74 40 34 3 96.10%

3rd 87 87 87 87 55 32 0 100.00%

4th 54 53 54 53 28 25 1 98.15%

5th 57 57 57 57 47 10 0 100.00%

6th 76 74 76 74 36 38 2 97.37%

7th 53 50 53 50 26 24 3 94.34%

8th 36 36 36 36 19 17 0 100.00%

Total 661.5 642.5 728 704 443 261 24 96.70%

Mesquite

P3 17.5 13.5 35 27 18 9 8 77.14% *P3 AM & PM now full day

P4 20.5 17 41 34 27 7 7 82.93%

KG 31 29 31 29 19 10 2 93.55%

1st 22 20 22 20 12 8 2 90.91%

2nd 20 14 20 14 12 2 6 70.00%

3rd 24 23 24 23 18 5 1 95.83%

6th 31 29 31 29 18 11 2 93.55%

Total 166 145.5 204 176 124 52 28 86.27%

Campus

Ewing 470.5 449 516 491 208 283 25 95.16%

10th St 502 480.5 548 524 240 284 24 95.62%

Jefferson 768 740 768 740 231 509 28 96.35%

Ledbetter 420.5 394 472 440 244 196 32 93.22%

Pafford 906 853.5 974 915 412 503 59 93.94%

Panola 661.5 642.5 728 704 443 261 24 96.70%

Mesquite 166 145.5 204 176 124 52 28 86.27%

TOTAL 3894.5 3705 4210 3990 1902 2088 220 94.77%



Trinity Basin Preparatory

Waitlist 2020‐2021

Waitlist as of 10/15/2020

Ewing  10th Street

Grade Offered WL Grade Offered WL

PK3 8 0 PK3 4 0

PK4 5 0 PK4 3 0

K 0 0 K 3 0

1st 1 2 1st 1 0

2nd 0 0 2nd 2 0

3rd 1 3 3rd 2 0

4th 1 0 4th 3 0

Total 16 5 Total 18 0

Jefferson Ledbetter

Grade Offered WL Grade Offered WL

5th 1 0 PK3 7 0

6th 0 3 PK4 3 0

7th 1 0 K 0 0

8th 0 0 1st 3 0

Total 2 3 2nd 2 2

3rd 1 0

Pafford 4th 1 0

Grade Offered WL 5th 1 0

PK3 0 15 6th 1 0

PK4 0 12 7th 0 0

K 0 11 8th 0 0

1st 0 6 Total 19 2

2nd 0 6

3rd 1 0 Panola

4th 0 3 Grade Offered WL

5th 0 1 PK3 11 0

6th 0 3 PK4 3 15

7th 0 6 K 2 10

8th 2 0 1st 3 0

Total 3 63 2nd 7 0

3rd 1 3

Mesquite 4th 0 4

Grade Offered WL 5th 0 7

PK3 3 0 6th 4 0

PK4 4 0 7th 0 5

K 1 0 8th 0 0

1st 0 0 Total 31 44

2nd 2 0

3rd 0 0

6th 0 0 Campus Offered WL

Total 10 0 Ewing 16 5

10th Street 18 0

Jefferson 2 3

Ledbetter 19 2

Pafford 3 63

Panola 31 44

Mesquite 10 0

TOTAL 99 117



C.  
Academic 

Report 
  



BOARD 
UPDATE

1

• Connecting the Dots
• October 19th, 2020



EVERYONE HAS POTENTIAL TO PERFORM 
BETTER, POTENTIAL IS BLOCKED BY 
INTERFERENCE, INTERFERENCE CAN BE 
REDUCED BY FOCUSED ATTENTION, AND 
FOCUS ATTENTION CAN BE SIMPLY AND 
SYSTEMATICALLY INCREASED.  

2



DISTRICT STRATEGIC PLAN UPDATE -
ACADEMICS



4



TAKE ACTION, MAKE IT STICK
SUSTAINABILITY – TRAINING, INSPECTING AND COACHING, KEY RESULTS

Key Results: Monitoring outcomes of priorities, objectives 
and projects by tracking growth of teachers and students.  
Iterating the STICK process based on data.  

Continuous Improvement Cycle

“Make it Stick” – TBP Sustainability Model= Training, Inspecting, 
Coaching (all verbs = this is the doing part)

Execution of Priorities, 

Objectives, Projects

5

Priorities, Objectives, Projects . . . . Identify POPs and creating aligned action steps/tasks 
for campuses to begin moving through the TBP Sustainability model – Make it STICK.  Action Planning



CONNECTING THE DOTS
Team Reporting Structure, Functions and Priorities

6



WHERE DID WE END THE 
YEAR AND HOW ARE WE 

STARTING?

Click Here 



D.  
Operations 

and Expansion 
Report  

  



10.19 Operations and Expansion Report 
 
Campus Operations: 
 

1. Food Service  
a. Meals served (weekly average since 9/8): 9,400 
b. District free/reduced number: 86% (92% returned/completed lunch application) 

 
2. Safety and Security 

a. 2-way radios  
b. After-hours alarm protocols  
c. PPE requests  
d. Upgraded fencing projects at Pafford and Ewing  
e. Ewing security camera upgrades  
f. Safety dividers 

 
3. Facilities 

a. Maintenance tickets: 
i. Total submitted since 9/8: 257 

ii. Total closed out since 9/8: 252 
iii. Average Customer Rating: 4.96 on a 5-pt. scale 

b. Large projects: 
i. Parking lot resurfacing and new flooring at Tenth Street 

ii. New cleaning equipment  
iii. Ledbetter modular demolition  

 
District Operations: 

 

1. Human Resources 
a. Covid-19 update 

i. 6 active lab-confirmed staff cases ( 
ii. 8 recovered lab-confirmed staff cases 

iii. 20 presumed positive staff cases  
iv. Daily average absentee rate among teachers and aides due to C-19: 17.5 

(this includes teachers and aides approved for telework) 
b. Staffing strategies 

i. Increased sub pool size  
ii. Long-term sub positions 

iii. Digital recruiting 
c. Projects 

i. District Alignment training  
ii. Culture and Communications committee  

iii. Comprehensive Performance Management, Evaluation and Compensation 
system 

iv. 60-day employee survey  
 



2. Compliance 
a. Policies 

i. Special Education 
ii. Title IX updates 

iii. COVID-19 Supervisor guidelines and tracking 
b. 2020 – 2021 Governance Reporting Forms 

 
3. Enrollment 

a. 20-21 review 
i. Current enrollment: 4,210 

ii. Re-enrollees: 3,246 (targeted 3,095) 
iii. New students seated for 20-21: 1,037 (targeted 2,230) 
iv. New student apps received for 20-21: 2,296 (targeted 6,270) 

b. 21-22 Enrollment Timeline 
 
Expansion: 

 

1. Panola: 
a. Modular buildings install, connected and permitted 
b. Landscaping and irrigation installed 
c. Inspection for final certificate of occupancy is scheduled for 10/19 
d. New construction building  

i. Piers complete and grade beams installed 
ii. MEP is onsite and working on connections 

iii. Storm shelter slab pour is scheduled for next week 
iv. Overall scheduled completion is July 2021 

 
2. Bolt: 

a. Procurement process for demolition is complete 
b. Asbestos study complete 
c. Bidding abatement work  
d. Geotech report scheduled for post-demolition 
e. Searching for temporary space for 21-22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Pictures of Panola project: 
 

  

 



 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 

 
 

 



 

 



E.  
Development 

Report  
  



F.  
Campus 
Report 

  



G.  
Technology 

Report 
  



TBP Technology
Board Presentation 10/19/2020



Current Network

 Network core is in the datacenter in downtown Dallas (2018)

 Most campuses now wired for manageable, reliable, multi-gigabit support

 Ewing & 10th (2017)

 Panola & Pafford (2018)

 Jefferson & Mesquite (2020)

 Wireless Phase 1 (2015) – Zoned WiFi

 Wireless Phase 2 (2017+) – 1 per classroom

 Complete: 10th, Ewing, Panola, Mesquite



COVID-19

 Purchased : 

 3,200 Chromebooks

 1,100 iPads

 250 hotspots received (112 checked out to students)

 Seeking +500 hotspots through T-Mobile Project 10Million

 Bandwidth Utilization

 10% - Ewing, Ledbetter, Mesquite, Central Office

 15% - 10th, Pafford, Panola

 20% - Jefferson

 90% - Datacenter



New/Next Network Projects

 Complete wireless phase 2 project - 1 WiFi unit per classroom

 Ledbetter, Pafford, Jefferson

 Upgrade datacenter bandwidth

 Replace Huawei and “small business” switches



Operating Initiatives
 Warehouse

 Bulk receiving, streamlined hardware repairs, faster campus response

 Technology Van
 Mobile Emergency Response

 Dedicated resource for organized implementations

 Fill coverage gaps in support and training for all district software
 70+ programs

 Improve Automation and Integration
 Communication and security systems

 Account creation, inactivation, and deletion



Future Building

 Skyward Migration

 Data Warehouse and Data Analytics (DecisionEd)

 Bolster hybrid and virtual learning



H.  
2019-2020 

Audit 
  



I.  
Master Interlocal 

Purchasing 
Agreement with 

Region 10 
  



	

	

	

	
	
	
	
This	Master	Interlocal	Agreement	(“Agreement”)	is	made	by	and	between	Education	Service	Center	Region	10	(“ESC	
Region	10”)	and	___________________________________________	(“Local	Government”),	(collectively	referred	to	as	the	“Parties”	
or	individually	as	the	“Party”)	acting	herein	by	and	through	their	respectively	authorized	officers	or	employees.	
	
	

PREMISES	
	

WHEREAS,	Chapter	791	of	the	Texas	Government	Code	authorizes	local	governments	to	contract	with	each	other	
to	provide	governmental	functions	and	services;	and	

WHEREAS,	The	Parties	wish	to	enter	into	this	Agreement	to	provide	local	governments	with	greater	efficiency	and	
economy	in	purchasing	products	and	services;	and	

WHEREAS,	The	governing	bodies	of	the	Parties,	individually	and	together,	do	hereby	adopt	and	find	the	foregoing	
promises	as	findings	of	said	governing	bodies;	and	

NOW	THEREFORE,	premises	considered,	and	in	consideration	of	and	conditioned	upon	the	mutual	covenants	and	
agreements,	herein,	the	Parties	hereto	mutually	agree	as	follows:	
	
	

AGREEMENT	
	

1. Term:		This	Agreement	is	effective	from	the	date	of	the	last	signature	and	shall	automatically	renew	annually	
unless	either	party	gives	sixty	(60)	days	prior	written	notice	of	non‐renewal.	

2. Purpose:		This	Agreement	shall:	(1)	Allow	the	Local	Government	to	purchase	products	or	services	by	purchase	
order,	contract,	agreement,	or	other	appropriate	legal	method	from	ESC	Region	10;	and	(2)	Allow	the	Local	
Government	to	join	ESC	Region	10	sponsored	purchasing	cooperatives	in	order	to	purchase	products	or	services	
from	vendors	which	have	been	properly	awarded	contracts	through	statutorily	authorized	methods.	

3. Relationship:		The	relationship	between	the	Parties	is	that	of	Independent	Contractor.		Neither	Party	has	the	
authority	to	bind	the	other	in	any	manner	The	Local	Government	may	be	required	to	enter	into	subsequent	
contractual	arrangements	with	ESC	Region	10	for	specific	products	or	services.	

4. Agreement	and	Interpretation:		The	Parties	covenant	and	agree	that	any	litigation	relating	to	this	agreement,	the	
terms	and	conditions	of	the	agreement	will	be	interpreted	according	to	the	laws	of	the	State	of	Texas	and	venue	
shall	be	exclusively	in	Dallas	County,	Texas.	

	
	
Local	Government	
	
_____________________________________________________________________	 	 ESC	Region	10	
Name	of	Local	Government	 	 	 	 	 	 	 400	East	Spring	Valley	Rd	
					 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Richardson,	TX		75081	
_____________________________________________________________________	 	 Attn:		Sue	Hayes,	CFO	
Address	of	Local	Government	
																												 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 ________________________________________________	
_____________________________________________________________________	 	 Authorized	Representative	Signature	/	Date	
Contact	Name	and	Telephone	Number			
	
_____________________________________________________________________	 	 ________________________________________________	
Board	President	Signature	/	Date	 	 	 	 	 	 Authorized	Representative	Title	 	
	
_____________________________________________________________________	
Board	Approval	Date	 	 County/District#	
										 	 	 	 (if	applicable)		



J. 
General Interlocal 

Membership Agreement with 
Region 10 for Child Nutrition 

Coop Purchasing Program 
  























K. 
Lease 

Documents for 
District Vehicle 
  



 
 
 
 

LEASE CLOSING INSTRUCTIONS 
 
 

Company     

Authorized Signer     
 
 
 

Date   

Type of Lease    

Schedules    
 
 

Amount Due at Delivery   (payable to D&M Leasing) 
 
 

* Please sign all documents in spaces indicated by the “X”. 
* If Printing, please use single-sided copies only. 

 
 

1.    
2.    
3.    
4.    
5.    
6.   Provide a Certificate of Insurance or Insurance Binder with vehicle (s) description and 

required limits as stated in the Insurance Notice reflecting: 
Loss Payee as 

   Additional Insured as 
7.    
8.    
9.    
10.  
11. 
12. 
13. 
14. 
15. 



Page 1

ComTRAC SM  Lease Agreement

This ComTRAC SM Lease Agreement ("Lease"), dated as of  

Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc. ("Lessee");

2.1. Rent. The monthly rental for the use of each Vehicle shall be specified in each Schedule 1 ("Basic Rent"). In
addition, Lessee shall pay to Lessor the amount of any reimbursable expense paid by Lessor with respect to any
Vehicle ("Additional Amounts"). The initial rent payment with respect to each Vehicle shall be paid on the Effective
Date specified in each Schedule 1 and will consist of Basic Rent and Additional Amounts, if any. Each subsequent
payment of Basic Rent and Additional Amounts shall be payable in advance on or before the "Rental Payment Date"
as defined in the applicable Schedule 1.

All amounts received either as Basic Rent, Additional Amounts or otherwise shall be applied to payment of Lessee's
obligations under this Lease in such order as Lessor, in its sole discretion, shall determine.

2.2. Late Payments. Time is of the essence in this Lease. This Lease is entered into in contemplation of the timely
receipt of all rental payments hereunder. Any payment which is not received by Lessor on or before the tenth (10th)
calendar day following its due date will be assessed a late charge computed at the rate of five percent (5%) of the
past due payment for each vehicle then leased hereunder.

SECTION 2. RENTS AND PAYMENT DATES.

SECTION 1. VEHICLES COVERED AND TERM.

October 5, 2020

is between Ally Financial Inc. ("AFI"), Ally Bank ("AB") (each of AFI and AB, a "Lessor") and  

W I T N E S S E T H:

1.1. Intent to Lease and Term. Lessor hereby agrees to lease to Lessee and Lessee agrees to lease from Lessor
the motor vehicles described in "Schedule 1" attached hereto and any additional Schedule 1's which, upon the
mutual consent of Lessor and Lessee, may be executed from time to time ("Vehicle" or "Vehicles" as the context may 
require). This Lease shall become effective with respect to each Vehicle on the date the Schedule 1 identifying same
is executed and shall continue for a term of months as specified in the applicable Schedule 1. AB will only be
deemed to be a Lessor with respect to those Vehicles which are specifically allocated to AB on a Schedule 1 hereto
and AFI will only be deemed to be a Lessor with respect to those Vehicles which are specifically allocated to AFI on a
Schedule 1 hereto.

1.2.  Inspection and Acceptance. Lessee will inspect each Vehicle upon its receipt of same. If the Vehicle meets
Lessee's specifications, Lessee will accept delivery and execute and deliver to Lessor a Schedule 1 identifying such
Vehicle. Such Schedule shall conclusively establish that the Vehicle identified therein is acceptable to and accepted
by Lessee hereunder.

ComTRAC Agreement 05/2019



Page 2 

b.   Maintenance, Servicing and Assignment of Warranty. Lessee agrees to pay, or cause to be paid, all costs,
expenses, license and registration fees and charges incurred in connection with the use and operation of each
Vehicle during the lease term thereof, including, but not limited to, storage, servicing, and maintenance as provided
in Section 9 of this Lease. Lessor hereby authorizes Lessee to receive the benefits of any warranty available to
Lessor, either express or implied, in respect of each Vehicle and agrees to execute and deliver such further
instruments, and provide such other assistance, as may be reasonably necessary to enable Lessee to obtain
warranty service furnished for each Vehicle by a warrantor thereof.

2.3. Additional Sums Payable by Lessee. In addition to the Rentals payable by Lessee under the provisions of
Section 2.1 hereof:

a.  Taxes. In addition to sales and use taxes contemplated in the Rentals, Lessee agrees to pay and to indemnify
Lessor for, and hold the Lessor harmless from and against, all taxes, levies, fees, or other charges of any nature,
including but not limited to any penalties, fines or interest (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Impositions"), arising
in connection herewith or any Vehicle hereunder, and imposed by any governmental body or agency upon or with
respect to any Vehicle or upon the sale, purchase, ownership, delivery, leasing, possession, use, operation, return or
other disposition thereof or upon the Rentals or earnings arising therefrom, or upon or with respect to this Lease.
However, these Impositions shall exclude (a) any claim for penalties, fines, or interest resulting from an act,
omission, or misrepresentation of Lessor or anyone acting under, through, or on behalf of Lessor; and (b) all taxes on 
or measured, in part or entirely by (i) the net income; (ii) net worth; and (iii) gross income, rentals or receipts of
Lessor unless demonstrably levied in lieu of a sales or use tax and solely attributable to gross income, net income,
rentals, or receipts related hereto. All amounts payable by Lessee under this Section shall be payable, to the extent
not theretofore paid, within 30 days after Lessee's receipt of written demand of Lessor.

If Lessee fails to pay any taxes, levies, fees or other charges required by this Section 2.3(a), or to discharge any
levies, liens, and encumbrances created by Lessee's failure to pay same, Lessor shall have the right but not the
obligation to pay same or to effect such discharge. If Lessor elects to make such payment or effect such discharge,
Lessee shall remit to Lessor all costs (including the costs incurred in effecting the discharge of any levy, lien, or
encumbrance) plus the interest thereon at the rate provided for in Section 2.2. upon receipt of a written demand.
Lessee shall provide Lessor with an itemization of any costs required to effect such discharge as well as any other
documentation needed by Lessor with respect to same.

In connection with any return, statement, report or license ("Return") required to be made or obtained with respect to
any Impositions arising under this Section 2.3(a) and unless Lessor notifies Lessee otherwise, Lessee shall make
such Return in a manner as will show the ownership of the Vehicle in Lessor. Lessee will prepare and file, or cause
to be prepared and filed, each Return on a proper and timely basis and upon Lessor's request, furnish a copy of such
Return to Lessor together with copies of billings, remittances, or other evidence satisfactory to Lessor of Lessee's
performance of its duties under this Section 2.3(a). In the event that the Lessor elects to make such Return, the
Lessee shall furnish promptly such data as the Lessor may require to prepare the Return and file it on a timely basis;
however, Lessee's time for remittance of such data shall not extend beyond 15 days from the date of Lessor's
request.

Any payment or reimbursement of any Imposition required to be made by the Lessee pursuant to this Section 2.3 (a)
shall be in an amount sufficient to restore Lessor to a position, after considering the effect of the receipt of such
payment by Lessor on its United States Federal income taxes, state and city taxes or franchise taxes based on net
income or the effect on other taxes, or reductions in taxes then or theretofore realized by Lessor or its affiliates (who
may file a consolidated, joint or combined tax return) as a result of this Section 2.3(a), that would maintain Lessor's
after tax rate of return on the same basis as would have been the case had such payment not been required.

ComTRAC Agreement 05/2019



Page 3 

ii.     Lessor (or, if Lessor files its Federal income tax returns as a member of an affiliated group, the group) shall 
not have sufficient income to benefit from the Depreciation;

iii.    Lessor shall voluntarily transfer legal title to the Vehicles or a portion thereof to anyone or shall dispose of or 
reduce its interest in the Vehicles and such transfer, disposition or reduction in interest (A) shall be the direct 
cause of such loss, (B) shall occur at any time when no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing and (C) 
shall not be pursuant to the written consent of Lessee; or

iv.   Lessee shall have paid Lessor the Early Termination Value of the Vehicles or portion thereof pursuant to 
Section 14 hereof.

2.4.  Federal Income Tax Benefit.

a.   Lessor confirms to Lessee, and Lessee acknowledges, that Lessor shall be the party entitled to claim the
"maximum allowable amount" of accelerated cost recovery deductions (Depreciation) as provided for in IRC Section
168 and other related IRC sections and the regulations thereunder available to Lessor because of Lessor's purchase
and ownership of the Vehicles leased hereunder. The term "maximum allowable amount" is not the reduced amount
of depreciation which Lessor may be required to claim pursuant to IRC Section 168(g) (and the regulations
thereunder) known as the "Alternative Depreciation System for Certain Property." Any act by the Lessee which would
cause the Lessor's Depreciation deduction to be determined (and therefore limited) by IRC Section 168(g) shall
constitute an act requiring indemnification to the Lessor as provided for under Section 2.4(b) of this Lease. Lessee
agrees that it shall not be entitled to, nor will it claim, such Depreciation. Lessee agrees that neither it nor any
corporation controlled by, in control of it, or under common control with it, directly or indirectly, will at any time take
any action or file any returns or other documents inconsistent with the foregoing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if
Lessor determines in its sole and absolute discretion that Lessor is not entitled to the foregoing federal income tax
benefits or that the legal position for properly claiming any of the federal income tax benefits is unclear (including, but
not limited to, the lease of a Vehicle identified in any Schedule 1-Certificate of Acceptance with a stated residual
amount or value that is less than 20% of the Selling Price of such Vehicle), Lessor will not claim such federal income
tax benefits and Lessee acknowledges that Lessee agrees to be bound by Lessor's corresponding adjustment to the
pricing or determination of the rent or other amounts due under the Lease with respect to such Vehicle.

b.   If (i) Lessor shall not be entitled for each of its taxable years (or portions thereof) during which this Lease is in
effect to full use of the maximum allowable amount of Depreciation, and (ii) such loss or reduction in the amount of
Depreciation (Loss) is not solely attributable to an act of Lessor as described in Section 2.4(c) hereof, then Lessee
shall pay to Lessor, as additional Rentals, a sum which, will be sufficient to give Lessor the same after tax cash flow
for such taxable year (or portion thereof) as is contemplated by this Lease and would have resulted had such
Depreciation been allowed to Lessor in the same amounts and at the same times such Depreciation would
otherwise have been allowed on the aforesaid basis, including any interest, additions to tax, penalties or other
charges which may be assessed by the United States Government or any other governmental body or agency
against Lessor in connection with such Loss. Any sum which shall be payable to Lessor due to such Loss, shall be
payable to Lessor together with interest thereon from the date of payment by Lessor to the date of reimbursement by
Lessee to Lessor, at the rate set forth in Section 14.2, on written demand made any time after payment of the
consequential additional income tax, interest, penalties and other charges.

c. Lessee shall not be required to pay to Lessor the amounts provided for in Section 2.4(b) with respect to the
Vehicles if the Loss is solely attributable to the occurrence of any of the following events:

i.      Lessor shall fail to claim the Depreciation in its income tax returns for the appropriate years, provided that the 
foregoing does not apply to any Depreciation not claimed because of a good faith determination made by Lessor 
based on the advice of its tax counsel that it is not properly allowable;

ComTRAC Agreement 05/2019



Page 4 

2.6.  Certification of Trade or Business Use. Lessee hereby warrants and certifies, under penalty of perjury that
(1) Lessee intends that more than 50 percent of the use of the Vehicles listed on the Schedule(s) 1, attached hereto
and made a part hereof, which are subject to this Lease, are to be in a trade or business of Lessee, and (2) that
Lessee has been advised that it will not be treated as the owner of the Vehicle(s) for Federal income tax purposes.

Lessee agrees that if it is later determined that certification given by Lessee does not meet the requirements of
Section 7701(h) of the IRC, or later published Federal regulations thereunder, Lessee will supply such certification at
that point in time that will comply.

d. Lessor agrees that if, in the opinion of Lessor's tax counsel, a bona fide claim to all or a portion of the
Depreciation (with respect to part or all of the Vehicles) exists in respect of which Lessee is required to pay additional
Rentals and interest to Lessor as above provided, Lessor shall, on request and at the expense of Lessee, take all
such legal or other appropriate action deemed reasonable by Lessor's tax counsel in order to sustain and collect
such claim. Lessor hereby agrees to notify Lessee of any proposed disallowance by any governmental body or
agency and, provided that Lessee has fully indemnified and secured Lessor to Lessor's reasonable satisfaction,
agrees that no settlement or compromise of any claim at any stage prior to final judicial determination of the matter
shall be made without Lessee's consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

In the event that this Lease is terminated prior to the time Lessee is obligated to pay additional Rentals with respect
thereto pursuant to this Section 2.4, then instead of paying such additional Rentals, Lessee shall pay to Lessor,
within 30 days after the date of a determination that a Loss has occurred and Lessor is not eligible to claim or retain
the Depreciation, or any portion thereof, an amount which, in the reasonable opinion of Lessor, will cause Lessor's
discounted after tax rate of return with respect to the Vehicles to be equal to Lessor's discounted after tax rate of
return that would have been available if Lessor had been entitled to the utilization of all or such portion of the
Depreciation which was not claimed or was disallowed or required to be recaptured, and on such date Lessee shall
also pay to Lessor the amount of any interest, additions to tax, penalties or other charges payable pursuant to any
laws of the United States or any state or local government or taxing authority in the United States, or under the laws
of any taxing authority or political or governmental subdivision of a foreign country by Lessor attributable to the
disallowance, recapture or loss of all or any portion of such Depreciation.

e.  Lessee agrees to keep and make available for inspection and copying by Lessor those records as will enable
Lessor to determine the fulfillment of the foregoing indemnity and the extent to which it is entitled to the benefit of the
maximum allowable amount as defined in Section 2.4(a) of Depreciation with respect to the Vehicles.

f. Reference in this Lease to specific sections of the IRC shall be deemed to mean the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended, and to include comparable sections or provisions of any successor laws.

2.5.   Survivability. In the event that, during the continuance of this Lease, Lessee becomes liable for the payment
or reimbursement of any Impositions or Loss pursuant to Sections 2.3 and 2.4, such liability shall continue,
notwithstanding by expiration of this Lease, until all such amounts are paid or reimbursed by Lessee.

ComTRAC Agreement 05/2019



Page 5

See Attachment I of this Lease which must be separately signed by the Lessee pursuant to IRC Section 
7701(h)(2)(C).

SECTION 3. OWNERSHIP AND MARKING OF THE EQUIPMENT.

SECTION 4. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES.

Lessee acknowledges and agrees (i) that each Vehicle is of a design, capacity and manufacture satisfactory to
Lessee, (ii) that Lessor is neither a manufacturer nor a dealer in such property, and (iii) THAT LESSEE LEASES
THE VEHICLES "AS IS" AND THAT LESSOR HAS NOT MADE, AND DOES NOT HEREBY MAKE, ANY
REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OR COVENANT, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO
ANY VEHICLE'S COMPLIANCE WITH ANY LAW, REGULATION, OR SPECIFICATION; FITNESS FOR ANY
PARTICULAR PURPOSE; MERCHANTABILITY; DESIGN; CONDITION; QUALITY; DURABILITY; OR
SUITABILITY FOR THE PURPOSES AND USES OF LESSEE. LESSOR, THEREFORE, SHALL NOT BE LIABLE
FOR ANY DEFECT EITHER LATENT OR PATENT IN ANY VEHICLE OR FOR ANY DIRECT OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGE THEREFROM OR FOR ANY LOSS OF USE THEREOF OR FOR ANY
INTERRUPTION IN LESSEE'S BUSINESS CAUSED BY ITS INABILITY TO USE ANY VEHICLE.

2.7. Abatement or Set Off. Lessee shall not be entitled to any abatement or reduction of Rentals including, but not
limited to, those due to any present or future claim of Lessee against the selling dealer, lease facilitator, or Lessor
hereunder, or otherwise (unless due to the breach hereof by Lessor, or its negligence, fault or willful misconduct) or
against the manufacturer of a Vehicle; nor, except as otherwise expressly provided herein, shall this Lease
terminate, or the respective obligations of Lessor or Lessee be otherwise affected by, (i) the taking or requisitioning
of any Vehicle by condemnation or otherwise, (ii) the lawful prohibition of Lessee's use of any Vehicle or (iii) the
interference with such use by any private person or corporation unless such taking, prohibition or interference is
solely attributable to the negligence, fault or willful misconduct of Lessor, it being the intention of the parties hereto
that the Rentals and other amounts payable by Lessee hereunder shall continue to be payable in all such events
unless the obligation to pay the same shall be terminated pursuant to Section 11 hereof, or until the Vehicles are
surrendered pursuant to Section 14 hereof, or as otherwise specified herein.

It is mutually agreed that Lessor or its successors or assigns is the owner and titleholder of Vehicles. Lessee
acknowledges and agrees that it has not, and by the execution hereof it does not have or obtain, and by payments
and performance hereunder it does not and will not have or obtain, any title to the Vehicles nor any property right or
interest, legal or equitable therein, except solely as Lessee hereunder for the term hereof and subject to all the terms
and conditions contained herein.

Lessee shall remove all signs or lettering on vehicles returned to Lessor pursuant to Section 15 hereof. Lessee will
pay all costs incurred to remove same and to effect repairs required as a result of the removal.

ComTRAC Agreement 05/2019



Page 6

SECTION 6. INSURANCE.

i.

             or

ii. For vehicles over 10,000 lbs. GVW:  
$1,000,000 CSL
          or

$1,000,000 Umbrella coverage.

$50,000 for property damage, $100,000 for bodily injuries to any one person, and $300,000 for 
bodily injuries for any one accident              

b. Comprehensive and collision insurance covering the full insurable value of each Vehicle with a deductible
not to exceed $1,000.

SECTION 5. INDEMNIFICATION.

Lessee agrees to assume liability for, and does hereby agree to indemnify, protect, save and keep harmless
Lessor and its respective successors, assigns, legal representatives, agents and servants ("Indemnified
Persons") from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, taxes which are
covered respectively in Sections 2.3 and 2.4, claims (including, without limitation, claims involving strict or
absolute liability), actions, suits, costs, expenses and disbursements (including, without limitation, legal fees
and expenses) of any kind and nature whatsoever ("Claims") which may be imposed on, incurred or
asserted against, any Indemnified Person, in any way relating to or arising out of this Lease or any
document contemplated hereby, or the performance by Lessee or enforcement against Lessee of any of the
terms hereof, or in any way relating to or arising out of meeting eligibility requirements for participation in
manufacturer sponsored repurchase and/or fleet incentive programs, the manufacture, purchase,
acceptance, rejection, ownership, delivery, lease, sublease, possession, use, operation, maintenance,
condition, or registration of any Vehicle or any accident in connection therewith (including, without limitation,
latent and other defects, whether or not discoverable and any Claim for patent, trademark or copyright
infringement); provided, however, that Lessee shall not be required to indemnify any Indemnified Person for
any Claim resulting from acts which would constitute the willful misconduct or fault or negligence of such
Indemnified Person. Lessee agrees that, subject to the provisions of this Lease, no Indemnified Person shall
be liable to Lessee for any Claim caused directly or indirectly by the inadequacy of any Vehicle for any
purpose or any deficiency or defect therein or the use or maintenance thereof or any repair, servicing or
adjustment thereto or any delay in providing or failure to provide such or any interruption or loss of service or
use thereof or any loss of business, all of which shall be the risk and responsibility of Lessee. The rights and
indemnities of each Indemnified Person hereunder are expressly made for the benefit of, and shall be
enforceable by, each Indemnified Person notwithstanding the fact that such Indemnified Person is no longer
a party to this Lease.

Lessee will at its sole cost and expense, maintain or cause to be maintained insurance coverage as follows:

a. Bodily injury and property damage liability insurance to cover accidents arising out of the maintenance or
use of each Vehicle. The minimum requirements unless otherwise notified by Lessor in writing are:

For vehicles up to 10,000 lbs. GVW: 
$500,000 combined single limit ("CSL")

Notice  for  Rhode  Island  Lessees:  Liability  insurance  or  self-insurance  provided  by  Lessor  
providing  coverage  or  liability protection for third party liability claims arising out of the operation of 
any Vehicle will not be primary. Liability insurance that Lessee obtains will be primary.

ComTRAC Agreement 05/2019



Page 7

SECTION 7. USE OF THE EQUIPMENT.

All policies of insurance shall be written by insurers acceptable to Lessor, reflect Lessor and any assignee referred to
in Section 13 as additional insureds and loss payees and provide for a 30-day written notice to Lessor of any
cancellation or reduction of coverage's, unless otherwise approved by Lessor. All such insurance shall cover both the
interest of Lessee, Lessor and any assignee referred to in Section 13 of which Lessee has notice and shall provide
that losses, if any, shall be payable to such insureds as their respective interests may appear. Lessee shall furnish
Lessor with satisfactory evidence of the maintenance of such insurance throughout the term hereof. Lessee shall
indemnify and hold Lessor and its successors and assigns harmless from any loss or damage occasioned by
Lessee's failure to maintain such insurance.

Absent a default hereunder, Lessee shall be entitled to the possession and use of the Vehicles in accordance with
the terms hereof. Lessee agrees that the Vehicles will be used solely by Lessee in the conduct of its business in the
United States and Canada and by sub lessees approved in writing by Lessor and that:

a.   Lessee shall permit only licensed operators to operate the Vehicle and shall cause said operators to operate the
Vehicle(s) with reasonable care and diligence.

b.  No Vehicle will be (i) used in violation of any Federal, state or municipal statute, law or ordinance, or contrary to
the provisions of any applicable insurance policy; (ii) modified, altered or changed in any manner whatsoever; or (iii)
used or operated in Mexico.

Lessee shall indemnify and hold Lessor and its successors and assigns harmless from any and all fines, forfeitures,
seizures, claims, damages, or penalties resulting from the violation or breach of any of the above.

c.  No Vehicle shall be physically located outside the limits of the United States more than thirty (30) days of any
calendar year it is leased hereunder. Lessee shall keep such records as necessary to verify the proportion of time
any Vehicle is located outside of the United States and such records shall be made available to Lessor for copying
and/or inspection, upon Lessor's request, in order for Lessor to determine compliance with this Section 7 (c) and to
enable Lessor to determine the fulfillment of any indemnity under Sections 2.3 and 2.4 hereof.

d.  Lessee shall be liable to Lessor for all losses, damages, expenses and all costs, including reasonable attorney's
fees, which Lessor may incur as a result of or arising out of the conversion, sale or concealment of any Vehicle by
Lessee.

e.  Lessee shall furnish Lessor with such information as may be reasonably requested by Lessor to evaluate the
creditworthiness of any proposed sub lessee. The sub lease shall be acceptable in form to Lessor.

f.    Lessee will not permit its rights or interests hereunder to be subject to any lien, charge or encumbrance other
than the rights of Lessee's customers.

g. Lessee will keep each Vehicle free and clear of any and all liens, charges and encumbrances which may be
levied against or imposed upon it as a result of the failure of Lessee for any reason to perform or observe any of the
covenants and agreements required to be performed or observed by Lessee hereunder.

ComTRAC Agreement 05/2019



Page 8

SECTION 10. INSPECTION.

SECTION 11. CASUALTY OCCURRENCES AND SETTLEMENT THEREFOR.

In the event that any Vehicle has become lost, stolen, destroyed, or in the opinion of Lessee, has become irreparably
damaged ("Casualty Occurrence"), Lessee shall promptly and fully inform the Lessor thereof within a reasonable
time on its discovery thereof and shall pay Lessor, on the due date of the next installment of Rental following the
Casualty Occurrence, an amount equal to the applicable Casualty Value of such Vehicle. The Casualty Value for
each Vehicle shall be equal to the following: (1) the vehicle’s residual value set forth in the applicable Schedule 1;
plus (2) the monthly Total Monthly Payment for the Vehicle set forth in the applicable Schedule 1 times the number
of Total Monthly Payments for the Vehicle not yet due; plus (3) any unpaid, past due Total Monthly Payments for the
Vehicle; plus (4) any late charges, fees, charges or other amounts due under this Lease; minus (5) the unearned
component of the Total Monthly Payments for the Vehicle not yet due (the “Unearned Charges”); and minus (6) any
proceeds received by Lessor from any sale of the Vehicle, net of any expenses expended or incurred in the
recovery, storage, rental, transportation or sale of the Vehicle. The Unearned Charges shall be calculated by Lessor
in its sole discretion, and Lessee agrees Lessor’s determination of the amount of such Unearned Charges shall be
final and binding on the Lessee.

Lessor shall provide all necessary documentation to transfer ownership to Lessee, including bills of sale and
certificates of title. If Lessee has made rental payments for periods after the date of a Casualty Occurrence, Lessor
shall credit such payments against Lessee's responsibility hereunder. Upon payment of the Casualty Value for a
Vehicle, the Lease shall terminate with respect to such Vehicle and no further rents shall be payable therefor. All
remaining right, title and interest in and to such Vehicle shall vest in the Lessee.

SECTION 9. MAINTENANCE AND COST OF OPERATION.

SECTION 8. FINANCING : ASSIGNMENT.

Lessee covenants that it will not make, permit, or suffer to exist any mortgages, liens, encumbrances, or
indebtedness on the Units, other than those given by Lessor, and Lessee hereby subordinates its rights hereunder to
the lien of any financing source arising from said indebtedness.

EXCEPT AS HEREIN SPECIFICALLY PERMITTED, LESSEE WILL NEITHER (I) SUBLEASE, RENT, ASSIGN,
GRANT A SECURITY INTEREST IN OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER LESSEE'S RIGHT TO USE ANY VEHICLE;
NOR (II) ASSIGN, GIVE A SECURITY INTEREST IN, OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER, IN ANY WAY, EITHER ANY
VEHICLE, LESSOR'S INTEREST UNDER THIS LEASE, OR LESSOR'S RESIDUAL INTEREST. LESSOR, UPON
REQUEST, MAY GIVE PRIOR CONSENT IN WRITING TO A TRANSFER. ANY TRANSFER WITHOUT SUCH
CONSENT SHALL BE INEFFECTIVE.

Lessee agrees, during the term of this Lease, to maintain and keep (or cause its sub lessees to maintain and keep)
each Vehicle in good operating order, repair and condition and, in this connection, shall pay for all expenses
incurred in the operation of any Vehicle including gasoline, oil, repairs, maintenance, tires, storage, parking, tow,
licensing and title fees and any other expenses incidental to the use and operation of the Vehicle. Any expenses
incurred by Lessor in discharging Lessee's obligations under this Section 9 shall be payable by Lessee.

Lessor shall have the right, but not the duty, to inspect any Vehicles. Upon the request of Lessor, Lessee or any sub
lessee shall confirm to Lessor the location, mileage and condition of each Vehicle and shall, at any reasonable time,
make each Vehicle and all records pertaining thereto available to Lessor for inspection.

ComTRAC Agreement 05/2019



Page 9

SECTION 12. LESSEE'S ACCOUNT.

SECTION 13. ASSIGNMENT.

b.  Lessee shall make or permit any unauthorized assignment or transfer hereof and shall fail or refuse to cause
same to be canceled by agreement of all parties having any interest therein within 15 days after notice from Lessor to
Lessee demanding such cancellation;

c.   Lessee fails to observe or perform any other material covenant, condition, agreement or provision hereof,
including, but not limited to, Vehicle marking (Section 3), insurance (Section 6), usage (Section 7), and maintenance
(Section 9), and such default shall continue for more than 30 days after written notice thereof from Lessor to Lessee;

d.   If any representation or warranty made by Lessee herein, or in any statement or certificate furnished hereunder
including but not limited to applications for eligibility under any manufacturer sponsored repurchase program or fleet
incentive program proves untrue in any material respect as of the date of the issuance thereof and shall not be made
good within 30 days after notice thereof from Lessor to Lessee;

The book value of each Vehicle shall be determined as follows: the Capitalized Cost as set forth in the Schedule 1 in
which it is identified less the total reserve for depreciation. The balance so obtained shall be the book value of such
Vehicle. If the net sale price of the Vehicle exceeds such book value, Lessor shall issue a rental adjustment to
Lessee for the difference. If the net sale price of the Vehicle is less than such book value, Lessor shall bill and
Lessee shall pay to Lessor the difference, as a rent adjustment to the depreciation account.

It is anticipated that Lessee will sell Vehicles on behalf of Lessor promptly upon expiration of this Lease with respect
thereto. If Lessee does not so sell a Vehicle, Lessor will sell it at wholesale as soon as possible after the expiration or
cancellation of this Lease with respect thereto and determine the rental adjustment in accordance with the provisions
of this Section. Such rental adjustment shall be paid by the responsible party within 30 days after the date Lessor
sells such Vehicles. If Lessee does not sell the Vehicles on behalf of Lessor, recognizing that the Lessor shall incur
various transportation, storage and other expenses associated with disposition of the Vehicles, Lessee agrees that
the net sale price of the Vehicles shall be reduced by $250 for each Vehicle ($500 for Medium duty trucks) disposed
of by Lessor.

a.   Lessee shall fail to make payment to Lessor of any amount due hereunder and such default shall continue for
more than 10 business days after the due date thereof;

(a) This Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of any security or other assignee of Lessor and the
successors and assigns of any such assignee, and Lessee and its successors and, to the extent permitted hereby, its
assigns.

(b) Lessee agrees that it will not, without the prior written consent of Lessor assign this Lease or any of its rights
hereunder to any other party. Any purported assignment in violation of this Section shall be void and of no force and
effect.

(c) Lessor may assign this Lease to any person at any time, without the consent of or notice to Lessee. AB and AFI
may assign their rights and obligations hereunder with respect to the lease of a specific Vehicle (or Vehicles) to the
other at any time without the consent of or notice to Lessee.

SECTION 14. EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES THEREFOR

14.1. Events of Default. Any one or more of the following shall constitute an event of default ("Event of Default") as
that term is used herein:

ComTRAC Agreement 05/2019



Page 10

e.   Lessee becomes insolvent or bankrupt or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as they may mature, or
makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or applies for or consents to the appointment of a trustee or receiver
for Lessee or for a major part of its property;

f.   A trustee or receiver is appointed for Lessee or for a major part of its property and is not discharged within 30
days after such appointment; or

g.   Bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, liquidation or any other proceeding for relief under any bankruptcy or
similar law for the relief of debtors, is instituted by or against Lessee, and allowed, consented to or not dismissed
within 30 days after such institution.

c.  Terminate this Lease and/or any right of possession under this Lease, whereupon all rights and interest of Lessee
to the Vehicle(s) shall cease and terminate (but Lessee shall remain liable as hereinafter provided); and thereupon,
Lessor may by its agents peaceably enter upon any premises where any Vehicle may be located and take
possession thereof and thereafter hold, possess and enjoy the same free from any right to Lessee, or its successor
or assigns, to use such Vehicle for any purpose whatever; but Lessor shall, nevertheless, have a right to recover
from Lessee any and all amounts then due under this Lease and also to recover forthwith from Lessee (i) as
damages for the loss of bargain and not as a penalty and in lieu of any further claim for rent accruing from and after
the date of such termination, an amount equal to the following for each Vehicle: (1) the Vehicle’s residual value set
forth in Schedule 1; plus (2) the monthly Total Monthly Payment for the Vehicle set forth in Schedule 1 times the
number of Total Monthly Payments for the Vehicle not yet due; plus (3) any unpaid, past due Total Monthly Payments
for the Vehicle; plus (4) any late charges, fees, charges or other amounts due under this Lease allocable to the
Vehicle; plus (5) the applicable $250.00 or $500.00 disposal fee required under Section 15; minus (6) the unearned
component of the Total Monthly Payments of the Vehicle not yet due (the “Unearned Charges”); and minus (7) any
proceeds received by Lessor from any sale of the Vehicle, net of any expenses expended or incurred in the seizure,
storage, transportation, rental, reconditioning or sale of the Vehicle. The Unearned Charges shall be calculated by
Lessor in its sole discretion, and Lessee agrees Lessor’s determination of the amount of such Unearned Charges
shall be final and binding on the Lessee; (ii) any damages and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, in
addition thereto which Lessor shall have sustained by reason of the breach of any covenant or covenants of this
Lease, other than for the payment of rent, together with reasonable sums for attorney’s fees and such expenses as
shall be expended or incurred in the seizure, storage, rental or sale of any Vehicle or in the enforcement of any right
or privilege under this Lease or any schedules, guaranties, supplements, documents, agreements, instruments,
filings, certificates, opinions or assurances evidencing or relating to this Lease or in any consultation or action is such
connection; and (iii) interest at 5% per vehicle per month (as defined in Section 2.2) as of the date of the Event of
Default, computed from the date payments were originally due Lessor or from the date of any expenditure
recoverable pursuant to this Section 14, to and including the date payments are made by Lessee. 

In the event that Lessee shall have knowledge of an Event of Default under this Lease, Lessee shall give telephonic
notice thereof (confirmed in writing) to Lessor within 1 business day of its acquisition of such knowledge.

14.2.  Remedies. When any Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, Lessor at its option may:

a.   Give notice to sub lessees to make their rental payments directly to Lessor, and thereafter collect such rentals
and give releases therefor and pay over to Lessee any proceeds remaining after deducting all amounts due Lessor
hereunder. Lessee hereby appoints Lessor its attorney in fact to collect such rental payments and otherwise enforce
the sub lease agreements after notice hereunder to the sub lessee;

b.   Proceed by appropriate court action or actions, either at law or in equity, to enforce performance by Lessee of
the applicable covenants and terms of this Lease or to recover damages for the breach hereof, including net after tax
losses of Federal and state income tax benefits to which Lessor would otherwise be entitled under this Lease and
interest on any and all amounts due hereunder; or

ComTRAC Agreement 05/2019



Page 11

SECTION 15. RETURN OF EQUIPMENT.

All notices (excluding billings and communications in the ordinary course of business) required under this Lease
shall be in writing, personally delivered, delivered by overnight courier service, sent by facsimile transmission (with
confirmation of receipt), or sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the other party at its
respective address identified herein or at such other address as such party shall from time to time designate in
writing to the other party; and shall be effective from the date of receipt. 

Each and every power and remedy hereby specifically given to Lessor shall be in addition to every other power and
remedy existing at law, in equity or in bankruptcy and each and every power and remedy may be exercised from time
to time and simultaneously and as often and in such order as may be deemed expedient by Lessor; provided,
however, that the measure of damages recoverable against Lessee shall in any case be calculated in accordance
with the above. All such powers and remedies shall be cumulative, and the exercise of one shall not be deemed a
waiver of the right to exercise any other. No delay or omission of Lessor in the exercise of any such power or remedy
and no renewal or extension of any payment due hereunder shall impair any such power or remedy or be construed
to be a waiver of any default or any acquiescence therein. Any extension of time for payment hereunder or other
indulgence duly granted to Lessee shall not otherwise alter or affect Lessor's rights or Lessee's obligations
hereunder. Lessor's acceptance of any payment after it shall have become due hereunder shall not be deemed to
alter or affect Lessee's obligations or Lessor's rights hereunder with respect to any subsequent payment or default
therein.

If Lessee does not sell a Vehicle on behalf of Lessor, Lessee shall promptly, and in no event later than 15 days after
the expiration of the lease term related thereto (including any extension hereof), at its own expense, return such
Vehicle to a location designated by Lessor in good condition without any missing part, damage, or excessive wear
and use. Excess wear is wear that is beyond normal wear and tear. Excess wear includes, but is not limited to: (a)
glass that is damaged or that Lessee tinted; (b) damaged or corroded body or trim; (c) damaged finish; (d) a torn,
damaged, or stained interior or trunk liner; (e) missing equipment or parts that were in or on the Vehicle when
delivered and not replaced with equipment of equal quality and design; (f) missing or unsafe wheels or tires and
those that are not of the same size and type the manufacturer recommends, including spare (recapped tires and
snow tires are unacceptable); (g) any tire with less than 1/8 inch of tread left at the shallowest point; (h) damaged or
worn brakes that do not meet government safety standards; (i) damaged frame, cross member or suspension; (j)
damaged or inadequately repaired, engine and/or powertrain components; (k) oil leaks or low oil pressure; (l)
improperly functioning instruments or electrical system, including battery and lights; (m) any mechanical damage or
other condition that makes the vehicle run in a noisy, rough, improper, unsafe, or unlawful way or that would cause
the vehicle to fail a government safety inspection; (n) improperly functioning attached specialized equipment, and (o)
any other damage, whether or not insurance covers it. Such Vehicle upon return pursuant hereto, shall be subject to
a $250 termination fee ($500 for Medium duty trucks) and shall be free and clear of all mortgages, liens, security
interests, charges, encumbrances and claims except those arising through or under this Lease. If requested by
Lessor, Lessee agrees, at its sole cost and expense, to store Vehicles on property owned or leased by it for a period
of 45 days from the applicable Lease expiration date.

SECTION 16. GOVERNING LAW.

This Lease shall be governed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan.

SECTION 17. NOTICES.

ComTRAC Agreement 05/2019



Page 12

Ally Financial Inc. 

                           (Lessor)
BY:

TITLE:

                 Authorized Representative      

Ally Bank

                         (Lessor)

BY:

TITLE:

                 Authorized Representative      

e.   This Lease may be signed in counterparts, each of which is deemed an original and all of which taken together
constitute one and the same agreement.

SECTION 18. AMENDMENTS AND MISCELLANEOUS.

a.   The terms hereof shall not be waived, altered, modified, amended, supplemented or terminated in any manner
whatsoever except by written instrument signed by Lessor. No oral changes are binding.

b.   All agreements, representations and warranties contained herein, and in any certificate or other instrument
delivered pursuant hereto shall survive the execution and delivery of this Lease and the expiration or other
termination hereof.

c.   Any provision hereof which may be determined by competent authority to be prohibited or unenforceable in any
jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, only be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without
invalidating the remaining provisions hereof.

d.   This Lease shall constitute an agreement of lease and nothing herein shall be construed as conveying to Lessee
any right, title or interest in or to any Vehicle except as lessee only.

BY:

TITLE:

f.   Lessor has the right, in Lessor’s sole discretion, to use an electronic signature (including the right to insert the
name of the person executing this Lease on behalf of Lessor in Lessor’s signature block using an electronic
signature) (“Electronic Signature”) to sign this Lease and all schedules now or hereafter attached hereto (including all
Schedule 1’s) and in this event, this Lease will not include an original ink signature from Lessor. This Lease, if
executed by Lessor using an Electronic Signature, will be binding on Lessor as if this Lease had been originally
executed by Lessor with an ink signature. Lessee does not have the right to use an Electronic Signature and this
Lease and all schedules now or hereafter attached hereto must be originally executed by Lessee using an ink
signature.

SECTION 19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This document constitutes the entire agreement between the parties concerning the lease of Vehicles. There are no
other understandings except those contained herein. No course of performance may be used to determine the
meaning of the agreement between the parties or evidence a change to any term hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lease to be executed by their respective officers
thereunto duly authorized and their corporate seals to be hereto affixed.

Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc.

                                      (Lessee)

WARNING FOR NEW YORK LESSEES: Important consumer protections may not apply if this agreement 
indicates that you are leasing the vehicle primarily for agricultural, business or commercial use.

ComTRAC Agreement 05/2019

yolanda
Rejected



Page 13

undersigned Lessee, dated as of  October 5, 2020

to Lessee, tested and inspected by Lessee, found to be in good order and accepted as Vehicles under the Lease, on the date indicated below.

Vehicle Information Vehicle #1 Vehicle #2 Vehicle #3 Vehicle #4 Vehicle #5 Totals

Application Number 1096765410

Lessor (AFI or AB) * AB AB AB AB AB

Year 2020 

Make Nissan

Model NV2500 HR SV V6

Vehicle ID Number 1N6BF0LY2LN810176

Term (months) 12 

Dealer Installed Option(s) $0.00 

Total Selling Price $40,090.93 $40,090.93 

Administrative Fee $250.00 $250.00 

Negative Equity $0.00 $0.00 

Mech/Service 
Agreement/Tax/Fees

$611.75 $611.75 

To Dealer For GAP $0.00 $0.00 

Total Cap Cost Reduction(s) $4,000.00 $4,000.00 

Net Capitalized Cost $36,952.68 $36,952.68 

Residual: % 0%

Residual: $ $1.00 $1.00 

Basic Rent $3,146.51 $3,146.51 

*Sales/Use Tax (Est.) $0.00 $0.00 

*Personal Property Tax (Est.) $0.00 $0.00 

Total Monthly Payment $3,146.51 $3,146.51 

Title/License/Reg. Fees $0.00 $0.00 

Tax on Cap Cost Red. $0.00 $0.00 

Tire Tax Fee $0.00 $0.00 

Initial Amounts Due $7,146.51 $7,146.51 

Street Address:  

City, State, ZIP:  

SCHEDULE 1 - CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

Under that ComTRAC Lease Agreement (Lease) between Ally Financial Inc. ("AFI"), Ally Bank ("AB") (each of AFI and AB, a Lessor) and the 

. Lessee  hereby certifies that the vehicle(s) listed below has (have) been 
d li d

By signing below, Lessee acknowledges that they will remain liable for the final property tax bill, even if the lease ends before Lessor receives the final tax bill.

Monthly Payment - Lessor should include an estimated amount for the Personal Property Taxes in my monthly payments. At lease termination, Lessor 
will reconcile the actual bills against the amount I paid toward the taxes. Lessor will then add that sum to any amounts owed to me at lease termination if 
a surplus exists or bill me if any additional funds are owed. Any funds still owed for property taxes (and any associated use/excise tax) are due and 
payable when I receive the Lessor billing.

Annual Payment - Lessor will bill me annually after Lessor receives a tax bill from the taxing jurisdiction(s). Property Taxes (and any associated 
use/excise tax) are due and payable upon my receipt of a bill from Lessor.

Vehicle Garaging Information:

*Tax amounts are estimates.

My Lease states that I am responsible for all taxes associated with the above Vehicle(s) (except the Lessor's net income taxes). If Personal Property Taxes are applicable to any of the 
Vehicles, I have indicated below the method for the billing and payment of Personal Property taxes that I want Lessor to apply in connection with my Lease.

2730 N Highway 360

Grand Prairie, TX  75050

Schedule 1 05/2019



Page 14

ALLY FINANCIAL INC.:

Capitalized Cost 
Reductions

4,000.00$            
Accepted by:

Cash -$                     3,146.51$                    

Trade -$                     -$                            Title: 

Rebate 4,000.00$            4,000.00$                                          Authorized Representative

Refundable Security 
Deposit

-$                      Address:  2911 Lake Vista Drive, Lewisville, TX  75067 

First Monthly Lease 
Payment(s)

$3,146.51

License/Registration 
Fee(s)

-$                     ALLY BANK:

Sales Tax -$                     Accepted by:

Tire Tax Fee -$                     Title: 

Personal Property Tax -$                                                     Authorized Representative

Other (Tax on Cap 
Reduction(s))

-$                      Address:  2911 Lake Vista Drive, Lewisville, TX  75067 

Totals 7,146.51$            7,146.51$                    LESSEE:

Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc.

By:

Title:

Date of Acceptance:

October 5, 2020

5 of each month for the term of each lease agreement

Initial Amounts Due (Total of all lease 
agreements) How Initial Amounts 

Due will be Paid

The Rental Payment Date will be on day

Schedule 1 05/2019

yolanda
Rejected



Page 15

I (We), Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc.

Lessee

Lessee signature

Lessee Certification of Trade or Business Use and Verification of Notice of 
Disallowance (Loss) of Tax Ownership Treatment

Vehicle(s) made subject to this Certification is included in the Lease (Schedule(s) 1) and is incorporated into 

this Certification by reference.

 (Lessee) hereby

Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc.

By:

Title:

certify under penalty of perjury, (1) the Lessee intends that more than 50 percent of the use of Vehicles which

are subject to a ComTRAC SM Lease Agreement (Lease) with Ally Financial Inc. ("AFI"), Ally Bank ("AB") 

(each of AFI and AB, a "Lessor"), dated as of: October 5, 2020

as an owner of the Vehicle(s) subject to the Lease for Federal income tax purposes.  A description of the

is to be in a trade or business of the Lessee, and (2) that the Lessee has advised that it will not be treated

Lessee Cert 05/2019 Attachment I

yolanda
Rejected



Page 16

Ally - Insurance Information Form

1 - LESSEE

Lessee Name

TX 75050

CITY STATE ZIP CODE

Multiple Leases

Agency

Street Address

Flat Cancellation Replaces Lease

City Zip Code

Substitution of Vehicle

State

AGENCY CONTACT - FIRST INITIAL AND LAST NAME AGENCY PHONE NUMBER

Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc.

INSURED-MUST BE NAMED ON LEASE FIRST NAME, LAST NAME

INSURANCE COMPANY POLICY NUMBER

EFFECTIVE DATE EXPIRATION DATE

Lessee's Signature Date

ComTRAC Lease Insurance Verification

Grand Prairie

Agency Address Internal Use Only

Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc.

October 5, 2020

Vehicle Leasing II, LP dba D&M Leasing

Lease Facilitator/Dealer

I agree to maintain insurance as described in the "Coverage Requirements" section below and as required by my vehicle lease 
agreement.

I understand that coverages as described must be maintained until termination of the vehicle lease agreement, and agree that 
Ally or PDP Services may request  proof of such insurance.

I understand that failure to keep such insurance in force will be an event of default under the vehicle lease agreement, entitling 
Ally to take action under the lease.  I also acknowledge receipt of a copy of this Agreement and authorize the agent to place 
coverages as required.

 

Ins Verif 05/2019

yolanda
Rejected



Page 17

2-COVERAGE REQUIREMENTS

COVERAGE 
LIMITS

PASSENGER CAR/LIGHT 
DUTY TRUCK

OVER 10,000 lbs. GVW SPECIALITY VEHICLES*

Liability: $500,000 Combined Single Limit $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit

or $100,000/$300,000/$50,000 or $1,000,000 Umbrella Coverage Combined Single Limit

Comprehensive/ 
Collision:

$1,000 Deductible (maximum) $1,000 Deductible (maximum)

*As Designated By Ally

Endorsement Name - To be completed by Lease Facilitator/Dealer

ALLY FINANCIAL AND ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS NAMED

"Additional Insured" and "Loss Payee" endorsements as specified in the section with the mailing address below.

ENDORSEMENT MAILING ADDRESS

3 - COLLATERAL

VEHICLE INFORMATION - VIN NUMBER

VEHICLE 1:  1N6BF0LY2LN810176

VEHICLE 2:

VEHICLE 3:

VEHICLE 4:

VEHICLE 5:

YES OR NO Liability Confirmed Person Contacted at Agency:

YES OR NO Comprehensive Confirmed LF/Dealer Verification By:

YES OR NO Collision Confirmed Date:  

YES OR NO Endorsements Confirmed
Lease Facilitator/Dealer Name:

Vehicle Leasing II, LP dba D&M Leasing

YES OR NO PDP Address Confirmed Telephone Number:

Circle Yes or No

4 - AGENT

Please attach a Certificate of Insurance to this form, including the coverages and endorsements noted in Section 2 and as authorized by the insured in Section 1.

This certificate should then be mailed to Ally, PO Box 8105, Cockeysville, MD  21030-8105. Failure to include coverages and endorsements as required or failure to 
use this notification address above will result in processing delays and may result in additional requests for information. 

 ALLY FINANCIAL AND ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS NAMED

PO Box 8105

Cockeysville, MD  21030

It is imperative that this address be used for all 
insurance notifications:

Ins Verif 05/2019



Page 18

(a)

(b)

1.

2.

3.

the prompt performance by Lessee of all of its covenants and agreements in the Agreement (the obligations described in
clauses (a) and (b), collectively, the “Guaranteed Obligations”).

Agreement of Guaranty
This Agreement of Guaranty is executed and delivered in favor of Ally Financial Inc, (“AFI”) and/or Ally Bank (“AB”) (each 
of AFI and AB, and their successors and assigns, a "Lessor"), in connection with that certain ComTRAC Lease 

Agreement dated as of October 5, 2020

(the “Lease Agreement”) by and between Lessor and Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc.

("Lessee"), pursuant to which Lessee has leased certain motor vehicles from Lessor (the “Vehicles”), which lease is evidenced by
the Lease Agreement, (the Lease Agreement and any exhibits or schedules thereto, the terms and conditions incorporated into the
Lease Agreement, and all other documents, instruments, certificates and other agreements relating thereto being herein collectively
referred to as the "Agreement").

In order to induce Lessor to enter into the Agreement, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned ("Guarantor") hereby UNCONDITIONALLY GUARANTEES:

the prompt payment of all of the payment obligations in the Agreement (including, but not limited to payment of all costs,
expenses and attorney fees incurred by the Lessor thereunder); and

Guarantor waives to the fullest extent permitted by law: (a) any right to require Lessor to: (i) proceed against Lessee or any
other party liable for any Guaranteed Obligation; (ii) proceed against or exhaust any security for the Guaranteed Obligations;
(iii) pursue any other remedy in Lessor's power whatsoever; or (iv) notify Guarantor of any default by Lessee in the payment of
any sums required to be paid pursuant to the Agreement or in the performance of any term, covenant of condition therein
required to be kept, observed or performed by Lessee, (b) any defense arising by reason of any disability or other defense of
Lessee or any other party liable for any Guaranteed Obligation, (c) any lack of authority of Lessee with respect to the
Agreement, (d) the invalidity, illegality or lack of enforceability of the Agreement from any cause whatsoever, (e) the failure of
Lessor to perfect or maintain perfection of any interest in any collateral, (f) the cessation from any cause whatsoever of the
liability of Lessee, (g) the benefit of any statute of limitations affecting the Guarantor’s liability hereunder, and (h) any and all
other defenses or benefits that may be derived from or afforded by applicable law limiting the liability of or exonerating
guarantors or sureties, other than the defense that the Guaranteed Obligations have been fully performed and indefeasibly paid
in full in cash. This Guaranty and Guarantor's payment obligations hereunder shall continue to be effective or be reinstated, as
the case may be, if at any time payment of any of the Lessee’s payment obligations under the Lease Agreement is rescinded or
must otherwise be restored or returned by Lessor, all as though such payment had not been made. Lessor's good faith
determination as to whether a payment must be restored or returned shall be binding on Guarantor. Until the payment and
performance in full of all of the Lessee’s payment obligations under the Lease Agreement, Guarantor waives and shall have no
right of subrogation against Lessee or any other party liable for any Guaranteed Obligation, and waives any right to enforce any
remedy which Lessor now has or may hereafter have against Lessee, and waives any benefit of, and any right to participate in,
any security now or hereafter held by Lessor. Guarantor waives all presentments, demands for performance, notices of non-
performance, protests, notices of dishonor, and all other notices or demands of any kind or nature whatsoever with respect to
the Guaranteed Obligations, and all notices of acceptance of this Guaranty or of the existence, creation or incurrence of new or
additional Guaranteed Obligations.

This Guaranty is a guaranty of payment and performance and is not merely a guaranty of collection.

This Guaranty is a continuing one and shall terminate only upon full payment of all sums due under the Agreement and the
performance of all of the terms, covenants and conditions therein required to be kept, observed or performed by Lessee,
whether to be performed before or after the last payment has been made under the Agreement.

Guarantor authorizes Lessor, with Lessee’s consent where required, without notice or demand, and without affecting its liability
hereunder, from time to time to: (a) change the amount, time or manner of payment of the sums required to be paid pursuant to
the Agreement; (b) change any of the terms, covenants, conditions or provisions of the Agreement; (c) amend, modify, change
or supplement the Agreement; (d) assign the Agreement or the sums payable under the Agreement; (e) consent to Lessee's
assignment of the Agreement; (f) receive and hold security for the payment of this Guaranty or the performance of the
Agreement, and exchange, enforce, waive and release any such security; and (g) apply such security and direct the order or
manner of sale thereof as Lender in its sole discretion may determine.

ComTRAC Guar (exc KY) 05/2019



Page 19

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10. Except as set forth herein, the Lessor has made no promises to Lessee or the Guarantor to induce execution of this Guaranty. 
There are no other agreements or understandings, either oral or in writing, between the parties concerning this Guaranty. This 
Guaranty may only be amended by written agreement of the parties hereto. Any amendment, change or modification of this 
Guaranty shall be binding only if reduced to writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties and no waiver 
of any of its terms shall be effective otherwise. If any provision of this Guaranty is not valid or enforceable according to 
applicable law, all other provisions will remain enforceable.

Guarantor shall be liable for all attorneys' fees and other costs and expenses incurred by reason of any default or the exercise 
of Lessor's remedies hereunder and/or under the Agreement. 

In the event of a sale or assignment of the Agreement, Lessor may assign the benefits of this Guaranty without the consent of 
Guarantor. This Guaranty shall inure to the benefit of Lessor, its successors and assigns, and shall be binding upon the 
personal representatives and heirs to the Guarantor.

Should Guarantor assume control of and use the Vehicle(s) pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, Guarantor agrees to be 
bound by all terms of the Agreement and will sign a Certification of Trade or Business Use and Verification of Notice of 
Disallowance (Loss) of Tax Ownership treatment. Guarantor agrees that Vehicle(s) will be used more than 50% of the time for 
business or trade purposes and the Lessor will be treated as owner of any motor vehicle subject to such Lease Agreement for 
Federal income tax purposes.

The obligations of Guarantor hereunder are (x) those of primary obligor, and not merely as a surety, (y) independent of the 
obligations of Lessee and (z) joint and several with each other party that may be liable, directly or indirectly, for the payment or 
performance of any of the Guaranteed Obligations. A separate action or actions may be brought and prosecuted against 
Guarantor whether an action is brought against Lessee or any other party liable for any Guaranteed Obligation or whether 
Lessee or any other party liable for any Guaranteed Obligation be joined in any such action or actions.

GUARANTOR AGREES THAT THIS GUARANTY AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF LESSOR AND GUARANTOR 
HEREUNDER SHALL IN ALL RESPECTS BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE INTERNAL 
LAWS OF THE STATE IN WHICH THE GUARANTOR’S PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IS LOCATED (IF THE 
GUARANTOR IS AN ENTITY), OR THE GUARANTOR’S PRINCIPAL RESIDENCE IS LOCATED (IF THE GUARANTOR IS A 
NATURAL PERSON) WITHOUT REGARD TO THE CONFLICT OF LAWS PRINCIPLES OF SUCH STATE. Guarantor agrees 
that any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Guaranty may be commenced in any state or Federal court of 
competent jurisdiction in the State in which the Guarantor’s principal place of business is located (if the Guarantor is an entity), 
or the Guarantor’s principal residence is located (if the Guarantor is a natural person) and Guarantor submits to the jurisdiction 
of such court and agrees that a summons and complaint commencing an action or proceeding in any such court shall be 
properly served and shall confer personal jurisdiction if served personally or by certified mail to it at its address hereinafter set 
forth, or as it may provide in writing from time to time, and submits to personal jurisdiction in such courts.

GUARANTOR HEREBY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING TO WHICH GUARANTOR AND 
LESSOR MAY BE PARTIES ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY PERTAINING TO THIS GUARANTY OR THE AGREEMENT. 
IT IS HEREBY AGREED AND UNDERSTOOD THAT THIS WAIVER CONSTITUTES A WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY OF ALL 
CLAIMS AGAINST ALL PARTIES TO SUCH ACTIONS OR PROCEEDINGS, INCLUDING CLAIMS AGAINST PARTIES WHO 
ARE NOT PARTIES TO THIS GUARANTY. GUARANTOR AUTHORIZES LESSOR TO FILE THIS PROVISION WITH THE 
CLERK OR JUDGE OF ANY COURT HEARING SUCH CLAIM.

ComTRAC Guar (exc KY) 05/2019



Page 20

GUARANTOR:

Signature

(Witness) Print Name Print Name

Title

(Witness) Signature  SSN

Date

Address

City

(Witness) Address State

Zip

ALLY FINANCIAL INC.: ALLY BANK:

Accepted by:

Title:

Authorized Representative

Address:  2911 Lake Vista Drive, Lewisville, TX  75067Address:  2911 Lake Vista Drive, Lewisville, TX  75067

The guaranty may be signed in counterparts, each of which is deemed an original and all of which taken together constitute one and 
the same agreement. 

The Lessor has the right, in Lessor’s sole discretion, to use an electronic signature (including the right to insert the name of the
person executing this guaranty on behalf of Lessor in Lessor’s signature block using an electronic signature) (“Electronic Signature”)
to sign this guaranty and in this event, this guaranty will not include an original ink signature from Lessor. This guaranty, if executed
by Lessor using an Electronic Signature, will be binding as if this guaranty had been originally executed by Lessor with an ink
signature. Guarantor does not have the right to use an Electronic Signature and this guaranty must be originally executed by
Guarantor using an ink signature.  

Accepted by:

Title:

Authorized Representative

ComTRAC Guar (exc KY) 05/2019

yolanda
Typewritten Text
N/A



Page 21

Please utilize the following address for the monthly billing.

Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc.

2730 North Hwy 360

Grand Prairie, TX  75050

Billing Address 05/2019

yolanda
Rejected

yolanda
Line



I acknowledge that  

Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc. Vehicle Leasing II, LP dba D&M Leasing

Customer Name Lease Facilitator Name

Lease Facilitator’s Fee Confirmation

Date: 

Vehicle Leasing II, LP dba D&M Leasing

By: 

Name:

Title:

Date: 

the lease facilitator, has received or will receive a fee for facilitating this lease.

By: 

Name:

Title:

LFFEECONFIRM 05/2019

yolanda
Rejected



General Instructions

What is this form?

The financial institution may also ask to see a copy of a driver’s license or other identifying document for each beneficial owner 

listed on this form.

For Trusts, please provide a copy of the trust, or complete the Certificate of Trust Existence Addendum.  

For other non‐individual entities (i.e., holding companies), please complete the Holding Company Addendum.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF LEGAL ENTITY CUSTOMERS

To help the government fight financial crime, federal regulation requires certain financial institutions to obtain, verify, and 

record information about the beneficial owners of legal entity customers. Legal entities can be abused to disguise involvement 

in terrorist financing, money laundering, tax evasion, corruption, fraud, and other financial crimes. Requiring the disclosure of 

key individuals who ultimately own or control a legal entity (i.e., the beneficial owners) helps law enforcement investigate and 

prosecute these crimes.

This form must be completed by the person opening a new account on behalf of a legal entity.

Who has to complete this form?

For the purposes of this form, a legal entity includes a corporation, limited liability company, partnership, and any other similar 

business entity formed in the United States or a foreign country or a statutory trust.

What information do I have to provide?

This form requires you to provide the name, physical address, date of birth and social security number (or passport number or 

other similar information, in the case of Non‐U.S. Persons) for the following individuals (i.e., the beneficial owners and 

controlling party):

(i) Each individual, if any, who owns, directly or indirectly, 25 percent or more of the equity interests of the legal entity 

customer (e.g., each natural person that owns 25 percent or more of the shares of a corporation); and

(ii) An individual with significant responsibility for managing the legal entity customer (e.g., a Chief Executive Officer, Chief 

Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Managing Member, General Partner, President, Vice President or Treasurer).

yolanda
Highlight

yolanda
Highlight

yolanda
Highlight



yolanda
Highlight

yolanda
Highlight

yolanda
Highlight

yolanda
Highlight

yolanda
Highlight

yolanda
Highlight

yolanda
Rejected

yolanda
Highlight







yolanda
Rejected





yolanda
Rejected



yolanda
Rejected



L.  
Special 

Education 
Policies 

  



Admission, Review, and Dismissal (ARD) Committee – Page 1 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

Formatted: Font: 10 pt
Formatted: Font: 10 pt
Formatted: Font: 10 pt

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

Admission, Review, and Dismissal (ARD) Committee Meeting 
 

Purpose: The district is required to hold an Admission, Review, and Dismissal (ARD) 
committee meeting for each student that qualifies for special education and related services in 
accordance with the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). 

 
Through an ARD committee meeting Trinity Basin Preparatory will create an appropriate 
individual education program (IEP) in accordance with the IDEA and the IEP policy of Trinity 
Basin Preparatory. 

 
Statement of Policy: 

 
Admission, Review and Dismissal (ARD) Committee 

 

Before a student is enrolled in a special education program of Trinity Basin Preparatory, the 
district shall establish a committee composed of the persons required under 20 U.S.C. §1401(11) 
to develop the student’s IEP, including: 

1. Parent or Adult Student 
2. General education teacher of the student 
3. Special education teacher of the student 
4. A representative of Trinity Basin Preparatory that is knowledgeable about general 

education curriculum, knowledgeable about the availability of resources, and 
qualified to provide or supervise the provision of the specially designed instruction 
to meet the needs of the student with a disability; 

5. A person who can interpret instructional implications of evaluations. This may be 
one of the other members. 

6. At the discretion of the parent, Trinity Basin Preparatory may include other 
individuals who have knowledge or expertise regarding the student, including related 
services providers. 

7. Student, when 

appropriate. (19 TAC §89.1050(c)) 

A representative of the school’s Career and Technology Education (CTE) program is a required 
member of the ARD committee when considering initial and continuing placement of a student 
in CTE.  (TEC §29.005(a); 34 CFR §75.1023(d)(1); 20 USC §2301) 

 
Alternative Participation Methods 

 
If neither parent can attend an ARD committee meeting, Trinity Basin Preparatory must use other 
methods to ensure parent participation, including individual or conference telephone calls or other 
virtual means of participation.  20 U.S.C. 1414(f); 34 CFR 300.322(c). 
 
An ARD committee meeting may be conducted without a parent in attendance if Trinity Basin 

Formatted: Left:  1", Right:  1", Top:  1", Header
distance from edge:  0.5", Footer distance from edge: 
0.5"

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Justified



Admission, Review, and Dismissal (ARD) Committee – Page 2 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

Formatted: Font: 10 pt
Formatted: Font: 10 pt
Formatted: Font: 10 pt

Preparatory is unable to convince the parents that they should attend.  In such event, Trinity Basin 
Preparatory must keep a record of its attempts to arrange a mutually agreed time and place, such 
as: 
 

1. Detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of those calls; 
2. Copies of correspondence sent to the parents and any responses received; and  
3. Detailed records of visits made to the parent’s home or place of employment and the results 

of those visits. 
 
34 CFR 300.322(d). 

 
ARD Committee Member Absences and Excusal 

 

All members of a student’s ARD committee must be in attendance at a student’s ARD meeting, 
unless the member is not required, or is excused. 

 

Prior to an ARD meeting, a member of the committee may not be required to attend, in whole 
or in part, if the parent and Trinity Basin Preparatory agree in writing that the attendance of the 
member is not needed. 

 

During an ARD meeting, it is the policy of the Trinity Basin Preparatory to obtain consent from 
the parent or adult student before excusing a member from remaining at an ARD committee 
meeting. If a member is excused, it may be reflected in the deliberation notes. An ARD committee 
member should not be excused prior to addressing the member’s portion of the IEP. 

 
ARD Committee Meeting Notification 

 

Trinity Basin Preparatory will provide parent or adult student written notice of each scheduled 
ARD meeting at least 5 days prior to the meeting. The notice must designate who will be in 
attendance, the purpose of the meeting, location, time and what topics will be discussed. (19 
TAC 
§89.1015; 34 CFR §300.322) 

 
Annual ARD Committee 

 

For each student that receives special education and related services, an ARD committee 
meeting will be held periodically, but no less than annually to review and update the individual 
education program (IEP).  (34 CFR §§300.320; 300.324) 

 
A parent or Trinity Basin Preparatory may request an ARD committee meeting be held prior to 
the annual ARD meeting. If parent requests a meeting in writing, Trinity Basin Preparatory will 
schedule a meeting at a mutually agreed upon time and place, or provide notice within 5 school 
days explaining the school’s denial of the request.  (19 TAC §89.1050(e)) 

 
 
 

Formatted: Justified, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0"
Formatted: No underline

Deleted: ¶ ... [1]



Admission, Review, and Dismissal (ARD) Committee – Page 3 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

Formatted: Font: 10 pt
Formatted: Font: 10 pt
Formatted: Font: 10 pt

Reaching Closure and Consensus 
 

The ARD committee shall develop the IEP by agreement of the committee members or, if those 
persons cannot agree, by an alternate method provided by the Texas Education Agency. 
Majority vote may not be used to determine the IEP.  (TEC §29.005(b)) 

 
If the IEP is not developed by agreement, the ARD Committee must comply with the 
requirements of 19 TAC §1050(h) and ensure that the written statement of the program required 
under 20 U.S.C. 
§1401(11) includes the basis of the disagreement.  (TEC §29.005(c)). 

 
If the ARD meeting ends in disagreement, it is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to provide 
the parent with a recess. The recess shall not exceed 10 school days. During the recess, the 
committee members shall and the parent may gather additional information in order to help the 
committee reach consensus. If after 10 schools days consensus cannot be reached, Trinity Basin 
Preparatory shall implement the IEP that was determined to be appropriate for the student.  A 
written statement of the basis for the disagreement shall be included in the IEP.  The ARD 
committee members who disagree shall be offered the opportunity to write their own statements.   

 
A parent may waive the 10 days recess.  (19 TAC §89.1050) 

 
Through consensus of the ARD committee members, an ARD meeting may be recessed without 
reaching agreement or disagreement. 

 

Parent’s Native Language and Documentation 
 

If the student’s parent is unable to speak English, the district shall communicate with the parent 
in the parent’s native language or other mode of communication the parent uses in accordance 
with the school’s policy on use of parents’ native language. 

 
It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to translate the IEP for a Spanish-speaking parent. 
A translation may include a written translation of the IEP or a recording of a reading of the IEP 
in Spanish. A recording of the ARD meeting is not sufficient, unless all parts of the IEP are 
discussed and the translation is clearly audible on the recording. (TEC §29.005) 

 
Amendment without a 

Meeting 
 

After the annual admission, review and dismissal (ARD) meeting, changes to the IEP other than 
eligibility determinations, changes of placement, and manifestation determination reviews may 
be made either: 

 
 By the entire ARD committee; or 
 By amending the IEP rather than by redrafting the entire 

IEP. (34 CFR §300.324) 

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)



Admission, Review, and Dismissal (ARD) Committee – Page 4 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

Formatted: Font: 10 pt
Formatted: Font: 10 pt
Formatted: Font: 10 pt

ARD Committee Meeting without the Parent 
 

It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to ensure that parents can attend the ARD meeting 
or have the opportunity to participate. The district will work with the parent to come to an 
agreeable time or provide an opportunity to participate via conference call. (34 CFR §§300.322; 
300.328) 

 
If the district is unable to convince parent to attend the ARD meeting, Trinity Basin Preparatory 
may proceed with an ARD meeting without parent in attendance. Trinity Basin Preparatory will 
document written notices sent to parent and phone calls with parent attempting to schedule a 
mutually agreeable time for the ARD meeting. 

 
 

Revision History: 
 

Effective Date Version Modification 
1 New document 



TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 

Autism Supplement – Page 1 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

 

Autism Supplement 
 

Purpose: To ensure that each student who qualifies for services as a student with Autism/pervasive 
developmental disorders, that the student’s Individualized Education Program (IEP) includes an 
appropriate Autism Supplement, pursuant to (19 TAC §89.1055(e)). 

 

Statement of Policy: 
Autism Supplement Contents 

 

Each ARD committee will consider each of the following strategies, and when needed, the 
strategies will be addressed in the student’s IEP. The strategies will be peer-reviewed or 
researched-based practices to the extent practicable. 

1. Extended educational programing, such as extended day or ESY that consider the 
duration of programming based on assessment of behavior, social skills, 
communication, academics and self-help skills; 

2. daily schedules reflecting minimal unstructured time and facilitate active engagement 
in learning activities, for example: lunch, snack, and recess periods that provide 
flexibility within routines, adapt to individual skill levels, and assist with schedule 
changes, such as changes involving substitute teachers, pep rallies, etc.; 

3. In-home and community-based services or other alternatives to help the student with 
acquisition of social or behavioral skills; 

4. Positive behavior support strategies based on student needs; 
5. Future planning, beginning at any age, for integrated living, work, community and 

educational environments that consider skills necessary to function in current and post- 
secondary environments; 

6. Parent or family training and support, provided by personnel familiar with Autism 
Spectrum disorders; 

7. Suitable staff-to-student ratio for identified activities and as needed to achieve social 
and behavioral progress based on the students developmental and learning level that 
encourages progress towards independence; 

8. Communication interventions, including language forms and functions, that enhance 
effective communication across all settings; 

9. Social skills supports and strategies based on social skill assessment and provided 
across all settings; 

10. Professional Support, such as training to staff, to ensure correct implementation of 
techniques; and 

11. Teaching strategies based on peer reviewed, research-based practices for students with 
Autism Spectrum Disorders. 

 
If the ARD committee determines that services are not needed in one or more of the areas in 1–11 
above, the IEP shall include a statement reflecting that decision and the basis upon which the 
determination was made. (19 TAC 89.1055(e)–(f)) 

Deleted: Appropriate 

Formatted: Justified
Deleted: to 



Autism Supplement – Page 2 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

Revision History: 
 

Effective Date Version Modification 
1 New document 



TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 

Closing the Gap – Page 1 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

 

Closing the Gap 
 

Purpose: The Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) was first passed by Congress in 
1965 as part of President Lyndon B. Johnson’s War on Poverty. In 2001, the ESEA was 
reauthorized as the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 (NCLB). The primary function of NCLB is 
to close the achievement gap between groups of students by requiring greater accountability and 
offering increased flexibility and choice. NCLB affects almost every charter school in the state. 

 
Congress reauthorized the ESEA in December of 2015 as the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), 
which took effect beginning July 2016. ESSA will replace NCLB and impacts all charter schools 
in the state. The ESSA provides more state control and input at the local level. 

 
(20 USC §6301 et seq.) 

 
 
Statement of Policy: 

 
Early Intervening Service 

 

The education of students with disabilities can be made more effective by providing incentives for 
whole-school approaches, scientifically-based early reading programs, positive behavioral 
interventions and supports, and early intervening services to reduce the need to label students as 
disabled  in  order  to  address  the  learning  and  behavioral  needs  of  such  students.  (20  USC 
§1400(c)(5)(F)) 

 

In implementing coordinated, early intervening services, Trinity Basin Preparatory may carry out 
activities that include: 

1. professional development (which may be provided by entities other than local 
educational agencies) for teachers and other school staff to enable such personnel to 
deliver scientifically based academic instruction and behavioral interventions, 
including scientifically based literacy instruction, and, where appropriate, instruction 
on the use of adaptive and instructional software; and 

2. providing educational and behavioral evaluations, services, and supports, including 
scientifically based literacy instruction. 

(20 USC §1413(f)(2); 34 CFR §300.226(b)) 
 
An early intervening service (including a response-to-intervention or (RTI)) process cannot delay 
the initial evaluation for special education services of a student suspected of having a disability. A 
parent may request an evaluation at any time to determine whether the student is a student with a 
disability. If a parent requests an evaluation and the school agrees that the student may be eligible 
for special education, the school must evaluate the student. If the school denies the parent’s request 
for evaluation, Trinity Basin Preparatory must provide notice to the parent explaining the basis for 
the refusal. The parent may challenge the refusal to evaluate through the impartial hearing process. 
(20 USC §1413(f)(3); 34 CFR §300.226(c)) 



Closing the Gap – Page 4 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

Bilingual Education Program 
 

Under Texas Education Code (TEC) Chapter 29, Subchapter B and 19 TAC §§89.1201-1265, 
schools and charter schools must identify Limited English Proficient (LEP) students based on state 
criteria. Charter schools must provide an appropriate Bilingual Education (BE) or English as a 
Second Language (ESL) program conducted by teachers certified for such courses. Charter schools 
receive a bilingual allocation for providing such instruction to be used for program and student 
evaluation, materials, salary supplements, etc. See TEC §42.153. Up to 15 percent of the allotment 
may be used for indirect costs (transportation, administration, etc.). See Texas Open- Enrollment 
Charter School Handbook (TEA, Division of Charter School Administration, September 2011), 
available at:  

http://www.esc11.net/cms/lib3/TX21000259/Centricity/Domain/67/CharterSchoolHandbook.pdf. 
 

Student with Disabilities and Limited English Proficiency 
 

It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to ensure that a student with limited English proficiency 
who also qualifies for special education services as a student with a disability under the Individuals 
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) is not refused services in a bilingual education or English 
as a second language program solely because the student has a disability. (19 TAC §89.1230) 

 
Applicability of Title Relating to Bilingual Education 

 

An open-enrollment charter school is subject to a prohibition, restriction, or requirement, as 
applicable, imposed by Title 2 (Public Education) of the Texas Education Code, or a rule adopted 
under Title 2 (Public Education) of the Texas Education Code, relating to bilingual education under 
Subchapter B (Bilingual Education and Special Language Programs), Chapter 29, Texas Education 
Code. (TEC §12.104(b)(2)(G)) 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory adopts the requirements of Subchapter B (Bilingual Education and 
Special   Language   Programs),   Chapter   29,   Texas   Education   Code   pursuant   to       TEC 
§12.104(b)(2)(G). Where “school or school district” is used in Subchapter B (Bilingual Education 
and Special Language Programs), Trinity Basin Preparatory school hereby substitutes “open- 
enrollment charter school” to conform to these requirements. 

 
Establishment of Bilingual Education and Special Language Program 

 

The open-enrollment charter school shall establish a Bilingual Education (BE) or English as a 
Second Language (ESL) program as required by TEC §29.053 (Establishment of Bilingual 
Education and Special Language Programs) and in accordance with the procedures established by 
the Texas Education Agency, unless otherwise excepted under TEC §29.054 (Exception).   (TEC 
§29.053) 

 
Language Proficiency Assessment Committees 

 

Trinity Basin Preparatory shall further establish a Language Proficiency Assessment Committee 
(LPAC) that complies with TEC §29.063. (TEC §29.063)  The LPAC shall select the appropriate 

Deleted:  



Closing the Gap – Page 5 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

assessment option for each English language learner (ELL) in accordance with this subchapter.  For 
each ELL who receives special education services, the student’s admission, review, and dismissal 
(“ARD”) committee in conjunction with the student’s LPAC shall select the appropriate 
assessments.  The LPAC shall document the decisions and justifications in the student’s permanent 
record file, and the ARD committee shall document the decisions and justificatiosn in the student’s 
individualized education program.  Assessment decisions shall be made on an individual student 
basis and in accordance with administrative procedures established by the TEA.  19 TAC 
§101.1005(a).   

 

Program Content; Method of Instruction 
 

The open-enrollment charter school’s program content and method of instruction shall comply 
with TEC §29.055. (TEC §29.055) 

 
Enrollment of Students in Program 

 

The open-enrollment charter school shall comply with the Texas Education Agency criteria for 
identification, assessment, and classification of students of limited English proficiency eligible for 
entry into the program or exit from the program.  (TEC §29.056(a)) 

 
The student’s parent must approve a student’s entry into the program, exit from the program, or 
placement in the program. The open-enrollment charter school or parent may appeal the decision 
under TEC §29.064. (TEC §29.056(a)) 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory through its language proficiency assessment committee (LPAC) shall 
evaluate and consider reenrollment of students who have transferred out of a bilingual education 
or special language program under TEC §29.056(g) as required by TEC §29.0561. 

 
Facilities; Classes 

 

Trinity Basin Preparatory ensures that bilingual education and special language programs are 
located in the regular public charter school rather than in separate facilities.  (TEC §29.057) 

 
Enrollment of Students Who Do Not Have Limited English Proficiency 

 

Trinity Basin Preparatory ensures that enrollment of students who do not have limited English 
proficiency may occur only if the requirements of TEC §29.058 are met.  (TEC §29.058) 

 
Cooperation among Schools 

 

Trinity Basin Preparatory may cooperate with other schools to provide a bilingual education or 
special language program.  (TEC §29.059) 

 
Preschool, Summer School, and Extended Time Programs 

 

Each open-enrollment charter school that is required to offer a bilingual education or special 

Deleted: ¶ ... [2]
Formatted: Font: 12 pt



Closing the Gap – Page 6 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

language program shall offer a voluntary program for students of limited English proficiency who 
will be eligible for admission to kindergarten or the first grade at the beginning of the school year. 
A school that operates on a system permitted by the Texas Education Code other than a semester 
system shall offer 120 hours of instruction on a schedule the governing board establishes. The 
program shall meet the requirements of TEC §29.060. (TEC §29.060(a)) 

 

Enrollment of a student in the program is optional with the parent of the child.  (TEC §29.060(b)) 

The program must be an intensive bilingual education or special language program that meets 
standards established by the Texas Education Agency. The student/teacher ratio for the program 
may not exceed 18/1.  (TEC §29.060(c)) 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory may establish on a full- or part-time basis summer school, extended day, 
or extended week bilingual education or special language programs for students of limited English 
proficiency and may join with other schools or schools in establishing the programs.   (TEC 
§29.060(d)) 

 
The programs required or authorized by TEC §29.060 may not be a substitute for programs 
required to be provided during the regular school year.  (TEC §29.060(e)) 

 
The legislature may appropriate money from the foundation school fund for support of a program 
under TEC §29.060(a). (TEC §29.060(f)) 

 
Bilingual Education and Special Language Program Teachers 

 

Trinity Basin Preparatory shall ensure that bilingual education and special language program 
teachers are properly certified.  (TEC §29.061) 

 
Appeals 

 

A parent of a student enrolled in a bilingual education or special language program may appeal to 
the Commissioner if the open-enrollment charter school fails to comply with the requirements 
established by law or by the Texas Education Agency. If the parent disagrees with the placement 
of the student in the program, the parent may appeal that decision to the open-enrollment charter 
school governing body. Appeals shall be conducted in accordance with procedures adopted by the 
Commissioner under Chapter 157 of the Texas Administrative Code.       (TEC §29.064; 19 TAC 
§89.1240) 

 
PEIMS Reporting Requirements 

 

The open-enrollment charter school shall meet Public Education Information Management System 
(PEIMS) Reporting Requirements with respect to its bilingual education or special language 
programs. See PEIMS policy. (TEC §29.066) 

 
 
 
 

Deleted: ¶ ... [3]



Closing the Gap – Page 7 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

Revision History: 
 

Effective Date Version Modification 
1 New document 



TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

Coordination of Funds for Purchases of Instructional Materials – Solo Page Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

Moved (insertion) [4]
Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.08", Space Before: 
4.6 pt, Tab stops:  4.5", Left
Deleted: ]¶

 

Coordination of Funds for Purchases of Instructional Materials 
 

Purpose: Instructional materials adopted by Trinity Basin Preparatory must be provided to 
students at no cost. 

 
 
Statement of Policy: 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory is entitled to the instructional materials allotment under Chapter 31 and 
subject to Chapter 31 as if the school were a school district. (TEC §31.005). 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory is entitled to an allotment each biennium from the state instructional 
materials fund for each student enrolled in the school on a date during the last year of the preceding 
biennium specified by the Commissioner. An allotment shall be transferred from the state 
instructional materials fund to the credit of the school’s instructional materials account as provided 
by TEC §31.0212. 

 
If Trinity Basin Preparatory chooses to coordinate with the National Instructional Materials Access 
Center (NIMAC) when purchasing print instructional materials, it must acquire the print 
instructional materials in the same manner and subject to the same conditions as the Texas 
Education Agency acquires print instructional materials. 
 
If Trinity Basin Preparatory chooses not to coordinate with the National Instructional Materials 
Access Center (NIMAC) when purchasing print instructional materials, it will provide instructional 
materials to blind persons or other persons with print disabilities in a timely manner and shall 
provide assurance of compliance with this policy to the Texas Education Agency. 

 
(34 CFR §300.210(a)) 

 
 
Revision History: 

 
Effective Date Version Modification 

1 New document 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Left:  0.92", Right:  0.92", Top:  0.68",
Bottom:  1", Header distance from edge:  0.51", Footer
distance from edge:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.06", Right:  0.04"

Deleted: ¶
Formatted: Justified

Deleted: ¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶

Moved to footer [4]: Coordination of Funds for 
Purchases of Instructional Materials – Solo Page Adopted 
by Board of Directors [date]¶



TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 

Dyslexia Services – Page 1 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

 

Dyslexia Services 
 

Purpose: An open-enrollment charter school is subject to a prohibition, restriction, or requirement, 
as applicable, imposed by Title 2 (Public Education) of the Texas Education Code, or a rule 
adopted under Title 2 (Public Education) of the Texas Education Code, relating to health and safety 
under Chapter 38 (Health and Safety), Texas Education Code. (TEC §12.104(b)(2)(K)) 

 
Statement of Policy: 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory adopts the requirements of Chapter 38 (Health and Safety), Texas 
Education Code pursuant to TEC §12.104(b)(2)(K). Where “school or school district” is used in 
Chapter 38 (Health and Safety), Trinity Basin Preparatory school hereby substitutes “open- 
enrollment charter school” to conform to these requirements. 
 
These procedures shall be implemented in accordance with the State Board of Education’s 
Dyslexia Handbook: Procedures Concerning Dyslexia and Related Disorders (Dyslexia 
Handbook).   

 
In TEC §38.003: 

1. “Dyslexia” means a disorder of constitutional origin manifested by a difficulty in learning 
to read, write, or spell, despite conventional instruction, adequate intelligence, and 
sociocultural opportunity. 

2. “Related disorders” includes disorders similar to or related to dyslexia, such as 
developmental auditory imperceptions, dysphasia, specific developmental dyslexia, 
developmental dysgraphia, and developmental spelling disability. 

 
(TEC §38.003(d)) 

 
Screening and Treatment for Dyslexia and Related Disorders 

 

Students enrolling in Trinity Basin Preparatory shall be tested for dyslexia and related disorders at 
appropriate times in accordance with a program approved by the State Board of Education. (TEC 
§38.003(a))  Screening and further evaluation should be done only by individuals or professionals 
who are trained in valid, evidence-based assessments and who are trained to appropriately evaluate 
students for dyslexia and related disorders. 
 
Before an identification or assessment procedure is used selectively with an individual student, 
Trinity Basin Preparatory must notify the student’s parent or guardian or another person standing in 
parental relation to the student.  
 
A process for early identification, intervention, and support for students at risk for dyslexia and 
related disorders must be available, as outlined in the Dyslexia Handbook. The program must include 
a screening at the end of each school year for all kindergarten and first grade students.  

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory may not use early intervention strategies, including multi-tiered systems 
of support, to delay or deny the provision of a full and individual evaluation to a child suspected of 

Moved (insertion) [1]



TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 

Dyslexia Services – Page 2 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

having a specific learning disability, including dyslexia or a related disorder. 
 

Treatment 
 
Trinity Basin Preparatory shall provide each identified student access at his or her campus to 
instructional programs and to the services of a teacher trained in dyslexia and related services. Trinity 
Basin Preparatory may, with the approval of each student’s parents or guardians, offer additional 
services at a centralized location, so long as such centralized services do not preclude each student 
from receiving services at his or her campus.  
 

a) Reading Program 
 
Trinity Basin Preparatory shall purchase a reading program or develop its own reading program for 
students with dyslexia and related disorders that is aligned with the descriptors found in the Dyslexia 
Handbook.  
 
Teachers who screen and treat these students must be trained in instructional strategies that utilize 
individualized, intensive, multi-sensory, phonetic methods and a variety of writing and spelling 
components described in the Dyslexia Handbook. The professional development activities specified 
by each school and/or campus planning committee shall include these instructional strategies.  
 

b) Reassessment 
 
It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to refrain from retesting a dyslexic student for the 
purposes of reassessing the need for accommodations until the school has reevaluated the 
information from previous testing.  (TEC §38.003(b-1)) 
 

Parental Notifications 
 
Trinity Basin Preparatory shall inform parents and guardians of students eligible under Section 504 
of all services and options available to the student under that law. The notice must be in English, or 
to the extent practicable, the individual’s native language and must include the following:  
 

1. A reasonable description of the evaluation procedure to be used with the individual student;  
2. Information related to any instructional intervention or strategy used to assist the student 

prior to evaluation;  
3. An estimated time frame within which the evaluation will be completed; and  
4. Specific contact information for the campus point of contact, relevant parent training and 

information projects, and other appropriate parent resources.  
 
Parents and guardians of students with dyslexia or a related disorder must be informed of all services 
and options available to the student, including general education interventions under response to 
intervention and multi-tiered systems of support modules as required by Education Code §26.0081.  
 

Parent Education Program 
 

Trinity Basin Preparatory shall develop and provide a parent education program for parents and 
guardians of students with dyslexia and related disorders. This program should include:  

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Not Bold
Formatted:  No bullets or numbering
Moved (insertion) [2]

Formatted: Centered
Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline
Formatted: Centered



TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 

Dyslexia Services – Page 3 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

 
 Awareness of characteristics of dyslexia and related disorders;  
 Information on testing and diagnosis of dyslexia;  
 Information on effective strategies for teaching dyslexic students; and  
 Awareness of information on modification, especially modifications allowed on standardized 

testing. 
 
Education Code 38.003; 19 TAC 74.28. 
 
 
In accordance with the program approved by the State Board of Education, the board of trustees 
of each school open-enrollment charter schools shall provide for the treatment of any student 
determined to have dyslexia or a related disorder.  (TEC §38.003(b)) 

 
 
Trinity Basin Preparatory will report the number of students enrolled in the school who are 
identified as having dyslexia through the Public Education Information Management System 
(PEIMS). (TEC §42.006) 
 

Revision History: 
 

Effective Date Version Modification 
1 New document 

 
 

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Moved up [2]: It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory 
to refrain from retesting a dyslexic student for the purposes 
of reassessing the need for accommodations until the school 
has reevaluated the information from previous testing.  
(TEC §38.003(b-1))¶

Moved up [1]: In TEC §38.003:¶
“Dyslexia” means a disorder of constitutional origin 
manifested by a difficulty in learning to read, write, or spell, 
despite conventional instruction, adequate intelligence, and 
sociocultural opportunity.¶
“Related disorders” includes disorders similar to or related 
to dyslexia, such as developmental auditory imperceptions, 
dysphasia, specific developmental dyslexia, developmental 
dysgraphia, and developmental spelling disability.¶
¶
(TEC §38.003(d))¶

Moved (insertion) [5]



Eligibility – Page 1 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

Eligibility 
 

Purpose: 
 

Trinity Basin Preparatory ensures that evaluation procedures used to determine eligibility for 
special education services address all areas of potential eligibility and are performed by 
appropriately licensed, certified, and credentialed evaluators. 

 
 
Definitions: 

 
Intellectual Disability - A student qualifies as a student with an intellectual disability if the student 
has significantly sub-average general intellectual functioning, existing concurrently with deficits 
in adaptive behavior and manifested during the developmental period, that adversely affects a 
student’s educational performance. (34 CFR §300.8(c)(6); 19 TAC §89.1040(c)(5)) 

 
Speech or Language Impairment - A communication disorder, such as stuttering, impaired 
articulation, a language impairment, or a voice impairment, that adversely affects a child’s 
educational performance. The evaluation team at Trinity Basin Preparatory must include a certified 
speech and hearing therapist, a certified speech and language therapist, or a licensed 
speech/language pathologist. (34 CFR §300.8(c)(11); 19 TAC 89.1040(c)(10)) 

 
Emotional Disturbance - A student may be eligible for services as a student with an emotional 
disturbance if they exhibit one or more of the following characteristics over a long period of time 
and to a marked degree that adversely affects a child’s educational performance: 

1. An inability to learn that cannot be explained by intellectual, sensory, or health factors; 
2. An inability to build or maintain satisfactory interpersonal relationships with peers and 

teachers; 
3. Inappropriate types of behavior or feelings under normal circumstances; 
4. A general pervasive mood of unhappiness or depression; or 
5. A tendency to develop physical symptoms or fears associated with personal or school 

problems. 
 

Emotional disturbance includes schizophrenia, but does not include children who are 
socially maladjusted, unless it is determined that they have an emotional disturbance. A 
written evaluation must include recommendations for behavior intervention strategies. (34 
CFR §300.8(c)(4); 19 TAC §89.1040(c)(4)) 

 
Orthopedic Impairment - A severe orthopedic impairment, including impairments caused by 
congenital anomaly, impairments caused by disease (e.g., poliomyelitis, bone tuberculosis), and 
impairments from other causes (e.g., cerebral palsy, amputations, and fractures or burns that cause 
contractures). If the impairment adversely impacts a student’s educational performance, the 
student is eligible under this category. (34 CFR §300.8(c)(8); 19 TAC §89.1040(10)) 

 
The multidisciplinary team determining eligibility must include a licensed physician. (19 
TAC §89.1040(10)) 

Moved up [5]: Revision History:¶
¶
Effective Date Version Modification¶
1 New document¶

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold



Eligibility – Page 3 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

 

Other Health Impairment (OHI) - A student with limited strength, vitality, or alertness, 
including a heightened alertness to environmental stimuli caused by chronic or acute health 
problems such as: 

1. Asthma 
2. Attention Deficit Disorder or Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder 
3. Diabetes 
4. Epilepsy 
5. Heart Condition 
6. Hemophilia 
7. Lead poisoning 
8. Leukemia 
9. Nephritis 
10. Rheumatic Fever 
11. Sickle Cell Anemia 
12. Tourette Syndrome 

 
If the health condition limits alertness in the educational environment and adversely 
impacts a student’s learning, they are eligible for OHI. In determining eligibility, Trinity 
Basin Preparatory must include a licensed physician on the multidisciplinary team. 

 
Traumatic Brain Injury – An acquired injury to the brain caused by an external physical force, 
resulting in total or partial functional disability or psychosocial impairment, or both, that adversely 
affects a student’s educational performance. Traumatic brain injury applies to open or closed head 
injuries resulting in impairments in one or more areas, such as cognition; language; memory; 
attention; reasoning; abstract thinking; judgment; problem-solving; sensory, perceptual, and motor 
abilities; psychosocial behavior; physical functions; information processing; and speech. Traumatic 
brain injury does not apply to brain injuries that are congenital or degenerative, or to brain injuries 
induced by birth trauma. 
 

Trinity Basin Preparatory shall include a licensed physician, and a licensed specialist in 
school psychology (LSSP), an educational diagnostician, or other appropriately certified or 
licensed practitioner with experience and training in this area to review the data and 
determine eligibility. (19 TAC §89.1040(11)) 

 
Hearing or Auditory Impairment and Deafness – A student with an impairment in hearing, 
whether permanent or fluctuating, that adversely affects a student’s educational performance but is 
not included under the definition of deafness. 
 

The student’s evaluation must include an otological examination performed by an otologist 
or by a licensed medical doctor, with documentation that an otologist is not reasonably 
available. Trinity Basin Preparatory shall also conduct an audiological evaluation by a 
licensed audiologist. The evaluation must include a description of the implications of the 
hearing loss for the student's hearing in a variety of circumstances with or without 
recommended amplification. (34 CFR §300.8(c)(5); 19 TAC 89.1040(c)(3)) 

 
Deafness – Deafness is a hearing impairment that is so severe that the student is impaired in 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold



Eligibility – Page 4 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

processing linguistic information through hearing, with or without amplification that adversely 
affects a student’s educational performance. (34 CFR §300.8(c)(3)) 
 
Visual Impairment Including Blindness – An impairment in vision that, even with correction, 
adversely affects a student’s educational performance. The term includes both partial sight and 
blindness. (34 CFR 300.8(c)(13). 
 
A student with a visual impairment is one who: 
 

1. has been determined by a licensed ophthalmologist or optometrist to have no vision or to have 
a serious visual loss after correction; or to have a progressive medical condition that results 
in no vision or a serious visual loss after correction.  

2. has been determined by the following evaluations to have a need for special services, 
including:  
a. a functional vision evaluation by a professional certified in the education of students with 

visual impairments or a certified orientation and mobility instructor. The evaluation must 
include the performance of tasks in a variety of environments requiring the use of both 
near and distance vision and recommendations concerning the need for a clinical low 
vision evaluation and an orientation and mobility evaluation; or 

b. a learning media assessment by a professional certified in the education of students with 
visual impairments. The learning media assessment must include recommendations 
concerning which specific visual, tactual, and/or auditory learning media are appropriate 
for the student and whether or not there is a need for ongoing evaluation in this area.  

 
(19 TAC 89.1040(12)(A)) 
 

Through evaluation, Trinity Basin Preparatory should state the student’s visual loss in exact 
measures of visual field and corrected visual acuity at a distance and at close range in each 
eye by a licensed ophthalmologist or optometrist. The report should also include prognosis 
whenever possible. If exact measures cannot be obtained, the eye specialist must so state and 
provide best estimates.  
 
A student that qualifies as a student with a visual impairment is considered functionally blind 
if, based on the preceding evaluations, the student will use tactual media (which includes 
Braille) as a primary tool for learning to be able to communicate in both reading and writing 
at the same level of proficiency as other students of comparable ability. (19 TAC 
§89.1040(12)(B)) 

 
Deaf-Blindness – A student is eligible under deaf-blindness if identified with hearing and visual 
impairments, the combination of which causes such severe communication and other developmental 
and educational needs that they cannot be accommodated in special education programs solely for 
students with deafness or students with blindness. (34 CFR §300.8(c)(2)) 
 
In addition to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (“IDEA”) requirements, a student may 
be eligible if a student is found to:  
 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold



Eligibility – Page 5 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

1. meet the eligibility criteria for auditory impairment specified in subsection 19 TAC 
§89.1040(c)(3) and visual impairment specified in subsection 19 TAC §89.1040 (c)(12);  

2. meet the eligibility criteria for a student with a visual impairment and has a suspected hearing 
loss that cannot be demonstrated conclusively, but a speech/language therapist, a certified 
speech and language therapist, or a licensed speech language pathologist indicates there is no 
speech at an age when speech would normally be expected;  

3. have documented hearing and visual losses that, if considered individually, may not meet the 
requirements for auditory impairment or visual impairment, but the combination of such 
losses adversely affects the student's educational performance; or  

4. have a documented medical diagnosis of a progressive medical condition that will result in 
concomitant hearing and visual losses that, without special education intervention, will 
adversely affect the student's educational performance.  

 
(19 TAC §89.1040(c)) 
 
 
Specific Learning Disability – Specific learning disability includes a disorder in one or more of the 
basic psychological processes involved in understanding or in using language, spoken or written, that 
may manifest itself in the imperfect ability to listen, think, speak, read, write, spell, or to do 
mathematical calculations, including conditions such as perceptual disabilities, brain injury, minimal 
brain dysfunction, dyslexia, and developmental aphasia. (34 CFR §300.8(c)(10)) 
 

In addition to being identified as having a disorder that impacts a basic psychological process, 
Trinity Basin Preparatory shall also show that the student does not achieve adequately for the 
student’s age or meet state-approved grade-level standards in oral expression, listening 
comprehension, written expression, basic reading skill, reading fluency skills, reading 
comprehension, mathematics calculation, or mathematics problem solving when provided 
appropriate instruction, as indicated by performance on multiple measures such as in-class 
tests; grade average over time (e.g. six weeks, semester); norm- or criterion- referenced tests; 
statewide assessments; or a process based on the child's response to scientific, research-based 
intervention.  

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory’s evaluation must also show that the student: 
 

1. does not make sufficient progress when provided a process based on the student’s response 
to scientific, research-based intervention (as defined in 20 USC, §7801(37)), as indicated by 
the student’s performance relative to the performance of the student’s peers on repeated, 
curriculum-based assessments of achievement at reasonable intervals, reflecting student 
progress during classroom instruction; or 

2. the student exhibits a pattern of strengths and weaknesses in performance, achievement, or 
both relative to age, grade-level standards, or intellectual ability, as indicated by significant 
variance among specific areas of cognitive function, such as working memory and verbal 
comprehension, or between specific areas of cognitive function and academic achievement. 

 
(19 TAC §89.1040(c)(9)) 
 
A specific learning disability does not include learning problems that are primarily the result of 

Formatted: Font: Bold



Eligibility – Page 6 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

visual, hearing, or motor disabilities, of mental retardation, of emotional disturbance, or of 
environmental, cultural, or economic disadvantage. (34 CFR §300.8(c)(10)) 
 
Prior to identifying a student as one with a learning disability, Trinity Basin Preparatory shall ensure 
that the suspected disability is not due to lack of educational opportunity or lack of appropriate 
instruction. Trinity Basin Preparatory shall consider data that shows the student has received 
appropriate instruction in math and reading in the general education setting. Trinity Basin Preparatory 
shall also consider documentation of repeated assessments of achievement at reasonable intervals, 
reflecting formal evaluation of student progress during instruction. This may include, but is not 
limited to, RTI progress results, in-class tests on grade- level curriculum, or other regularly 
administered assessments. Intervals are considered reasonable if consistent with the assessment 
requirements of a student's specific instructional program. (19 TAC §89.1040(c)(9)) 
 
Autism – A student with autism is one that meets the criteria outlined in 34 CFR §300.8(c)(1) of the 
IDEA. It also includes students with pervasive developmental disorders. (19 TAC 89.1040(c)(1)) 
 
Under IDEA, autism is a developmental disability significantly affecting a student’s verbal and 
nonverbal communication and social interactions that adversely affects a student’s educational 
performance. Engagement in repetitive activities and stereotyped movements, resistance to 
environmental change or change in daily routines, and unusual responses to sensory experiences are 
often associated with autism. Characteristics of autism are generally evident before age three. A child 
who manifests the characteristics of autism after age three could be identified as having autism if the 
student meets the above criteria also defined in 34 CFR §300.8(c)(1)(i). 
 
A student does not meet the eligibility category for autism if a student’s educational performance is 
adversely affected primarily because the student has an emotional disturbance, as defined above and 
in 34 CFR §300.8(c)(4). (34 CFR §300.8(c)(1)). 
 
The written evaluation determining eligibility under autism must include recommendations for 
behavior interventions. (19 TAC 89.1040(c)(1)) 
 
Multiple Disabilities – A student may qualify as a student with multiple disabilities if they are 
identified to have a combination of impairments (such as mental retardation-blindness or mental 
retardation-orthopedic impairment) and the combination causes such severe educational needs that 
they cannot be accommodated in special education programs solely for one of the impairments. 
Multiple disabilities does not include deaf-blindness. (34 CFR §300.8(c)(7)) 
 
The impairments must be expected to continue indefinitely and the impairments must severely limit 
performance in two or more of the following: 
 

1. psychomotor skills; 
2. self-care skills; 
3. communication; 
4. social and emotional development, or 
5. cognition.  

 
A student that qualifies for more than one impairment, but does not severely impair performance in 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold



Eligibility – Page 7 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

one of the above categories, or is not expected to continue indefinitely, does not qualify as a student 
with multiple disabilities. (19 TAC §89.1040(c)(6)) 
 
 
Statement of Policy: 

 
Eligibility Criteria 

 

A student that is at least 3 years old but not more than 21 years of age may be eligible for special 
education services. Through an evaluation, if a student is found to have a disability in one of the 
following categories, and has an educational need, they may be found eligible for special 
education: 

1. Intellectual Disability 
2. Hearing impairment 
3. Visual Impairment 
4. Speech or Language impairment 
5. Emotional disturbance 
6. Orthopedic impairment 
7. Other health impairment 
8. Traumatic brain injury 
9. Deaf-blindness 
10. Specific Learning Disability 
11. Autism 
12. Developmental delay 
13. Multiple Disabilities 

(34 CFR § 300.8) 

 

Additionally, a student is eligible to participate in Trinity Basin Preparatory’s special education 
program if the student is not more than 21 years of age and has a visual or auditory impairment 
that prevents the student from being adequately or safely educated in public school without the 
provision of special services. (TEC §29.003) 

 
Determining Eligibility 

 

Following the completion of the full and individual initial evaluation, the student’s admission, 
review, and dismissal (ARD) committee must make an eligibility determination. The ARD 
committee members reviewing evaluations to determine eligibility must include a licensed 
specialist in school psychology (LSSP), an educational diagnostician, or other appropriately 
certified or licensed practitioner with experience, and a licensed or certified professional for a 
specific eligibility category defined under Definitions. (19 TAC §89.1040) 

 
When interpreting evaluation data for the purpose of determining if a student is a student with a 
disability under 34 CFR § 300.8, and the educational needs of the student, the district must— 

1. Draw upon information from a variety of sources, including aptitude and achievement 
tests, parent input, and teacher recommendations, as well as information about the 
child’s physical condition, social or cultural background, and adaptive behavior; and 

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)



Eligibility – Page 8 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

2. Ensure that information obtained from all of these sources is documented and carefully 
considered. 

 
If a student is determined to be a student with a disability and needs special education and related 
services, an IEP must be developed for the student in accordance with §§ 300.320 through 300.324. 
(34 CFR §300.306) 

 
A student is not eligible for special education services through the evaluation, if a student is found 
to only need related services. A student cannot be found eligible for services if the determinant 
factor for that determination is lack of appropriate instruction in reading, including in the essential 
components of reading instruction, lack of appropriate instruction in math, or limited English 
proficiency. (34 CFR §300.306(b)) 

 
Children aged three through nine, or any subset of that age range, may be a child with a disability 
if the student is: 

1. experiencing developmental delays, as defined by the State and as measured by 
appropriate diagnostic instruments and procedures, in one or more of the following 
areas: Physical development, cognitive development, communication development, 
social or emotional development, or adaptive development; and 

2. needs special education and related services. 
(34 CFR §300.8(b)) 

 
Revision History: 

 
Effective Date Version Modification 

1 New document 



Evaluation Procedures – Page 5 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

Evaluation Procedures 
 

Purpose: It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to ensure that upon completion of the 
administration of such tests and other evaluation materials administered according to the 
evaluation procedures of the IDEA, and preparation of the written report, the ARD committee 
determines if the student is a student with a disability under state and federal standards. 

 
 
Statement of Policy: 

 
Full and Individual Evaluation (FIE) 

 

Trinity Basin Preparatory shall ensure that upon completion of the administration of such tests and 
other evaluation materials administered according to the evaluation procedures of the Individuals 
with Disabilities Education Act (“IDEA”), and preparation of the written report, the admission, 
review and dismissal (“ARD”) committee determines if the student is a student with a disability 
under state and federal standards. 

 

Trinity Basin Preparatory must conduct a full and individual initial evaluation (FIE) prior to 
providing special education and related services to any student. All students must be evaluated in 
accordance with the IDEA and Texas Education Code. 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory must have in place procedures to ensure that testing and evaluation 
materials and procedures utilized for the purposes of evaluation and placement of students with 
disabilities are selected and administered so as to not be racially, culturally, or gender 
discriminatory. Assessment and procedures shall be provided and administered in the student’s 
native language or most proficient mode of communication and in the form most likely to yield 
accurate information on what the student knows and can do academically, developmentally, and 
functionally, unless it is clearly not feasible to do so. (34 CFR §300.301; TEC §29.310) 

 
All implementing assessment procedures must differentiate between language proficiency and 
handicapping condition. Additionally, placement procedures must ensure that placement in a 
bilingual education or English as a second language program is not refused solely because the 
student has a disability. (19 TAC §89.1230) 

 
No single procedure shall be the sole criterion for determining whether a student is a student with 
a disability or for determining an appropriate education program for a student with a disability. 
The evaluation must be sufficiently comprehensive to identify all of the student’s special education 
and related services’ needs. Each student must be evaluated in all suspected areas of disability. (34 
CFR §§300.301 and 300.304; TEC §29.310) 

 
All assessments must be administered in accordance with the instructions provided and by a trained 
and knowledgeable person. (34 CFR §§300.301 and 300.304) 

 
Timeline 



Evaluation Procedures – Page 6 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

 

If parent provides a written request for an evaluation, Trinity Basin Preparatory will provide the 
parent with consent for evaluation or prior written notice and procedural safeguards if the school 
is denying the request for evaluation, within 15 school days. (TEC §29.004(c)) 

 

A written FIE report must be completed not later than the 45th school day following the date on 
which Trinity Basin Preparatory receives written consent for the evaluation, signed by the student's 
parent or legal guardian. If the student is absent for more than 3 days in that time period, the 
timeline must be extended by the number of days the student was absent. (TEC §29.004(a)) 

 
This time frame shall not apply if: 

1. A student enrolls in the current school after the relevant time frame has begun and 
before the previous school made a determination as to whether the student has a 
disability, but only if the current school is making sufficient progress to ensure a prompt 
completion of the evaluation and the parent and current school agree to a specific time 
for completion of the evaluation; or 

2. The parent repeatedly fails or refuses to produce the student for the evaluation. 
(34 CFR §300.301(d)) 

 
Following the completion of the FIE, the ARD committee must meet within 30 calendar days from the date of 
completion to review and determine eligibility.  (TEC §29.004)  If the 30th day falls during the summer 
and school is not in session, the student’s ARD committee has until the first day of classes in the 
fall to finalize decisions concerning the student’s initial eligibility determination, individualized 
education program (“IEP”), and placement, unless the full individual and initial evaluation indicates 
that the student will need extended school year services during that summer.  

 
If the student is an English language learner, the language proficiency assessment committee 
(LPAC) must also attend the meeting to determine services. (19 TAC §89.1230) 

 
If Trinity Basin Preparatory receives written consent for an FIE from a student’s parent or guardian 
at least 35 but less than 45 school days before the last instructional day of the school year, the 
evaluation must be completed and the written report of the evaluation must be provided to the 
parent or legal guardian not later than June 30 of that year. The ARD committee must meet by the 
15th school day of the following school year to consider the evaluation. 

 
If Trinity Basin Preparatory receives written consent signed by a student’s parent or legal guardian 
less than 35 school days before the last instructional day of the school year or if the school receives 
the written consent at least 35 but less than 45 school days before the last instructional day of the 
school year but the student is absent from school during that period on three or more days, the FIE 
must be completed not later than the 45th school day after receiving consent. 

 
School days do not include days following the last instructional day of the spring term and before 
the first day of the fall term.  (TEC §29.004) 

 
Specific Learning Disability Evaluation 

 

The Texas Education Agency (TEA) cannot require Trinity Basin Preparatory to use the severe 
discrepancy between intellectual ability and achievement for determining whether a student has a 

Deleted: ¶ ... [4]

Deleted: ¶



Evaluation Procedures – Page 7 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

specific learning disability. TEA must permit the use of a process based on the child’s response to 
scientific, research-based intervention; and may permit the use of other alternative research-based 
procedures  for  determining  whether  a  student  has  a  specific  learning  disability.    (34  CFR 
§300.307) 
 
The evaluation process for specific learning disability includes an observation of the child in the 
learning environment, including the regular classroom setting, to document academic performance 
and behavior in the areas of difficulty. 34 CFR § 300.310 (a). 
 

 
Functional Behavior Assessment (FBA) 

 

A functional behavior assessment (FBA) may be necessary for a student whose behavior impedes 
their education. Prior to completing an FBA, Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc. must get consent from 
the parent. (34 CFR §300.9) 

 
If an ARD committee determines a change of placement is necessary due to the student’s behavior, 
it must conduct an FBA and implement a BIP. If an FBA was already completed, the ARD 
committee must review and update the BIP. (34 CFR §300.350(f)) 

 
Review of Existing Evaluation Data (REED) 

 

A Review of Existing Evaluation Data (REED) is required as part of an initial evaluation, if 
appropriate, and as part of any reevaluation. The REED must be conducted by the admission, 
review, and dismissal (ARD) committee members and other qualified professionals, as 
appropriate. The ARD committee members may conduct the review without a meeting. 

 
The REED must include a review of the following: 

 Evaluations and information provided by the parents of the student; 
 Current classroom-based, local, or State assessments, and classroom-based observations; 

and 
 Observations by teachers and related services providers. 

 
On the basis of that review, and input from the student’s parents, the ARD committee members 
must identify what additional data, if any, are needed to determine: 

 Whether the student is a student with a disability, and the educational needs of the student, 
or, in case of a reevaluation of a student, whether the student continues to have such a 
disability and the educational needs of the student; 

 Whether the student needs special education and related services, or in the case of a 
reevaluation of a student, whether the student continues to need special education and 
related services; 

 The present levels of academic achievement and related developmental needs of the 
student; and 

 Whether any additions or modifications to the special education and related services are 
needed to enable the student to meet the measurable annual goals set out in the 
individualized education program (IEP) of the student and to participate, as appropriate, in 
the general education curriculum. 

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)



Evaluation Procedures – Page 8 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory must administer any assessments or other evaluation measures needed 
to produce the data identified by the REED in accordance with applicable procedural requirements 
regarding notice and consent. 

 
If additional data is not needed, the ARD committee must notify the parent of the determination 
decision and provide information about the parent’s right to request additional assessments to 
determine student needs and eligibility. (34 CFR §300.305) 

 

Trinity Basin Preparatory shall conduct a reevaluation of the student if the school determines that 
the educational or related service needs, including improved academic achievement and functional 
performance, of the child warrant a reevaluation or if the child’s parent or teacher requests a 
reevaluation. A reevaluation may not occur more than once per year, unless agreed to by the school 
and the parent. A reevaluation must occur at least every three years, unless the school and parent 
agree the evaluation is unnecessary. (34 CFR §300.303) 

 
Change in Eligibility 

 

Trinity Basin Preparatory must evaluate a student with a disability before determining a student is 
no longer eligible for special education and related services. 

 
An evaluation is not required if a student is no longer eligible due to graduation or exceeding the 
age eligibility in Texas. However, Trinity Basin Preparatory must create a summary of 
performance and include recommendations on how to assist the student in meeting postsecondary 
goals.  (34 CFR §300.305(e)) 

 
Consideration of Services Provided in Regular Education Setting 

 

To ensure that underachievement in the student suspected of having a specific learning disability 
is not due to lack of appropriate instruction in reading or math, the group of qualified 
professionals, as part of a  full and individual evaluation, must consider: 
 Data that demonstrate that prior to, or as part of, the referral process, the student was 

provided appropriate instruction in regular education settings, delivered by qualified 
personnel; and 

 Data-based documentation of repeated assessments of achievement at reasonable intervals, 
reflecting formal assessment of progress during instruction, which was provided to the 
student’s parents.  (34 CFR 300.309(b)) 

 
Coordination of Evaluations with Prior and Subsequent Schools 

 

The school shall ensure that evaluations of students who transfer from one LEA to another in the 
same academic year are coordinated with the student’s prior and subsequent schools, as necessary 
and as expeditiously as possible, to ensure prompt completion of evaluations. (20 U.S.C. 
1414(b)(3)(D)) 

 
 
 

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)

Formatted: Not Highlight



Evaluation Procedures – Page 9 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

 

 

Information and Consent for Certain Psychological Examinations or Tests 
 

On request of a student’s parent, before obtaining the parent’s consent under 20 U.S.C. §1414 for 
the administration of any psychological examination or test to the student that is included as part 
of the evaluation of the student’s need for special education, Trinity Basin Preparatory must 
provide to the student’s parent: 

1. the name and type of the examination or test; and 
2. an explanation of how the examination or test will be used to develop an appropriate 

individualized education program for the child. 
(TEC §29.0041(a)) 

 

If Trinity Basin Preparatory determines that an additional examination or test is required for the 
evaluation of a student’s need for special education after obtaining consent from the student’s 
parent under TEC §29.0041(a), Trinity Basin Preparatory shall provide the information described 
by TEC §§29.0041(a)(1) and (2) to the student’s parent regarding the additional examination or 
test and shall obtain additional consent for the examination or test.  (TEC §29.0041(b)) 

 
If a parent does not give consent under TEC §29.0041(b) within 20 calendar days after the date 
Trinity Basin Preparatory provided to the parent the information required by TEC §29.0041(b), 
the parent’s consent is considered denied.  (TEC §29.0041(c)) 
 
The time required for Trinity Basin Preparatory to provide information and seek consent may not 
be counted toward the timeframe for completion of an evaluation. Education Code 29.0041.   

 
Extension of Timelines 

 

For a specific learning disability, the timelines for evaluation under this policy may be extended 
by mutual written agreement of the student’s parents and the admission, review, and dismissal 
(ARD) committee.  (34 CFR 300.309(c)) 

 
Evaluation Conducted Pursuant to a Special Education Due Process Hearing 

 

A special education hearing officer in an impartial due process hearing brought under 20  U.S.C. 
§1415 may issue an order or decision that authorizes one or more evaluations of a student who is 
eligible for, or who is suspected as being eligible for, special education services. Such an order or 
decision authorizes the evaluation of the student without parental consent as if it were a court order 
for purposes of any State or federal law providing for consent by order of a court. (TEC §29.016) 

 
 
Revision History: 

 
Effective Date Version Modification 

1 New document 

Deleted: ¶ ... [5]

Formatted: Not Highlight



TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

pParent –Page 3 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 
 

Formatted: Tab stops:  6.5", Right + Not at  4.48"
Moved (insertion) [3]
Deleted: Foster 

Deleted: s
Deleted:  Solo 

 

Parent 

 

Purpose: To ensure foster parents of a child with a disability are afforded the legal rights 
permitted by 20 U.S.C. §1415(b) and its subsequent amendments. 

 
Statement of Policy: 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory must give preferential consideration to a foster parent of a child with 
a disability when assigning a surrogate parent for the child.  (TEC §29.015(a)) 

 
A foster parent may act as a parent of a child with a disability, as authorized under 20 U.S.C. 
§1415(b) and its subsequent amendments, if: 

1. the Department of Protective and Regulatory Services is appointed as the temporary 
or permanent managing conservator of the child; 

2. the child has been placed with the foster parent for at least 60 days; 
3. the foster parent agrees to: 

a. participate in making educational decisions on the child’s behalf; and 
b. complete a training program for surrogate parents that complies with 

minimum standards established by the Texas Education Agency rule; and 
4. the foster parent has no interest that conflicts with the child’s 

interests. (TEC §29.015(b)) 
 
A foster parent who will act as a parent of a child with a disability must complete a training 
program before the next scheduled admission, review, and dismissal (“ARD”) committee meeting 
for the child but not later than the 90th day after the date the foster parent begins acting as the 
parent for the purpose of making special education decisions. (TEX §29.015(b)) 
 

Trinity Basin Preparatory may not require a foster parent to retake a training program to continue 
serving as a child’s parent or to serve as the surrogate parent for another child if the foster parent 
has completed a training program to act as a parent of a child with a disability provided by:  
 

1. the DFPS; 
2. a school district; 
3. an education service center; or 
4. any other entity that receives federal funds to provide special education training to parents. 

 
A foster parent who is denied the right to act as a surrogate parent or a parent under TEC §29.015 
by an open-enrollment charter school may file a complaint with the Texas Education Agency in 
accordance with federal law and regulations.  (TEC §29.015(c)) 

 
It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to provide notice to the student’s educational decision- 
maker and caseworker regarding events that may significantly impact the education of a student, 
including: 

1. requests or referrals for an evaluation under Section 504, Rehabilitation Act of 

Formatted: Left:  1", Right:  1", Top:  1", Bottom:  1",
Header distance from edge:  0.5", Footer distance from
edge:  0.5"
Deleted: Foster 

Formatted: Normal, Centered, Right:  0.03", Space
Before:  10.7 pt

Deleted: s¶

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: 12 pt



TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

pParent –Page 4 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 
 

Formatted: Tab stops:  6.5", Right + Not at  4.48"
Moved (insertion) [3]
Deleted: Foster 

Deleted: s
Deleted:  Solo 

1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), or special education under Section 29.003; 
2. admission, review, and dismissal committee meetings; 
3. manifestation determination reviews required by Section 37.004(b); 
4. any disciplinary actions under Chapter 37 for which parental notice is required; 
5. citations issued for Class C misdemeanor offenses on school property or at school- 

sponsored activities; 
6. reports of restraint and seclusion required by Section 37.0021; and 
7. use of corporal punishment as provided by Section 

37.0011. (TEC §25.007) 
 
As a condition to receiving funds under Title I, Part A, <<School Name>> shall collaborate with 
the state or local child welfare agency to:  
 

a. ensure that children in foster care needing transportation to the school of origin will 
promptly receive transportation in a cost-effective manner and in accordance with 42 
U.S.C. 675(4)(A) and to the extent required by law; and 
 

b. ensure that, if there are additional costs incurred in providing transportation to maintain 
children in foster care in their schools of origin, Trinity Basin Preparatory will, to the extent 
required by law, provide transportation to the school of origin if: 

 
i. the local child welfare agency agrees to reimburse Trinity Basin Preparatory for the 

cost of transportation; 
ii. Trinity Basin Preparatory agrees to pay the cost of transportation; or 

iii. Trinity Basin Preparatory and the local welfare agency agree to share the cost of 
such transportation. 

 
20 U.S.C. 6312(c)(5). 
 

Surrogate Parent 
 

Trinity Basin Preparatory must appoint an individual to serve as the surrogate parent for a child if: 
 

1. Trinity Basin Preparatory is unable to identify or locate a parent for a child with a disability; 
or 

2. the foster parent of a child is unwilling or unable to serve as a parent. 
 
A surrogate parent appointed by Trinity Basin Preparatory may not: 
 

1. be an employee of the state, Trinity Basin Preparatory, or any other agency involved in the 
education or care of the child; or 

2. have any interest that conflicts with the interests of the child. 
 
A surrogate parent must: 
 

1. be willing to serve in that capacity; 

Commented [VDK1]: Do we want this section about 
transportation? 

Formatted: Underline
Formatted: Centered



TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

pParent –Page 5 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 
 

Formatted: Tab stops:  6.5", Right + Not at  4.48"
Moved (insertion) [3]
Deleted: Foster 

Deleted: s
Deleted:  Solo 

2. exercise independent judgement in pursuing the child’s interests; 
3. ensure that the child’s due process rights under applicable state and federal laws are not 

violated; 
4. complete a training program that complies with minimum standards established by agency 

rule before the next scheduled admission, review, and dismissal committee meeting for the 
child but not later than the 90th day after the date the surrogate parent is appointed; 

5. visit the child and the school where the child is enrolled; 
6. review the child’s educational records; 
7. consult with any person involved in the child’s education, including the child’s teachers, 

caseworkers, court-appointed volunteers, guardian ad litem, attorney ad litem, foster 
parent, and caregiver; and 

8. attend meetings of the child’s admission, review, and dismissal committee. 
 
Trinity Basin Preparatory may appoint a person who has been appointed to serve as a child’s 
guardian ad litem or as a court-certified volunteer advocate as the child’s surrogate parent. As soon 
as practicable after appointing a surrogate parent Trinity Basin Preparatory shall provide written 
notice of the appointment to the child’s educational decision-maker and caseworker. 
 
If a court appoints a surrogate parent for a child with a disability and Trinity Basin Preparatory 
determines that the surrogate parent is failing to perform or is not properly performing the duties 
listed in this policy, Trinity Basin Preparatory shall consult with the DFPS regarding whether 
another person should be appointed to serve as the surrogate parent for the child. 
 
Revision History: 

 
Effective Date Version Modification 

1 New document 
 
 

Moved to footer [3]: Foster Parents – Solo 
Page Adopted by Board of Directors [date]¶



Independent Educational Evaluations – Page 1 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

Independent Educational Evaluations 
 

Purpose: The parent of a student with a disability has the right to obtain an independent 
educational evaluation (IEE) of the parent’s child if the parent disagrees with the evaluation of the 
student that was obtained by the open-enrollment charter school. 

 
Definitions: 

 
Independent educational evaluation (IEE) means an evaluation conducted by a qualified examiner 
who is not employed by the school responsible for the education of a student. 

 
Public expense means that the open-enrollment charter school either pays for the full cost of the 
evaluation or ensures that the evaluation is otherwise provided at no cost to the parent, consistent 
with the provisions of Part B of IDEA, which allow each State to use whatever State, local, Federal, 
and private sources of support are available in the State to meet the requirements of Part B of 
IDEA.  (34 CFR §300.502) 

 
Statement of Policy: 

 
If the parent requests an IEE, Trinity Basin Preparatory must provide the parent with information 
about where the parent may obtain an independent educational evaluation and about the open- 
enrollment charter school’s criteria that apply to IEE. 

 
The parent has the right to request an IEE of the parent’s child at public expense if the parent 
disagrees with an evaluation of the student completed by Trinity Basin Preparatory. 

 
If the parent requests an IEE, Trinity Basin Preparatory must respond to the parent by either: 

1. without unnecessary delay, file a due process complaint to request a hearing to show 
that its evaluation of the student is appropriate; or 

2. provide an IEE at public expense, unless the district demonstrates in a due process 
hearing that the evaluation of the student that the parent obtained did not meet the open- 
enrollment charter school’s criteria. 

 
If the district requests a hearing and the final decision is that the open-enrollment charter school’s 
evaluation of the student is appropriate, the parent still has the right to an IEE, but not at public 
expense. 

 
If the parent requests an IEE of the student, the district may ask why the parent objects to the 
evaluation of the student obtained by the district; however, the district may not require an 
explanation and may not unreasonably delay either providing the IEE of the student at public 
expense or filing a due process complaint to request a due process hearing to defend Trinity Basin 
Preparatory’s evaluation of the student. 

 
The parent is entitled to only one IEE of the student at public expense each time the district 
conducts an evaluation of the student with which the parent disagrees.  (34 CFR §300.502) 



Independent Educational Evaluations – Page 2 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

Parent-Initiated Evaluations 
 

If the parent obtains an independent educational evaluation of the student at public expense or the 
parent shares with the open-enrollment charter school an evaluation of the student that the parent 
obtained at private expense: 

1. the district must consider the results of the evaluation of the student, if it meets the 
open-enrollment charter school’s criteria for IEE, in any decision made with respect to 
the provision of a free appropriate public education (FAPE) to the student; and 

2. the parent or the district may present the evaluation as evidence at a due process hearing 
regarding the student. 

(34 CFR §300.502) 
 

Requests for Evaluations by Hearing Officers 
 

If a hearing officer requests an IEE of the student as part of a due process hearing, the cost of the 
evaluation must be at public expense. 

 
Open-Enrollment Charter School Criteria 

 

If an IEE is at public expense, the criteria under which the evaluation is obtained, including the 
location of the evaluation and the qualifications of the examiner, must be the same as the criteria 
that the district uses when it initiates an evaluation (to the extent those criteria are consistent with 
the parent’s right to an IEE). 

 
Except for the criteria described above, an open-enrollment charter school may not impose 
conditions or timelines related to obtaining an IEE at public expense.  (34 CFR 300.502(e)) 

 
 

a) Location 
 
The evaluator conducting an IEE of a child with a disability at public expense must be located within 
a 100-mile radius of Trinity Basin Preparatory.  This will allow the evaluator access to Trinity Basin 
Preparatory for observation of the student and access to the student’s cumulative and special 
education eligibility folders. 
 

b) Cost 
 
Parents are free to select whomever they choose to perform the IEE, so long as the examiner meets 
Trinity Basin Preparatory’s criteria. Trinity Basin Preparatory will pay a fee for an IEE that allows a 
parent to choose from among qualified professionals in the area. 
 
Trinity Basin Preparatory will not pay unreasonably excessive fees. An unreasonably excessive fee 
is one which is 20% above the prevailing fees in the area as established by the Medicaid/Medicare 
Service Provider Manual for the specific test being considered. 
 
Parents will be offered the opportunity to demonstrate to their child’s ARD committee that unique 



Independent Educational Evaluations – Page 3 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

circumstances exist which justify an IEE that does not meet Trinity Basin Preparatory criteria 
outlined in this document. 
 
When evaluators have a sliding scale fee based on parent income, Trinity Basin Preparatory will pay 
the amount charged to the parent if the evaluator meets Trinity Basin Preparatory criteria or Trinity 
Basin Preparatory has approved the IEE that does not meet Trinity Basin Preparatory criteria. 
 
In the event a parent pursues an IEE independently or pursues an IEE provider that is not on Trinity 
Basin Preparatory independent evaluator list, Trinity Basin Preparatory will determine if the 
evaluator meets Trinity Basin Preparatory criteria prior to authorizing payment or reimbursement. If 
payment will be authorized, an original billing form and an original written report with original 
signature must be submitted to Trinity Basin Preparatory prior to payment. 
 
Trinity Basin Preparatory will deny payment for an IEE conducted by an evaluator who does not 
meet Trinity Basin Preparatory criteria. Trinity Basin Preparatory will deny payment for an IEE that 
does not meet TEA criteria for the specific disability identified. 
 
If a hearing officer requests an IEE as part of a hearing on a due process complaint, the cost of the 
evaluation must be at public expense. 
 
Travel costs for evaluators will not exceed Trinity Basin Preparatory rates for travel as established 
by state guidelines. 
 
A contract for an IEE between an evaluator and Trinity Basin Preparatory will not exceed one year. 
All terms will become void after the expiration date of one year. 
 

c) Evaluator Criteria 
 
The evaluator conducting the IEE must meet Trinity Basin Preparatory criteria and possess 
comparable credentials to the examiner that conducted the evaluation that is in dispute. 
 
Evaluators must possess current licensure/certification to conduct the evaluation and must provide 
copies of his or her license or certification with the evaluation, if not previously provided. 
 
Evaluators must comply with all requirements specified in state and federal law, including those 
outlined in the professional board responsible for providing the license or certification. 
 
Evaluators must meet the examiner qualifications for the tests administered as outlined by the test 
producer. 
 
The evaluator will have access to the student’s cumulative folder and special education folders in 
gathering information about the student. 
 
The evaluator will have the ability to interview teachers and observe the student in the educational 
setting. 
 
Prior to conducting the assessment, the evaluator agrees to submit to a national criminal history 



Independent Educational Evaluations – Page 4 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

review and to provide any and all information necessary to secure the national criminal history 
review, including fingerprints and photographs, or other information required by Texas Education 
Code § 22.0834 concerning Contractor or Contractor’s Subcontractors. 
 
The evaluator agrees to conduct a thorough evaluation in the area(s) performed by Trinity Basin 
Preparatory with which the parent disagrees. 
 
Copies of protocols must be provided to Trinity Basin Preparatory.   
 
The report must comply with all federal and state requirements, including addressing the presence or 
absence of a disability condition as defined under the IDEA and the TEC. 
 
The evaluation must be provided to Trinity Basin Preparatory upon completion. 
 
Except for the criteria described above, Trinity Basin Preparatory may not impose conditions or 
timelines related to obtaining an IEE at public expense. (34 CFR 300.502(e)) 
 
 
Revision History: 

 
Effective Date Version Modification 

1 New document 



Individual Education Program (IEP) – Page 1 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

Individual Education Program (IEP) 
 

Purpose: It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to ensure that an Individualized Education 
Program (IEP) is developed, reviewed, and revised for each student with a disability who receives 
special education and relates services in accordance with the IDEA. (34 CFR §§300.22 and 
300.020-300.024) 

 
Statement of Policy: 

 
IEP Implementation 

 

At the beginning of each school year, Trinity Basin Preparatory will have in effect an IEP for each 
student  with  a  disability  that  qualifies  for  special  education  and  related  services.  (34 CFR 
§300.323) 

 
Once an IEP is developed, the IEP must be implemented as soon as possible. Additionally, Trinity 
Basin Preparatory will provide the parent with 5 days written notice prior to implementing a new 
IEP. However, the parent may waive the 5 days written notice and allow the IEP to be implemented 
immediately. (34 CFR §300.323; 19 TAC §89.1050) 

 
Responsibility of the ARD Committee 

 

The ARD committee must determine needed special education services, meaning specially- 
designed instruction that is provided at no cost to parents and meets the unique needs of the student 
with a disability.  (34 CFR §300.320(a)(4)) 

 
In determining a free appropriate public education for a student who receives special education, 
the ARD committee must determine needed related services as defined by 34 CFR §300.34. 

 
The ARD committee must consider the concerns of the parent in developing the IEP of a student 
with a disability. (34 CFR §300.324(a)(1)(ii)) 

 
Contents of an IEP 

 

Least Restrictive Environment 
The ARD committee must determine the least restrictive environment for each student in 
accordance with the IDEA. 

 
When creating the schedule of services for each student, it is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory 
to be clear and specific, and ensure that the student receives services in the least restrictive 
environment. 

 
For further explanation see the Least Restrictive Environment policy. (34 CFR §300.114; 19 TAC 
§89.1050) 



Individual Education Program (IEP) – Page 2 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

Related Services 
Related services must be provided to a student who qualifies for special education, if those related 
services are needed to ensure the student receives a free appropriate public education. 

 
Related services means transportation and developmental, corrective, and other supportive 
services required to assist a student with a disability to benefit from special education. Other related 
services include speech-language pathology and audiology services, interpreting services, 
psychological services, physical and occupational therapy, recreation, including therapeutic 
recreation, early identification and assessment of disabilities in children, counseling services, 
including rehabilitation counseling, orientation and mobility services, and medical services for 
diagnostic or evaluation purposes. Each related services is defined in accordance with the IDEA, 
34 CFR §300.34. 

 
Related services also include school health services and school nurse services, social work services 
in schools, and parent counseling and training. However, for students with surgically implanted 
devices, it does not include a medical device, the optimization of that device’s functioning, 
maintenance of that device, or replacement.  (34 CFR §300.34) 

 
Supplementary Aids and Services 
The ARD committee must determine needed supplementary aids and services to be provided to 
the student, or on behalf of the student. This includes aids, services, and other supports that are 
provided in regular education classes, other education-related settings, and in extracurricular and 
nonacademic settings, to enable students with disabilities to be educated with nondisabled students 
to the maximum extent appropriate.  (34 CFR §300.42). 

 
Present Levels of Academic Achievement and Functional Performance 
The ARD committee must provide a statement of the student’s present levels of academic 
achievement and functional performance. The statement must include a summary of how the 
student’s disability affects the student’s involvement and progress in the general curriculum or, in 
the case of a pre-school student, participation in appropriate activities. (34 CFR §300.320(a)(1)) 

 
Goals 
The ARD committee must include in the student’s individualized education program (IEP) a 
statement of measurable annual academic and functional goals designed to: 

 Meet the student’s needs that result from the student’s disability to enable the student to 
be involved in and to make progress in the general education curriculum; and

 Meet each of the student’s other educational needs that result from the student’s 
disability.

(34 CFR §300.320(a)(2)(i)) 
 

State Assessment 
The ARD committee must select which state assessment a student with a disability will take. As 
part of that decision, the ARD committee will also select accommodations available to the student. 
The student’s ARD committee will determine whether satisfactory performance on the required 
assessments is necessary for graduation. (34 CFR §300.320; 19 TAC §§89.1070; 89.1055) 



Individual Education Program (IEP) – Page 3 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

For more about state assessments, see Testing-Student Assessment policy. 
 
Graduation 
A high school student’s IEP shall include information on the student’s graduation plan. See 
Graduation policy for more information.  (19 TAC §89.1050) 

 
Transition Planning 
When a student with a disability turns 14, an ARD committee must begin transition planning. 
Transition services must be outlined in the student’s IEP in accordance with IDEA and the Texas 
Education Code. See Transition Services policy for a detailed explanation of transition services. 
(34 CFR §300.320; TEC §29.011) 

 
Extended School Year (ESY) Services 
The need for ESY services must be determined on an individual basis by the admission, review 
and dismissal (ARD) committee. 

 
ESY services are individualized instructional programs beyond the regular school year for eligible 
students with disabilities. Trinity Basin Preparatory must ensure that ESY services are available 
as necessary to provide a student with a disability with a free appropriate public education. 

 
ESY services may not be limited to particular categories of disability or by the type, amount, or 
duration of ESY services. (34 C.F.R. §300.106; 19 TAC §89.1065) 

 
Accommodations and Modifications 
The ARD committee will determine what accommodations and modifications are required to meet 
the student’s needs in all subject areas. All agreed upon accommodations and modifications will 
be listed in the IEP and provided to the student’s teachers. 

 
Deliberations 
Each IEP will include deliberations of the ARD committee meeting. Included in those notes will 
be the date of the meeting, as well as name of those in attendance, their title, each signature, and 
whether the parent and administrator agreed or disagreed. (TEC §29.005) 

 
It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to include a brief summary of topics discussed, requests 
and decisions regarding services, and other notes to make clear what occurred during the ARD 
committee meeting. The deliberations page for each ARD committee meeting is not meant to be a 
transcript of the meeting. 

 
Required Special Factors to Consider 

 

Behavior Impeding Learning 
In the case of the student whose behavior impedes the student’s learning or that of others, the 
admission, review, and dismissal (ARD) committee must consider: 

 The use of positive behavioral interventions and supports; and
 Other strategies to address that behavior, including a behavior intervention plan (BIP). 

(34 CFR §300.324(a)(2)(i))



Individual Education Program (IEP) – Page 4 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

 

In order to determine what strategies are best for each student, an ARD committee may consider a 
functional behavior assessment (FBA). If an ARD committee determines a change of placement is 
necessary due to the student’s behavior, it must conduct an FBA and implement a BIP. If an FBA 
was  already  completed,  the  ARD  committee  must  review  and  update  the  BIP.  (34     CFR 
§300.350(f)) 

 
If a BIP is required, as determined by the ARD committee, the BIP is part of the IEP and must be 
provided to all personnel who work with the student. (TEC §29.005(g)) 

 
Student with Limited English Proficiency 
When a student qualifies as a student with limited English proficiency, or qualifies as an English 
Language Learner, the ARD committee must consider the language need of the student as such 
needs relate to the student’s individualized education program (IEP). The ARD committee must 
include a professional member of the language proficiency assessment committee (LPAC) to serve 
on   the   ARD   committee   of   each   student   with   limited   English   proficiency.   (34   CFR 
§300.324(a)(2)(ii)) 

 

It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to provide a student who qualifies for language services 
and special education services both services as needed in order to provide a free appropriate public 
education and meet the unique needs of the student. Eligibility for one service does not disqualify 
the student from other services. (20 U.S.C. §§ 1400-1419; 29 U.S.C. § 794) 

 
Children Who Are Deaf or Hard of Hearing 
In the case of the student who is deaf or hard of hearing, the ARD committee must consider: 

 The student’s opportunities for direct communications with peers and professional 
personnel in the child’s language and communication mode;

 The student’s language and communication needs;
 The student’s academic level; and
 The student’s full range of needs, including opportunities for direct instruction in the 

student’s language and communication mode. (34 CFR §300.324(a)(2)(iv).
 

Students Who Are Blind or Visually Impaired 
In the case of the student who is blind or visually impaired, after an evaluation of the student’s 
reading and writing skills, needs, and appropriate reading and writing media (including an 
evaluation of the child’s future needs for instruction in Braille or the use of Braille), the ARD 
committee must either: 

 Provide for reading and writing instruction in Braille and the use of Braille; or
 Determine that instruction in Braille or the use of Braille is not appropriate. (34 CFR 

300.324(a)(2)(iii)).
 

Before placing a student with a visual impairment in a classroom setting, or within a reasonable 
period of time after placement, the ARD Committee must provide the training specified in Texas 
Education Code Subsection 30.002(c)(4). 



Individual Education Program (IEP) – Page 5 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

The IEP developed for a student who is visually impaired or functionally blind must comply with 
the provisions of Texas Education Code Subsections 32.002(c), (e) and (f), as applicable. 

 
Students with Autism or Other Pervasive Developmental Disorder 
It is the policy of the Trinity Basin Preparatory to comply with any applicable Commissioner rules 
that may require an open-enrollment charter school to include in the individualized education 
program (IEP) of a student with autism or another pervasive developmental disorder any 
information or requirement determined necessary, including the autism supplement, to ensure the 
student receives a free appropriate public education (FAPE) as required under the Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) (20 U.S.C. Section 1400 et seq.).  (TEC §29.005(e)) 

 
Assistive Technology 
The ARD committee must consider whether the student needs assistive technology devices (ATDs) 
as a part of the student’s special education, related services, or supplementary aids and services. 
On a case-by-case basis, the use of school-purchased ATDs in the student’s home or in other 
settings is required if the student’s ARD committee determines that the student needs access to 
those devices in order to receive free appropriate public education (34 CFR §§300.105; 
300.324(a)(2)(v); 20 USC §1414(d)(3)(B)(v)). 

 

Assistive technology means any device or equipment used to improve or maintain the function 
capabilities of a student with a disability. Assistive technology does not include a medical device 
that is surgically implanted. (34 CFR §§300.5-300.6) 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory may transfer an assistive technology device (ATD) in accordance to 
TEC §30.0015. The transfer agreement must include the standards in TEC §30.0015, including the 
following: 

1. The transferor and transferee must represent and agree that the terms of the transfer are 
based on the fair market value of the ATD, determined in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

2. The informed consent of the parent of the student with a disability, or the adult student, 
for whom the ATD is being transferred must be obtained before the transfer of an ATD 
pursuant to TEC §30.0015. The procedures employed by Trinity Basin Preparatory in 
obtaining informed consent shall be consistent with the procedures employed by the 
school to obtain parental consent under 34 CFR §300.300. Consistent with 34 CFR 
§300.505(c), informed parental or adult student consent need not be obtained if the 
school can demonstrate that it has taken reasonable measures to obtain that consent, 
and the student’s parent or the adult student has failed to respond. To meet the 
reasonable measures requirement, the school must use procedures consistent with those 
described in 34 CFR §300.322(d). 

3. If the transfer is a sale, then the sale of the ATD shall be evidenced by a “Uniform 
Transfer Agreement” (UTA) which includes the following: 

a. the names of the transferor and the transferee (which may be any 
individual or entity identified in TEC, §30.0015(b)); 

b. the date of the transfer; 
c. a description of the ATD being transferred; 



Individual Education Program (IEP) – Page 6 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

 
 
 
 
(19 TAC 89.1056) 

d. the terms of the transfer (including the transfer of warranties, to the extent 
applicable); and 

e. the signatures of authorized representatives of both transferor and 
transferee. 

 

Students who transfer with an IEP 
 

When a student transfers to Trinity Basin Preparatory from another school within Texas, the 
district must provide a free appropriate public education to the student. Trinity Basin Preparatory 
must provide comparable services as those described in the IEP the student transferred with until 
the ARD committee adopts the student’s IEP from the previous school, or develops, adopts and 
implements a new IEP. 

 
If the student with a disability transfers to Trinity Basin Preparatory from a school outside of Texas, 
Trinity Basin Preparatory must provide the student with FAPE, including comparable services, 
until Trinity Basin Preparatory conducts an evaluation and develops, adopts, and implements a 
new IEP. (34 CFR §300.323) 

 
A new IEP must be implemented within 30 school days from the date the student is verified as 
being a student eligible for special education services. 

 
If a student transfers from Trinity Basin Preparatory, the district will furnish the student’s special 
education records to the student’s new school not later than 10 calendar days after receiving the 
records request from the new school. 

 
Access to the IEP 

 

All educators and personnel working with a student with a disability will have access to the 
student’s IEP, including all of the relevant parts. 

 
It is the responsibility of Trinity Basin Preparatory that each person implementing a portion of the 
IEP is aware of their specific responsibilities. Additionally, personnel must be aware of the 
accommodations and modifications that must be implemented.  (34 C.F.R. §300.323(d); 19 TAC 
§89.1075) 

 
 
Revision History: 

 
Effective Date Version Modification 

1 New document 



Procedural Safeguards – Solo Page Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 
 

Moved (insertion) [3]

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

Procedural Safeguards 
 

Purpose: The Notice of Procedural Safeguards: Rights of  Parents  of  Students  with  Disabilities 
(Procedural Safeguards) explains parents’ specific rights and responsibilities under the Individuals 
with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). 

 
Statement of Policy: 

 
Procedural Safeguards 

 

Each parent of a student with a disability, or an adult student, must be provided a copy of the 
procedural safeguards created by the Texas Education Agency. (34 CFR §300.121) 

 
Procedural safeguards must be provided when: 

1. Initial referral or request for evaluation is proposed by the district 
2. Upon the first occurrence of the filing of a due process hearing complaint or special 

education complaint during a school year 
3. A change of placement occurs in accordance with 34 CFR §300.350; and 
4. Upon request by the parent 

 
Each year following the initiation of services, Trinity Basin Preparatory must provide a copy of 
the Procedural Safeguards.  (34 CFR §300.504) 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory must provide the Procedural Safeguards to parents in their native 
language or other mode of communication unless it is clearly not feasible to do so. If a parent’s 
native language or other mode of communication is not a written language, the school must 
translate the notice orally or by other means so that it is understood by the parent. 
 
A parent of a child with a disability may elect to receive required notices by electronic mail, if 
Trinity Basin Preparatory makes that option available. 34 CFR 300.505.  
 
A copy of the Procedural Safeguards is available through the Texas Education Agency at 
http://framework.esc18.net/display/Webforms/LandingPage.aspx 

 
 

Revision History: 
 

Effective Date Version Modification 
1 New document 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Left:  0.92", Right:  1", Top:  0.44", Bottom: 
0.19", Footer distance from edge:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.06"
Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Deleted: ¶



Referral for Possible Special Education Services – Page 1 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

Referral for Possible Special Education Services 
 

Purpose: Trinity Basin Preparatory is required to provide in our student and parent handbook, a 
copy of the “Providing Assistance to Students Who Have Learning Difficulties or Need Special 
Education Services,” developed by the Texas Education Agency or an equivalent statement. The 
letter statement must include an explanation of that the parent is entitled to request an evaluation 
at any time. 

 
A copy of TEA’s letter can be found at 
http://tea.texas.gov/Curriculum_and_Instructional_Programs/Special_Education/Programs_and_ 
Services/Student_Handbook_Statement    English/.  (TEC §26.0081) 

 

Statement of Policy: 
 
It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to make referrals of students for a full and individual 
initial evaluation for possible special education services part of the open-enrollment charter 
school’s overall general education referral or screening system. At any time a parent, TEA, another 
state agency, or the school may initiate a request for an initial evaluation. 

 
Before referral, students experiencing difficulty in the general classroom will be considered for all 
support services available to all students. However, the use of interventions, including RTI may 
not be used to delay or deny an evaluation requested by the parent. (34 CFR §§300.304-300.311; 
OSEP 11-07 RTI Memo) 

 
If after general education supports and interventions are tried, and a student continues to 
experience difficulty in the general classroom after the provision of interventions, school personnel 
must refer the student for a full and individual initial evaluation. (20 U.S.C. 1414(a)(1); 34 CFR 
300.301; 19 TAC 89.1011) 

 
A reasonable time before the school proposes or refuses to initiate the identification, evaluation, 
or educational placement of a student or the provision of a free appropriate public education 
(FAPE) to a student, the school shall provide written notice to the student’s parent or guardian. (20 
U.S.C. 1415(b)(3); 34 CFR 300.503(a)) 

 
The school shall conduct a full and individual initial evaluation before the initial provision of 
special education and related services.  (20 U.S.C. 1414(a)(1)(A)) 

 
The screening of a student by a teacher or specialist to determine appropriate instructional 
strategies for curriculum implementation will not be considered to be an evaluation for eligibility 
for special education and related services.  (20 U.S.C. 1414(a)(1)(E)) 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory must promptly request consent for initial evaluation whenever the 
student is referred for an evaluation and if, prior to a referral, the student has not made adequate 
progress after an appropriate period of time when provided instruction as follows: 

 Appropriate instruction in regular education settings, delivered by qualified personnel as 
demonstrated by the data; and 



Referral for Possible Special Education Services – Page 2 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

 With data-based documentation of repeated assessments of achievement at reasonable 
intervals, reflecting formal assessment of the student’s progress during instruction, which 
was provided to the student’s parents. 

(34 CFR 300.309(c)) 
 
Trinity Basin Preparatory must also accept a referral for special education services made for a 
student who is homeless or in substitute care by a school previously attended by the student. (TEC 
25.007) 

 
Providing Assistance to Students Who Have Learning Difficulties or 

Need Special Education Services 
 

If a child is experiencing learning difficulties, the parent may contact the Executive Director of 
Student Services to learn about the district’s overall general education referral or screening system 
for support services. 

 
This system links students to a variety of support options, including referral for a special education 
evaluation. Students having difficulty in the regular classroom should be considered for tutorial, 
compensatory, and other academic or behavior support services that are available to all students 
including a process based on Response to Intervention (RtI). The implementation of RtI has the 
potential to have a positive impact on the ability of districts to meet the needs of all struggling 
students. 

 
At any time, a parent is entitled to request an evaluation for special education services. Within 15 
school days, Trinity Basin Preparatory must respond to the parent’s request. If an evaluation is 
needed, Trinity Basin Preparatory, must provide parent with consent forms. Once informed consent 
is received the district must complete the evaluation and the report within 45 school days of the 
date the school receives the written consent. The district must give a copy of the evaluation report 
to the parent. 

 
If the district determines that the evaluation is not needed, the district will provide the parent with 
prior written notice that explains why the child will not be evaluated. This written notice will 
include a statement that informs the parents of their rights, if they disagree with the district. The 
district is required to give parents the Notice of Procedural Safeguards – Rights of Parents of 
Students with Disabilities. Additional information regarding the IDEA is available from the school 
district in a companion document A Guide to the Admission, Review, and Dismissal Process. 

 
The designated person to contact regarding options for a child experiencing learning difficulties 
or a referral for evaluation for special education services is the Executive Director of Student 
Services. 

 
Notification to Parents Regarding Intervention Strategies 

 
Each school year, Trinity Basin Preparatory shall notify a parent of each child, other than a child 
enrolled in a special education program, who receives assistance from Trinity Basin Preparatory for 
learning difficulties, including through the use of intervention strategies that Trinity Basin 

Deleted: Special Programs 

Deleted: s

Deleted: Special Programs

Deleted: ¶
Formatted: Justified,  No bullets or numbering
Formatted: Underline
Formatted: Centered



Referral for Possible Special Education Services – Page 3 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

Preparatory provides to the child. The notice must: 
 

1. Be provided when the child begins to receive the assistance for that school year; 
2. Be written in English or, to the extent practicable, the parent’s native language; and  
3. Include: 

a. A reasonable description of the assistance that may be provided to the child, including 
any intervention strategies that may be used; 

b. Information collected regarding any intervention in the base tier of a multi-tiered system 
of supports that has previously been used with the child; 

c. An estimate of the duration for which the assistance, including through the use of 
intervention strategies, will be provided; 

d. The estimated time frames within which a report on the child’s progress with the 
assistance, including any intervention strategies used, will be provided to the parent; and 

e. A copy of a written explanation of the options and requirements for providing assistance 
to students who have learning difficulties or who need or may need special education. The 
explanation must state that a parent is entitled at any time to request an evaluation of the 
parent’s child for special education services or for aids, accommodations, or services 
under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act. 

 
The notice under this policy may be provided to a child’s parent at a Section 504 meeting. 
 
A parent is entitled to access to all written records of Trinity Basin Preparatory concerning the 
parent’s child, including attendance records, test scores, grades, disciplinary records, counseling 
records, psychological records, applications for admission, health and immunization information, 
teacher and school counselor evaluations, reports of behavioral progress, and records relating to 
assistance provided for learning difficulties, including information collected regarding any 
intervention strategies used with the child. 
 
Revision History: 

 
Effective Date Version Modification 

1 New document 



 

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

Shared Services Arrangements 
 

Purpose: Trinity Basin Preparatory will comply with rules and regulations regarding the 
participation of a shared services arrangement for the provision of special education and related 
services if needed to fulfill the program requirements for student who receives special education 
services. 

 
Statement of Policy: 

 
Purpose: Trinity Basin Preparatory may enter into a written contract to jointly operate their special 
education programs with another school district. The contract must be approved by the 
Commissioner. Funds to which the cooperating schools/charter schools are entitled may be 
allocated to the schools/charter schools jointly as shared services arrangement units or shared 
services arrangement funds in accordance with the shared services arrangement schools/charters’ 
agreement.  (TEC §29.007) 

 
It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to participate in a shared services arrangement for the 
provision of special education and related services, if determined necessary and appropriate. 

 
Information concerning the school’s arrangement can be obtained by contacting the district’s 
Executive Director of Student Services. 

 
 
Revision History: 

 
Effective Date Version Modification 

1 New document 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Shared Services Arrangements – Solo Page Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

Deleted: Special Programs.



Special Education Teacher and Related 
Service Provider Qualifications – Page 1 

Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

Special Education Teacher and Related Service Provider Qualifications 
 

Purpose: When used with respect to any public elementary school or secondary school special 
education teacher teaching in a State, such term means that--the teacher has obtained full State 
certification as a special education teacher (including certification obtained through alternative 
routes to certification), or passed the State special education teacher licensing examination, and 
holds a license to teach in the State as a special education teacher, except that when used with 
respect to any teacher teaching in a public charter school, the term means that the teacher meets 
the requirements set forth in the State’s public charter school law. Trinity Basin Preparatory 
ensures all special education teachers and related services providers are fully and appropriately 
certified and licensed according to all applicable laws, regulations, and rules. 

 
Statement of Policy: 

 
Compliance with Federal and State Personnel Standards 

for Individuals Serving Children with Disabilities 
 

It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to ensure that personnel standards for all individuals 
serving children with disabilities are met in accordance with the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act (IDEA) and related procedures. 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory recognizes that both the No Child Left Behind Act and the IDEA provide 
that charter school teachers must meet the requirements set forth in the State’s public charter school 
law. (20 U.S.C. §7801(23) (A) (i); 20 U.S.C. §1401(10) (B) (i)) In Texas, this means that the 
charter school special education teacher must be certified. 

 
It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to make an ongoing good-faith effort to recruit and 
hire appropriately and adequately certified and/or licensed personnel to provide a wide range of 
special education and related services to students with disabilities who are eligible for special 
education services. Special education staffing needs come from the individualized decisions made 
by the ARD committee for students who qualify for special education and related services, and are 
approved by the Executive Director of Student Services. 

 
It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to ensure that all personnel necessary to carry out the 
requirements of the IDEA are appropriately and adequately certified and/or licensed, prepared and 
assigned. 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory uses the following strategies for accessing adequately certified and/or 
licensed personnel: 

- Hiring faculty with dual certification and/or licensure 
- Hiring consultants to provide special education services and supports 
- Forming partnerships with institutions and/or agencies that employ related services 

professionals 
- Seeking appropriately certified and licensed professionals to provide special education 

services and supports on a contractual basis 

Deleted: Special Programs



Special Education Teacher and Related 
Service Provider Qualifications – Page 2 

Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

All special education and related service personnel shall be certified, endorsed, or licensed in the 
area or areas of assignment in accordance with 34 CFR §300.156; TEC §§21.002, 21.003, and 
29.304; or appropriate state agency credentials. (19 T.A.C. §89.1131(a)) 

 
Notice of Teacher Qualifications 

 

Trinity Basin Preparatory must provide to the parent or guardian of each student enrolled in the 
school written notice of the qualifications of each teacher employed by the school. (TEC §12.130) 

 
 
Revision History: 

 
Effective Date Version Modification 

1 New document 



State Funding: Special Allotments – Page 2 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 
 

Moved (insertion) [2]

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

State Funding: Special Allotments 
 

Statement of Policy: 
 

Trinity Basin Preparatory shall maintain records of students participating in special programs in 
accordance with the Commissioner of Education’s rules. (19 TAC §129.21) 
 

Special Education Allotment 
 

Each open-enrollment charter school will receive an annual allotment equal to the adjusted basic 
allotment multiplied by 1.1 for each student receiving special education and related services in 
a mainstream instructional arrangement. For each full-time equivalent student receiving special 
education and related services in average daily attendance in an instructional arrangement other 
than a mainstream instructional arrangement, the open-enrollment charter school is entitled to 
an annual allotment equal to the adjusted basic allotment multiplied by a weight determined 
according to instructional arrangement as set forth in Section 42.151, Texas Education Code. 

 
Funds allocated under this section, other than an indirect cost allotment established under State 
Board of Education rule, must be used in the special education program under Subchapter A, 
Chapter 29.  (TEC §42.151) 

 
Compensatory Education Allotment 

 

Trinity Basin Preparatory must use funds allocated under TEC §42.152(a) for a purpose 
authorized in TEC §42.152(c) but is not otherwise subject to Subchapter C (Compensatory 
Education Programs), Chapter 29, Texas Education Code governing compensatory educational 
programs. (TEC §42.152(c)) 

 
Funds allocated under TEC §42.152 shall be used to fund supplemental programs and services 
designed to eliminate any disparity in performance on assessment instruments administered 
under Subchapter B, Chapter 39, Texas Education Code or disparity in the rates of high school 
completion between students at risk of dropping out of school, as defined by TEC §29.081 
(Compensatory, Intensive, and Accelerated Instruction) and all other students. Specifically, the 
funds, other than an indirect cost allotment established under State Board of Education   (SBOE) 

 
 

rule, which may not exceed 45 percent, may be used to meet the costs of providing a 
compensatory, intensive, or accelerated instruction program under TEC §29.081 or an 
alternative education program established under TEC §37.008 (Disciplinary Alternative 
Education Programs) or to support a program eligible under Title I of the Elementary and 
Secondary Education Act of 1965, as provided by Pub. L. No. 103-382 and its subsequent 
amendments, and by federal regulations implementing that Act, at a campus at which at least 40 
percent of the students are educationally disadvantaged. In meeting the costs of providing a 
compensatory, intensive, or accelerated instruction program under TEC §29.081, Trinity Basin 

Formatted: Left:  1", Right:  1", Top:  1", Bottom:  1",
Header distance from edge:  0.5", Footer distance from
edge:  0.5"

Deleted: High Cost Risk Pool Funds¶
¶
In accordance with Rider 36, General 
Appropriations Act, 82nd Texas Legislature, an 
open- enrollment charter school may apply to the 
High Cost Fund (HCF) maintained by the Texas 
Education Agency for an award of funds to assist 
the school in addressing the needs of high-need 
children with disabilities when the cost of serving 
such a child is greater than four times the average 
per pupil expenditure in the state.¶
¶
The High Cost Fund must not be used to:¶
limit or condition the right of a student with a 
disability who is assisted under Part B of the Act 
to receive a free appropriate public education 
(FAPE) in the least restrictive environment 
pursuant to section 612(a)(5) of the Act; or¶
support legal fees, court costs, or other costs 
associated with a cause of action brought on behalf 
of a student with a disability to ensure FAPE for 
such student.¶
¶

Moved to footer [1]: State 
Funding: Special Allotments – 
Page 1 Approved by [CEO or 
Board of Directors] [date] 
Effective [date]¶

Deleted: 



State Funding: Special Allotments – Page 2 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 
 

Moved (insertion) [2]

Preparatory’s compensatory education allotment shall be used for costs supplementary to the 
regular education program, such as costs for program and student evaluation, instructional 
materials and equipment and other supplies required for quality instruction, supplemental staff 
expenses, salary for teachers of at-risk students, smaller class size, and individualized 
instruction.  (TEC §42.152) 

 
Bilingual Education Allotment 

 

For each student in average daily attendance in a bilingual education or special language 
program under Subchapter B, Chapter 29, an open-enrollment charter school is entitled to an 
annual allotment equal to the adjusted basic allotment multiplied by 0.1. Funds allocated under 
this section, other than an indirect cost allotment established under State Board of Education rule, 
must be used in providing bilingual education or special language programs under Subchapter 
B, Chapter 29, and must be accounted for under existing agency reporting and auditing 
procedures. An open-enrollment charter school’s bilingual education or special language 
allocation may only be used for program and student evaluation, instructional materials and 
equipment, staff development, supplemental staff expenses, salary supplements for teachers, 
and other supplies required for quality instruction and smaller class size.  (TEC 
§§12.104(b)(2)(G) and 42.153) 

 
Revision History: 

 
Effective Date Version Modification 

1 New document 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Deleted: Indirect Cost Allotments¶
¶
Beginning with the 2012–13 school year, an 
open-enrollment charter school may choose to 
use a greater indirect cost allotment under 
Education Code 42.151, .153, .154, and .156, to 
the extent the school receives less funding per 
weighted student in state and local maintenance 
and operations revenue than in the 2011–12 
school year.¶
¶
The Commissioner will limit the percentage 
increase in allowable indirect cost to no more 
than the percentage decrease in state and local 
maintenance and operations revenue from the 
2011-2012 school year.  (TEC §42.1541; 19 
TAC §105.11)¶
¶
¶

Moved to footer [2]: State Funding: Special Allotments – 
Page 2 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]¶



 

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

Teacher Requested Review 
 

Purpose: Trinity Basin Preparatory is required to develop a process for a teacher who instructs a 
student with a disability in a regular classroom setting to: 

1. request a review of the student’s individualized education program (IEP); 
2. provide for a timely response to the teacher’s request; and 
3. provide for notification to the student’s parent or legal guardian of that response. 

(TEC §29.001(11)) 

Statement of Policy: 
 

Teacher-Requested Review of Individual Education Program 
 

It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to provide teachers with a copy of students’ IEPs at 
the beginning of each school year and following each ARD committee meeting. Teachers will sign 
acknowledging receipt of each student’s plan, and the signature page will be retained in the 
student’s special education folder. Teachers may also request to review a student’s IEP at any time, 
via digital or hard copy, to ensure that the teacher is able to properly implement the students IEP. 

 
All requests should be submitted to the Executive Director of Student Services for the district. 

 
Once a teacher requests a student’s IEP, the Executive Director of Student Services will provide a 
digital or hard copy of the student’s IEP within 48 hours.  (TEC §29.001(11)) 

 
 
Revision History: 

 
Effective Date Version Modification 

1 New document 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Teacher Requested Review – Solo Page Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

Deleted: Special Programs 

Deleted: Special Programs 



Transition Services – Page 1 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 
 

Transition Services 
 

Purpose: It is the policy of Trinity Basin Preparatory to begin transition planning when a student 
turns 14 years old and to implement transition services as part of the student’s IEP beginning at 
age 16. 
(TEC §29.0112; 19 TAC §89.1055) 

 
 
Statement of Policy: 

 
As early as possible, schools should begin developing programs and services, based on a student’s 
strengths, preferences, and interests that focus on: 

 Instruction;
 Related services;
 Community experiences;
 Development of employment and other post-school adult living objectives; and
 If appropriate, daily living skills and a functional vocational evaluation (34 CFR 

300.43).
 
These services as required for students who are eligible for special education services as a way to 
assist students in developing appropriate post-secondary goals, as well as to provide parents and 
students with valuable information regarding available community resource. 

 
Transition Services 

 

Transition services are coordinated activities focused on improving the academic and functional 
achievement of a student with a disability to facilitate the student’s movement from school to post- 
school activities. Transition services include postsecondary education, vocational education, 
integrated employment (including supported employment), continuing and adult education, adult 
services, independent living, or community participation. The development of a transition plan 
may include instruction, community services, related services, development of employment skills 
or life skills. 

 
Transition services must be based on the student’s needs, taking into account the student’s 
preferences and strengths.  (34 CFR §300.43) 

 
Transition Planning 

 

Procedures for transition planning compliance must specify the manner in which a student’s 
admission, review, and dismissal (ARD) committee must consider, and if appropriate, address the 
following issues in the student’s individualized education program (IEP): 

1. appropriate student involvement in the student’s transition to life outside the public 
school system; 

2. if the student is younger than 18 years of age, appropriate parental involvement in the 
student’s transition; 

Deleted: ning



Transition Services – Page 2 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

3. if the student is at least 18 years of age, appropriate parental involvement in the 
student’s transition, if the parent is invited to participate by the student or the open- 
enrollment charter school in which the student is enrolled; 

4. any postsecondary education options; 
5. a functional vocational evaluation; 
6. employment goals and objectives; 
7. if the student is at least 18 years of age, the availability of age-appropriate instructional 

environments; 
8. independent living goals and objectives; and 
9. appropriate circumstances for referring a student or the student’s parents to a 

governmental agency for services. 
(TEC §29.011)(19 TAC §89.1055(g)) 

 
Individual Education Program (IEP) 

 

Trinity Basin Preparatory will ensure that beginning not later than the initial IEP to be in effect 
when a student turns 14 (or younger, if determined appropriate by the ARD committee) updated 
annually, the student’s IEP shall include: 

1. Appropriate, measurable post-secondary goals based on age appropriate transition 
assessments related to training, education, employment and, where appropriate, 
independent living skills; and 

2. The transition services, including courses of study, needed to assist the student in 
reaching these goals 

 
If a participating agency other than the district fails to provide the transition services described in 
the IEP, the school shall reconvene the ARD committee to identify alternative strategies to meet 
the transition objectives. 

 
Transition Guide 

 

The Texas Education Agency has developed the “Texas Transition and Employment Guide.” The 
guide provides information about statewide services and programs to assist students with 
disabilities transitioning to life outside public school. 

 
Trinity Basin Preparatory must post the “Texas Transition and Employment Guide” on their 
website, if the school maintains a website. Trinity Basin Preparatory must also provide written 
information, and even assist, a parent in accessing the electronic version of the guide. The 
transition guide must be provided to the parent at the first ARD committee meeting at which 
transition is discussed. If the guide was published after the ARD committee already discussed 
transition services, the guide must be provided at the next ARD meeting. 

 
A copy of the guide can also be found on the Texas Education Agency website at: 
http://tea.texas.gov/Curriculum_and_Instructional_Programs/Special_Education/Parent_and_Fa 
mily_Resources/Texas_Transition_and_Employment_Guide/ 

 

(TEC §29.0112) 
  



Transition Services – Page 3 Adopted by Board of Directors [date]  

 
Age of Majority – Transfer of Rights 

 
Not later than one year before the 18th birthday of a student with a disability, Trinity Basin 
Preparatory shall:  
 

1. Provide to the student and the student’s parents: 
a. Written notice regarding the transfer of rights; and  
b. Information and resources regarding guardianship, alternatives to guardianship, including 

a supported decision-making agreement under Estates Code, Chapter 1357, and other 
supports and services that may enable the student to live independently; and 

2. Ensure that the student’s individualized education program (“IEP”) includes a statement that 
Trinity Basin Preparatory provided the required notice, information, and resources.  

 
When a student reaches the age of majority (18 years of age), Trinity Basin Preparatory shall provide 
written notice to the student and the student’s parents of the transfer of parental rights. The notice 
must include the information required above.  
 
This notice is separate and distinct from the requirement that, beginning at least one year before the 
student reaches the age of 18, the student’s IEP include a statement regarding transfer of parental 
rights.   
 
If a student with a disability or the student’s parent requests information regarding guardianship or 
alternatives to guardianship, Trinity Basin Preparatory shall provide the student or parent information 
and resources on supported decision-making agreements under Estates Code, Chapter 1357. 
 
A student with a disability who is 18 years of age or older or whose disabilities of minority have 
been removed for general purposes under Chapter 31, Family Code, shall have the same right to 
make educational decisions as a student without a disability. All other rights accorded to parents 
under Chapter 29, Subchapter A of the Education Code or 20 U.S.C. 1415 transfer to the student.  
 
(34 CFR 300.520; Education Code 29.017(a), (c), (c-1), (c-2); 19 TAC 89.1049(c)) 
 

Revision History: 
 

Effective Date Version Modification 
1 New document 

Formatted: Centered

Deleted: Section Break (Next Page)



TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 

General and Fiscal Guidelines – Page 1  Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

Formatted: Font: Bold
Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Font: 10 pt
Formatted: Font: 10 pt
Formatted: Font: 10 pt

General and Fiscal Guidelines 
 

Purpose: Trinity Basin Preparatory must comply with the Texas Education Agency General and 
Fiscal Guidelines.   
 
 
Statement of Policy: 
 

Charging Costs to Special Education Grant 
 
Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc. may charge costs to a special education grant when those costs 
follow the Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc.’s local written procedures for allowability of costs and 
meet the following criteria: 
 

 Are reasonable for the performance of the special education grant and are allocable under 
the applicable cost principles; 

 Conform to limitations or exclusions set forth in applicable cost principles or the special 
education grant agreement as to types or amount of costs; 

 Are consistent with policies and procedures that apply uniformly to federally or state-
funded activities funded from other sources; 

 Are accorded consistent treatment among all grant programs, regardless of funding source; 
 Are not included as a cost or used to meet cost-sharing or matching requirements of any 

other federally or state-funded program in the current or a prior period; and 
 Are adequately documented. 

 
Reasonable Cost 

 
A cost can be considered reasonable if it meets the following standards: 
 

 The cost is of a type generally recognized as ordinary and necessary for the operation of 
Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc. or grant performance; 

 Restrictions or requirements are imposed for generally accepted sound business practices, 
arms-length bargaining, federal or state laws and regulations, and grant award terms and 
conditions; 

 Consideration is given to market prices for comparable goods or services for the 
geographical area; 

 Individuals are acting with prudence in the circumstances of responsibility to Trinity Basin 
Preparatory, Inc. and federal and state government; and 

 There are no significant deviations from established practices of Trinity Basin Preparatory, 
Inc. that may unjustifiably increase grant costs. 

 
a) Allocating Costs  

 
A cost is allocable to the special education grant in accordance with relative benefits received if it 
is treated consistently with other costs incurred for the same purposes in like circumstance and if 
it meets the following: 

Formatted: Font: 12 pt
Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Left:  1", Right:  1", Top:  1", Bottom:  1",
Header distance from edge:  0.5", Footer distance from
edge:  0.5", Different first page header

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Deleted: ¶

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Bold, Underline
Formatted: Font: 12 pt
Deleted: ¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
¶
Transportation – Page 1 Adopted by Board of Directors 
[date]

Formatted: Body Text, Right:  0.08", Space Before:  4.5
pt
Formatted: Font: Bold
Formatted: Not Highlight
Formatted: Centered
Formatted: Underline, Not Highlight
Formatted: Centered
Formatted: Underline



General and Fiscal Guidelines – Page 2  Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

 
 Is incurred specifically for the grant; 
 Benefits both the grant and the other work and can be distributed in reasonable proportion 

to the benefits received; and 
 Is necessary to the overall operation of Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc. and is assignable in 

part to the special education grant award in accordance with the principles of this 
framework. 

 
Revision History: 

 
Effective Date Version Modification 

1 New document 
 



TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 

Special Education Video and Audio Monitoring Policy  – Page 1 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 
  Effective [date]  

Special Education Video and Audio Monitoring Policy 
 
Purpose:  To promote the safety of students who receive special education services in self-
contained classrooms or other special education settings, Trinity Basin Preparatory (the “District”) 
shall provide video equipment to each campus in which a student who receives special education 
services in a self-contained classroom or other special education setting is enrolled, upon request 
by a parent, staff member, or the District board of directors. 
 
Policy Intent:  This policy complies with the provisions outlined in Senate Bill 507, Texas 
Education Code § 29.022, and 19 Texas Administrative Code 103.1301 regarding Video 
Surveillance of Certain Special Education Settings.   
 
Definitions: 
 

Parent – A person as described in Texas Education Code § 26.002, whose child receives 
special education and related services for at least 50% of the instructional day in a self-
contained classroom or other special education setting.  Parent also includes any person 
standing in parental relation to the student. 
 
Staff Member – A District teacher, related service provider, paraprofessional, counselor or 
educational aide who is assigned to work with a child in the self-contained classroom or 
other special education setting. 
 
Board of Directors – The Trinity Basin Preparatory Board of Directors. 
 
School Business Day – A day that a District campus or school district administrative offices 
are open. 
 
Time-Out – The meaning assigned by Texas Education Code § 37.0021. 
 
Self-contained Classroom – A classroom on a regular Trinity Basin Preparatory campus 
(i.e., a campus that services students in general education and students in special education) 
in which a majority of the students in regular attendance are provided special education 
and related services and have one of the following instructional arrangements/settings 
described in the Student Attendance Accounting Handbook adopted by the Texas 
Education Agency (“TEA”): 
 

(A) Self-contained (mild/moderate/severe) regular campus; 
(B) Full-time early childhood (preschool program for children with disabilities) 

special education setting; 
(C) Residential care and treatment facility—self-contained (mild/moderate/severe) 

regular campus; 
(D) Residential care and treatment facility—full-time early childhood special 

education setting; 
(E) Off home campus—self-contained (mild/moderate/severe) regular campus; or  
(F) Off home campus—full-time early childhood special education setting.  



Special Education Video and Audio Monitoring Policy  – Page 2 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 
  Effective [date]  

 
Other Special Education Setting – A classroom on a separate Trinity Basin Preparatory 
campus (i.e., a campus that serves only students who receive special education and related 
services) in which a majority of the students in regular attendance are provided special 
education and related services and have one of the following instructional 
arrangements/settings described in the Student Attendance Accounting Handbook adopted 
by the TEA: 

 
(A) Residential care and treatment facility—separate campus; or 
(B) Off home campus—separate campus. 

 
Incident – An event or circumstance that: 
 

1. Involves alleged “abuse” or “neglect,” as those terms are described in Texas 
Family Code § 261.001, of a student by a Staff Member of Trinity Basin 
Preparatory or alleged “physical abuse” or “sexual abuse,” as those terms are 
described in Texas Family Code § 261.410, of a student by another student; and 

2. Allegedly occurred in a self-contained classroom or other special education 
setting in which video surveillance is conducted under Texas Education Code 
§ 29.022. 

 
Video Camera – A video surveillance camera with audio recording capabilities. 
 
Video Equipment – One or more video cameras and any technology and equipment needed 
to place, operate, and maintain video cameras, as required by Texas Education Code § 
29.022 and 19 Texas Administrative Code § 103.1301. 
 
Designated Administrator – The Designated Administrator is tasked with the coordination 
of compliance with Texas Education Code § 29.022, including the provision of equipment 
to campuses and the development of administrative regulations.  The Designated 
Administrator is the Chief Legal and Operations Officer.      

 
 

Statement of Policy: 

Authorized Requestors 
 

The following people may request in writing that video equipment be provided to a campus at 
which one or more children receive special education services in a qualifying classroom or setting: 
 

1. A parent as defined herein; 
2. The Board of Directors; 
3. The principal or assistant principal for their campus; and 
4. A staff member as defined herein. 

 
The parent of a student whose admission, review, and dismissal (ARD) committee has determined 
that the student’s placement for the following school year will be in a classroom or other special 



Special Education Video and Audio Monitoring Policy  – Page 3 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 
  Effective [date]  

education setting in which a video camera may be placed under this section may make a request 
for the video camera by the later of: 
 

1. The date on which the current school year ends; or 
2. The tenth school business day after the date of the placement determination by the 

admission, review, and dismissal committee; and  
 
If a request is made by a parent in compliance with the paragraph above, unless the agency grants 
an extension of time, the school must begin operation of a video camera not later than the later of: 
 

1. The tenth school day of the fall semester; or 
2. The 45th school business day, or the first school day after the 45th school business day if 

that day is not a school day, after the date the request is made.   
 

Processing the Request 
 

A written request must be submitted and acted on as follows: 
 

1. A parent, staff member, or assistant principal must submit a request to the principal or the 
principal’s designee of the campus addressed in the request, and the principal or designee 
must provide a copy of the request to the district’s designated administrator; 

2. A principal must submit a request by the principal to the district’s designated administrator; 
and 

3. The board of directors must submit a request to the district’s designated administrator, and 
the administrator must provide a copy of the request to the principal or the principal’s 
designee of the campus addressed in the request. 

 
As required by law, the District shall provide a response to the requestor not later than the seventh 
school business day after receipt of the request.  This response must either authorize the request or 
state the reason for denying the request.   
 
A school shall operate and maintain the camera in the classroom or setting as long as the classroom 
or setting continues to satisfy these requirements, for the remainder of the school year in which 
the campus received the request, unless the requestor withdraws the request in writing. 
 

Written Notice  
 

Before a school activates a video camera in a classroom or setting, the school shall provide written 
notice to all school staff and to the parents of each student attending class or engaging in school 
activities in the classroom or setting that video and audio surveillance will be conducted in the 
classroom. 
 
The District shall post notice at the entrance to a classroom in which video cameras are placed 
stating that video and audio surveillance is conducted in that classroom.   
 



Special Education Video and Audio Monitoring Policy  – Page 4 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 
  Effective [date]  

If for any reason a campus will discontinue operation of a video camera during a school year, not 
later than the fifth school day before the date the operation of the video camera will be 
discontinued, the campus must notify the parents of each student in regular attendance in the 
classroom or setting that operation of the video camera will not continue unless requested by a 
person eligible to make a request.  Not later than the tenth school day before the end of each school 
year, the campus must notify the parents of each student in regular attendance in the classroom or 
setting that operation of the video camera will not continue during the following school year unless 
a person eligible to make a request for the next school year submits a new request.   
 

Installation and Operation 
 

The classroom subject to the request shall begin operation of video surveillance not later than the 
45th school business day, or the first school day after the 45th school business day if that day is not 
a school day, after the request is authorized unless the Texas Education Agency grants the District 
an extension of time. 
 
When the District has installed video cameras in a classroom as required by law, the District shall 
operate the cameras during the instructional day at all times when students are in the classroom.  
For purposes of this policy, the instructional day shall be defined as the portion of a school day 
during which instruction is taking place in the classroom. 
 
For the school year in which a campus receives a request for video and audio surveillance, the 
campus shall continue to operate and maintain any video cameras placed in the classroom for as 
long as the classroom continues to satisfy the requirements in Texas Education Code § 29.022(a).  
However, the campus may discontinue operation of the video camera during the year if the 
requestor withdraws the request in writing and no request is submitted to continue the surveillance.   
 

Video Cameras 
 

The video cameras must be capable of: 
 

1. Covering all areas of the classroom or setting, including a room attached to the classroom 
or setting used for time-out; and 

2. Recording audio from all areas of the classroom or setting, including a room attached to 
the classroom or setting used for time-out. 
 

The inside of a bathroom or any area in the classroom or other special education setting in which 
a student’s clothes are changed may not be visually monitored, except for incidental coverage of 
a minor portion of a bathroom or changing area because of the layout of the classroom or setting.   
 
Pursuant to 19 Texas Administrative Code §103.1301(g)(12), audio recording of the inside of a 
bathroom or any area of the classroom or other special education setting in which a student’s 
clothes are changed is required.   
 
  



Special Education Video and Audio Monitoring Policy  – Page 5 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 
  Effective [date]  

No Monitoring 
 

The District may not: 
 

1. Allow regular or continual monitoring of video recorded under Texas Education Code § 
29.022; or 

2. Use video for teacher evaluation or for any other purpose other than the promotion of safety 
of students receiving special education services.   

 
Retention Period 

 
A school district shall retain video recorded from a video camera for at least three months after the 
date the video was recorded.   
 
If a person requests to view a video recording from a video camera, a school district must retain 
the recording from the date of receipt of the request until the person has viewed the recording and 
a determination has been made as to whether the recording documents an alleged incident.  If the 
recording documents an alleged incident, the district or school shall retain the recording until the 
alleged incident has been resolved, including the exhaustion of all appeals.   
 

Confidentiality of Recordings 
 

Video recordings made in accordance with this policy shall be confidential and shall only be 
accessed or viewed by the individuals and in the limited circumstances permitted by law.  The 
following individuals shall have authority to view video recordings to the extent permitted by the 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA): 
 

1. A District employee who is involved in an alleged incident documented by a recording and 
reported to the District, on request of the employee; 

2. A parent of a student who is involved in an alleged incident documented by a recording 
and reported to the District, on request of the parent;  

3. Appropriate Department of Family and Protective Services (DFPS) personnel as part of an 
investigation of alleged abuse or neglect of a child under Texas Family Code § 261.406; 

4. A peace officer, school nurse, District administrator trained in de-escalation and restraint 
techniques, or human resource staff member in response to a report of an alleged incident 
or an investigation of an employee or a report of alleged abuse committed by a student; 
and  

5. Appropriate TEA or State Board for Educator Certification personnel or their agents as part 
of an investigation. 

 
A contractor or employee performing job duties relating to the installation, operation, or 
maintenance of video equipment or the retention of video recordings who incidentally views a 
video recording does not violate these confidentiality provisions.   
 



Special Education Video and Audio Monitoring Policy  – Page 6 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 
  Effective [date]  

For purposes of this policy, the term “human resource staff member” shall include the 
Superintendent, a principal, an assistant principal or other campus administrator, and any 
supervisory position within the District’s human resources office.   
 
If an individual listed in items 3 through 5 above believes that a recording shows a violation of 
District policy or campus procedures, the individual may allow access to the recording by 
appropriate legal and human resources personnel designated by the District for the purpose of 
determining whether a policy or procedure has been violated. 
 
If a person described by items 4 or 5 above who views the video recording believes that the 
recording documents a possible violation under Texas Family Code, Chapter 261, Subchapter E, 
the person shall notify DFPS for investigation in accordance with Texas Family Code § 261.406.   
 

Reporting an Incident 
 

A person alleging that an incident, as defined by law, has occurred in a classroom in which video 
surveillance is conducted shall file a report on the form provided by the District with the principal 
as soon as possible after the person suspects the alleged incident.  If possible, an incident report 
form shall be filed within 48 hours of the facts giving rise to the allegation.  The principal shall 
promptly view, or direct an authorized individual to view, the video surveillance footage to identify 
the relevant portion of the recording.  No later than ten District business days after the report is 
filed, the principal or designee shall respond by notifying the person whether the alleged incident 
was recorded in the District’s video surveillance footage and shall initiate other steps as required 
by law, District policy, or local procedures.   
 

Expedited Review 
 

A parent, staff member, or administrator may request an expedited review by the Texas Education 
Agency of the District’s: 
 

1. Denial of a request; 
2. Request for an extension of time to begin operation of a video camera; or  
3. Determination to not release a video recording. 

 
If a parent, staff member or administrator request an expedited review, the Texas Education 
Agency shall notify all other interested parties of the request.   
 
If an expedited review has been requested, the Texas Education Agency shall issue a preliminary 
judgment as to whether the District is likely to prevail on the issue under a full review by the 
agency.  If the agency determines that the District is not likely to prevail, the District must fully 
comply with this section notwithstanding an appeal of the agency’s decision.  The agency shall 
notify the requestor and the District, if the District is not the requestor, of the agency’s 
determination.   
 
  



Special Education Video and Audio Monitoring Policy  – Page 7 Adopted by Board of Directors [date] 
  Effective [date]  

Grievance Procedures 
 

Complaints alleging violations of the District’s video surveillance obligations for special education 
settings under Texas Education Code § 29.022 must be addressed in writing to the District’s Chief 
Legal and Operations Officer.  The Superintendent shall then consider the complaint and give 
notice of their decision in writing.  The complainant may further appeal the Superintendent’s 
decision to the Board of Directors, by providing notice to the Chief Legal and Operations Officer.  
The Board of Directors will give notice of its decision at the next regularly scheduled Board 
meeting.   
 
Decisions by the Board of Directors may be appealed under Texas Education Code § 7.057.   
 

Gifts, Grants, and Donations 
 

The District may solicit and accept gifts, grants, and donation from any person for use in placing 
video cameras in classrooms or settings.  The District is not permitted to use Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act, Part B, funds or state special education funds to implement the 
requirements of Texas Education Code § 29.022.   
 

No Waiver of Immunity 
 

The requirements described by this policy do not: 
 

1. Waive any immunity from liability of the District, or of District officers or employees; or 
2. Create any liability for a cause of action against the District or against District officers or 

employees.   
 
Revision History: 
 

Effective Date Version Modification 
 1 New document 

   
 



M.  
Minutes from 

Meeting on 
9.21.20 



 

TRINITY BASIN PREPARATORY 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

2730 N HWY 360 

GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, 75050 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 

 

12:00 P.M. OPEN SESSION 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER: Loren Hitchcock called the meeting to order at 12:02 p.m.  He announced that 
a quorum was present.  The members in attendance via videoconference were: 
 

Randy Shaffer, President, Member 
Ken Petree, Vice President, Member  
Julia Gomez, Member (joined meeting at 12:33 p.m. and was present for all voting items) 
Dana Bickford, Member  
Loren Hitchcock, Member  
Mike Winemiller, Member  
Frederick Brown, Member  
 
Others in attendance were: 
 
James Dworkin, Chief Financial Officer, Board Treasurer 
Trey Varner, Chief Legal and Operations Officer, Board Secretary 
Lesley Austin, Chief Academic Officer 
Brandon Duck, Chief Development Officer 
Jennifer Masten, principal 
D. Gonzalez 
K. Thomas 
A. Johnson 
C. Richardson 
C. Haynes 
 
NOTE: This meeting was conducted in accordance with the Governor’s authorization concerning 

suspension of certain open meetings law requirements for COVID-19 disaster.  All attendees attended 
the meeting via videoconference and were visible and audible to the entire group and any others joining 
the meeting for the entirety of the meeting.  An audio recording was made of the entire meeting. 

 

II. OPEN SESSION – 12:02 p.m. 
 

III. NON-AGENDA RELATED PUBLIC COMMENTS 

This forum allows anyone in attendance to address the Board on any matter except personnel and 
individual student issues.  Any personnel concerns should be brought to the attention of the CEO prior 
to the meeting.  Speakers will be limited to three (3) minutes.  Non-agenda items will be taken for no 
more than 30 minutes. 

IV. ACTION ITEMS:  

 

a. Financial report – No Action Taken 

b. Enrollment report – No Action Taken 

c. Academic report – No Action Taken 



 

d. Operations and Expansion report – No Action Taken 

e. Development report – No Action Taken 

f. Campus report– No Action Taken 

g. Consider and/or vote on delegation of authority under Texas Government Code 2269.053 to 

Chief Executive Officer to determine which construction method provides the best value for 

the district for improvement to real property located at and around 412 W. Bolt St., Fort 

Worth and surrounding lots—Dana Bickford made the motion to delegate authority to the CEO 
to determine which construction method provides the best value for the district for the project at 
412 W. Bolt St.  Mike Winemiller seconded.  The vote was unanimous. 

h. Consider and/or vote on compensation for CEO/Superintendent—Mike Winemiller made the 
motion to keep the CEO’s current salary the same and reevaluate in January 2021.  Dana Bickford 
seconded.  The vote was unanimous.  Randy Shaffer abstained from voting. 

i. Consider and/or vote on minutes from meeting on 8.28.20—Dana Bickford made the motion 
to approve the minutes from the meeting on 8.28.20.  Frederick Brown seconded.  The vote was 
unanimous.  Loren Hitchcock and Ken Petree abstained from voting due to absence at meeting on 
8.28.20. 

j. ADJOURNMENT 

 

V. CLOSED SESSION PER TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE.  If at any time during the meeting, the 
Board determines that a closed or executive meeting is required, then such closed or executive meeting 
will be held by the Board as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, including, but not limited to 
the following sections: 

 
The Board entered closed session at 12:59 p.m. under section 551.074 of the Texas Open Meetings 
Act.  The Board exited closed session at 1:08 p.m. 

 
a. Private Consultation with the Board’s Attorney (Sec. 551.071) -- No discussion. 
b. Personnel Matters (Sec. 551.074) – Discussion of compensation for CEO.  Mr. Shaffer was not 

present and did not participate in this discussion. 
c. School Children; School District Employees; Disciplinary Matter or Complaint (Sec. 

551.082) -- No discussion. 
 

VI. ADJOURNMENT—1:13 p.m. 
 
 
Minutes Reviewed by: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Trey Varner, Board Secretary 


	dateDelivery: 10-05-2020
	curTotal_TotalDue: 37758.12
	strAuthSign_FullName: Randal Shaffer
	strLessee: Trinity Basin Preparatory, Inc.
	strScheduleRange: 1 - 1
	txtLender_LossPayee: Loss Payee as Ally Financial and its Successors and Assigns
	txt_AdditionalInsured: Additional Insured as Ally Financial and its Successors and Assigns
	lblBlankInstruction1: 
	lblBlankInstruction2: 
	lblBlankInstruction3: 
	lblBlankInstruction4: 
	lblBlankInstruction5: 
	lblBlankInstruction7: 
	strLeaseType: Open
	lblEditableInstruction1: Lender Lease Agreement and applicable documents
	lblEditableInstruction2: Commercial Credit Application 
	lblEditableInstruction3: Odometer Statement (s)
	lblEditableInstruction5: Provide a Photocopy of all signers Drivers License 
	lblEditableInstruction6: 
	lblEditableInstruction7: Ownership Verification form (per instructions, please complete and sign) 
	lblEditableInstruction8: One-Pay Lease. Amount due at Delivery = $3146.51 * 12 mos. term
	lblEditableInstruction9: Company Resolution (signed by authorized person / officer) 
	lblEditableInstruction10: 
	lblEditableInstruction6a: Provide a Certificate of Insurance or Insurance Binder with vehicle (s) description and 
	lblEditableInstruction6b: required limits as stated in the Insurance Notice reflecting: 


